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Central European Media Enterprises

Unless the context otherwise requires, referentékis report to the “Company”, “CME”, “we”, “us”rd'our” refer to Central European Media Enterpriés. (‘CME Ltd.”) or
CME Ltd. and its consolidated subsidiaries listedkhibit 21.01 hereto. Unless otherwise notedstallistical and financial information presentedhiis report has been convel
into U.S. dollars using period-end exchange ratéigeferences in this report to “US$” or “dollarsite to U.S. dollars, all references to “BGate to Bulgarian lev, all referen:
to “HRK” are to Croatian kuna, all references taZtC are to Czech korunas, all references to “ROMKE to the New Romanian lei, all references to “UA&te to Ukrainia
hryvnia, and all references to “Euro” or “EUR” d@oethe European Union Euro. The exchange rates@samber 31, 2012sed in this report are BGN/US$ 1.48; HRK/US$ £
CZK/US$ 19.06; RON/US$ 3.36; and EUR/US$ 0.76.

As used herein, the term “2014 Floating Rate Note&rs to our floating rate senior notes due 2@id;term “2016 Fixed Rate Notessfers to our 11.625% senior notes
2016; the term “2017 Fixed Rate Notes” refers ®3t0% senior secured notes due 2017 issued bylaily owned subsidiary, CET 21 spol. s r.o. (“CET"); the term Senio
Note¢" refers collectively to the 2014 Floating Rate 8&t2016 Fixed Rate Notes and 2017 Fixed Rate Ntitesterm “2015 Convertible Noteséfers to our 5.0% sen
convertible notes due 2015, the term “2013 ConerfNotes” refers to our 3.5% senior convertibléeesalue 2013 and the term “Convertible Notegérs collectively to the 20
Convertible Notes and the 2015 Convertible Noté® fBrm “Secured Revolving Credit Facility” reféosthe fiveyear CZK 1.5 billion secured revolving credit fagilentered int
on October 21, 2010 by CET 21 with BNP Paribas, SI#&. Morgan plc, Citigroup Global Markets LinditéNG Bank N.V. and Ceska Sporitelna a.s. ("CSA&'mandated le
arrangers and original lenders, BNP Paribas, SsAagent, BNP Paribas Trust Corporation UK Limitedsacurity agent, and Central European Media EmgesplLtd. ("CME
Ltd.") and our whollyewned subsidiaries Central European Media Entaprié.V. ("CME NV"), CME Media Enterprises B.V. ("GMBV"), CME Investments B.V., CM
Slovak Holdings B.V. and MARKIZASLOVAKIA, spol. s r.o., as the original guarantoféie term "TW Loans" refers to amounts drawn uritlerTerm Loan Facilities Cre
Agreement dated April 30, 2012 with Time Warner.I¢i@ime Warner"). The term “Preferred Sharefers to the one share of our Series A Convertioéderred Stock, par val
US$ 0.08 per share, held by Time Warner Media HigisliB.V. (“TW Investor”).The term "Equity Commitment Agreement" refers te 8ubscription and Equity Commitm
Agreement by and between TW Investor and the Coypptated as of April 30, 2012.

|. Forward-looking Statements

This report contains forwartboking statements, including those relating to @apital needs, business strategy, expectations iatethtions. Statements that use the ti
“believe”, “anticipate”, “trend”, “expect”, “plan”, “estimate”, “forecast”, “intend” and similar expressions of a future or forward-looking nature idéntforward{ookinc
statements for purposes of the U.S. federal séesitaws or otherwise. For these statements andthér forwardlooking statements, we claim the protection ofstife harbor fo
forward-looking statements contained in the Private SéiegrLitigation Reform Act of 1995.

Forward-looking statements are inherently subject to riskd uncertainties, many of which cannot be predietith accuracy or are otherwise beyond our conmot some «
which might not even be anticipated. Forwédmdking statements reflect our current views wigspect to future events and because our businemsbject to such risks a
uncertainties, actual results, our strategic plawy financial position, results of operations arash flows could differ materially from those deked in or contemplated by 1
forward-looking statements contained in this report.

Important factors that contribute to such riskslite, but are not limited to, those factors settfarnder "Risk Facto” as well as the following: the effect of the ecoro
downturn and Eurozone instability in our marketsldhe extent and timing of any recovery; our apiti access external sources of capital in lightwf current severe liquidi
constraints; decreases in TV advertising spending the rate of development of the advertising ntarkethe countries in which we operate; the extenwhich our debt servi
obligations restrict our business; our success mplementing our initiatives to diversify and enharaur revenue streams; our ability to make afftetive investments
television broadcast operations, including investtaeén programming; our ability to develop and atgunecessary programming and attract audiencesinges in the politici
and regulatory environments where we operate anglieation of relevant laws and regulations; and ttimely renewal of broadcasting licenses and ouilitghto obtair
additional frequencies and licenses. The foregomgew of important factors should not be constrasdexhaustive and should be read in conjunctiah wiher cautionar
statements that are included in this report. Weentake no obligation to publicly update or reviemygorwardiooking statements, whether as a result of newrimdgion, futur:
developments or otherwise.




PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

CME is a media and entertainment company oper#tading broadcast, content and new media busin@s<esntral and Eastern Europe. Our assets aretimedgh a series
Dutch and Curagao holding companies. During the gaded December 31, 2012, we managed our businesslivisional basis with three operating segmesrtsadcast, Med
Pro Entertainment, our production and distributinrsiness, and New Media. These operating segmefi¢strhow CME's operations were managed and tiuetste of ou
internal financial reporting.

CME-produced content is critical to maintaining ourdesship positions in our broadcasting operatiomsexpanding our new media operations. We have ctrated our creati
resources to develop some of the most popularnafigiontent in our markets for distribution acréiss entire spectrum of existing and emerging ptatfto bring great
diversification of revenues. Content is a core taasd ownership of it is the cornerstone of ouatslyy to monetize our content across multiple idistion platforms.

Starting in the first quarter of 2013, the Broadcitedia Pro Entertainment and New Media operasigments have been reorganized to streamline teggoaurces and create
new operating segments: Bulgaria, Croatia, the I€&epublic, Romania, the Slovak Republic and Sl@ae@perating our businesses through these geagrapgments wi
enable us to better execute our strategy of digtrig our content on multiple distribution platfosrand devices in a number of windows in each ma#Ast result, from January
2013 we will change our segment reporting to réftee way the businesses are now managed and edsenresults reviewed by the chief operating sieci maker whe
allocating resources and assessing performance.

General market information

We operate mainly in Bulgaria, Croatia, the Czeepublic, Romania, the Slovak Republic and Sloveaihof these countries are members of the Europgaion (the “EU’)
except for Croatia, which is an accession candidaitmtry and expected to become a full memberlyn2043. These emerging economies have adoptedeWiestyle democrat
forms of government within the last twerftye years and have economic structures, politaoad legal systems, systems of corporate governandebusiness practices 1
continue to evolve. As the economies of our coeatdonverge with more developed nations and tleein@mic and commercial infrastructures continudewelop, the busine
risks of operating in these countries will continaalecline. We also have broadcast operationsaldéa and content distribution operations in Hugg&®ur operations in the
countries are immaterial in comparison with ourentbperations.

The following table shows the per capita nominalsgrdomestic product (“GDP")€. not adjusted for inflation) for the marketsQ#ntral and Eastern Europe in which we op:
and for a combined group of developed markets cmgrof Austria, France, Germany, Spain, the Unitedydom and the United States (collectively, theVeloped markety”
GDP is a measure of economic activity and represbetestimated total value of final goods andisesyproduced by a country in a specified periaemg@arative period amoui
have been adjusted to present GDP at constantmyeates.

Nominal GDP per capita US$ 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

CME markets $ 1254 $ 12200 $ 1161C $ 11,27] $ 11688 ¢ 1051¢ $ 9271 $  8,30¢
Growth rate 3% 5% 3% (3)% 11% 13% 12% 10%

Developed markets $ 4501¢ $ 4392f $§ 4259+ $ 41,30 $ 4267¢ $ 4213 $ 40406 $ 38,53¢
Growth rate 2% 3% 3% (3)% 1% 4% 5% 5%

Source: International Monetary Fund ("IMF"), CMEiemtes

The following table shows the ratio of per capiteminal GDP at purchasing power parity (“PPP”) im markets to that of developed markets.

Ratio of nominal GDP at PPP per capita 201z 2011 201C 200¢ 200¢ 2007 200¢ 200t

CME markets as a % of developed markets 43% 43% 43% 43% 44% 41% 39% 37%
Source: IMF, CME estimates

The above two tables show that the level of nomB@P per capita in our markets was converging tda/éne level of the developed markets fairly sigaiftly up until 200¢
when the global recession impacted our marketsgieater extent than the developed markets andecgernce slowed down. We believe that convergen&Dd? in our marke
with the developed markets will revive as highesvgh returns. As our markets grow, the level opdsable income of the population increases, whiokiges an incentive f
advertisers to advertise their products.

The following table shows total advertising speed gapita in the markets of Central and Eastermofiiin which we operate and for the developed ntaskieconstant exchar
rates:

Total advertising spend per capita US$ 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

CME markets $ &5 $ 39 $ 39 $ 41 $ 5€ $ 51 $ 45 $ 39
Growth rate (9)% (2% (5)% (26)% 10% 13% 16% 11%

Developed markets $ 37¢ $ 37¢ $ 36t $ 35¢ $ 39z $ 408 $ 39¢ $ 37¢
Growth rate 2% 2% 2% (9)% (3% 2% 5% 4%

Source: CME estimates, Group M, IMF
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The ratio of total advertising spend per capitadminal GDP per capita, also known as advertigitenisity, was converging until 2008 and had rigea Wweighted average leve
our markets of 0.48% in 2008 compared to 0.92%éndeveloped markets. Due to the protracted pefiadivertising market decline since 2008, the wieidlaverage advertisi
intensity in CME markets fell to 0.28% in 2012 cargd to 0.84% in developed markets, which is eh&urdecrease from 2011 where ad intensity was 0.828600.85%
respectively. We expect advertising intensity tgibeconverging again when our markets recover raivth rates that are higher than the developed etsrleurthermore, v
expect the rate of increase to be greater in theyfears of economic recovery as our markets reggnowth from a lower base.

The convergence of advertising intensity is dritagrseveral factors, including the introduction oémium products into the market by new or existidgertisers aiming to captt
increased consumer disposable income. In the deselmarkets, the marketing of premium productduding finance, automotive, entertainment and traveducts, makes 1
the majority of current television advertising speim the markets in which we operate, basic prtslsach as food, beverages and household cleamipiess comprise the m:
source of advertising revenues.

The following table shows a comparison of the atamn of advertising budgets between basic and jpranproducts in our markets versus those in moxeldeed countries
2012:

Mix of advertised products CME markets Developed markets
Premium 32% 63%

Basic 65% 32%

Other 3% 5%

Source: CME estimates, Group M

Similar to the trends described above, the propomif premium goods advertised in our markets gaiglincreased over time through 2008. During thelgnged period of T
advertising spend decline in our markets since 26@8have seen a decrease in the proportion ofréglng revenues from premium products caused Wweakening of consum
demand for such products in the recessionary peviieen our markets return to growth, we expecettie historic trend of increased advertisingrefrpum products to resun

The following table shows TV advertising spend gapita in the markets of Central and Eastern Eunopehich we operate and for the developed mar&etonstant exchan
rates.

TV advertising spend per capita US$ 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

CME markets $ 19 $ 2 % 2C $ 21 $ 28 $ 25 $ 21 ¢ 18
Growth rate (6)% 0% (4)% (29)% 13% 17% 17% 13%

Developed markets $ 144 $ 14z % 13¢ $ 138 $ 144 $ 14€ $ 14¢ % 14C
Growth rate 2% 2% 5% (8% ()% (2)% 6% 1%

Source: CME estimates, Group M, IMF

The preceding tables indicate that TV advertisipgnsl per capita in our markets grew at a fastertratn in developed markets prior to 2008, butidedlat a slower rate than tc
advertising spend per capita during the recenopged period of advertising market decline. Thibésause TV advertising spend has grown as a gageenf total advertisir
spend in our markets, as shown below. Furthernsameg television was commercialized in our markethe same time as other forms of media, TV atbiegt generally accour
for a higher proportion of total advertising spehdn in the developed markets, where newspapersnagdzines and radio were established as advertisatia well before tt
advent of television.

The following tables show TV and internet adventisspend as a percentage of total advertising spethé markets of Central and Eastern Europe iichvve operate and for t
developed markets.

TV advertising spend as a % of total advertising spnd 201z 2011 201¢ 200¢ 200¢ 2007 200¢ 200&
CME markets 53% 52% 5C% 49% 5C% 49% 47% 48%
Developed markets 38% 38% 38% 3% 3% 3€% 37% 37%

Source: Group M

Internet advertising spend as a % of total advertisng spend 201z 2011 201¢ 200¢ 200¢ 2007 200¢ 200t
CME markets 13% 11% 1C% 9% 7% 6% 5% 4%
Developed markets 24% 22% 2% 1% 15% 13% 1% 8%

Source: Group M

As shown above, both TV and internet advertisingehgrown overall at the expense of print and radivertising in our markets during the last eigtarge We believe that tt
trend will continue because of the greater readh lzetter measurement capabilities of TV and inteaslvertising, which make these mediums more éffedb advertisel
compared to print and radio. Television and therimet are especially attractive to advertisers umeadhey deliver high reach at low cost compareather forms of media. Tl
internet is also attractive because of its higlfigative measurement capabilities.
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In summary, as our markets recover we expect theagies of the countries in which we operate tamestheir convergence with more developed marketsicularly Wester
Europe, resulting in higher growth of GDP per cajiit our markets compared to that of the develamentries. We expect advertising intensity in oarkets to also return tc
pattern of convergence and reach its high of 0.p8% to 2008 and beyond in the next few yearstit&rmore, we expect TV and internet advertisingidfde continue to grow
relation to total advertising spend, resultingigngicantly higher TV and internet advertising spegrowth in our markets compared to the developarkets.

BROADCAST

Our Broadcast segment consists of 36 televisionméla reaching an aggregate of approximately Somipeople primarily in six countries.

In Bulgaria, we operate one general entertainmieaigel, BTV, and five other channels, BTV CINEMATW COMEDY, RING.BG, BTV ACTION and BTV LADY, a fenla-
oriented cable channel that was launched on Ja8ar3012. We also operate several radio channels.

In Croatia, we operate one general entertainmeanradl, NOVA TV (Croatia), one female-oriented chelnDOMA (Croatia), and an international channeD\WA WORLD.

In the Czech Republic, we operate one generaltaimarent channel, TV NOVA (Czech Republic), and silker channels, NOVA CINEMA, NOVA SPORT, MTV CZEC
FANDA, a maleeriented channel that was launched on July 14, 2B2CHQOV, a comedy channel that was launched ocebwer 23, 2012 and TELKA, which was launche
February 22, 2013.

In Romania, we operate two general entertainmeanméls, PRO TV and ACASA, and six other channeRODPCINEMA, SPORT.RO, MTV ROMANIA, PRO T
INTERNATIONAL, an international channel, PRO TV CHNAU, a general entertainment channel broadcastindgoldova, and ACASA GOLD, a femalariented cable chanr
that was launched on April 15, 2012.

In the Slovak Republic, we operate one generalrmenent channel, TV MARKIZA, and three other chals, DOMA (Slovak Republic), a femateiented channel, DAJTO
male-oriented channel that was launched on Auglys2@12, and FOOOR, a comedy channel that was i@ghen February 25, 2013.

In Slovenia, we operate two general entertainmeancels, POP TV and KANAL A, and POP NON STOP, lesstiption package of six channels which include®KINO, POI
KINO2, POP BRIO, POP FANI, POP OTO and POP SPOT.

Our strategy for our Broadcast segment is to mairdad increase our audience leadership in eaduomarkets in order to pursue sales strategieigriEs to maximize ol
revenues. We have built our audience leadershgaéh of our markets by operating a mahiannel business model with a diversified portfelfidelevision channels with bro
appeal.

Our main general entertainment television chanimeésach country are distributed on a freeatobasis terrestrially in analog, digital or botdlepending on the digitalization ste
in each country, and are also distributed via cahtsatellite. Our other channels are generadtyiduted via cable and satellite.

As the distribution platforms in our region devekpd become more diversified, our television chnaed content will reach viewers through new dhistion offerings, such .
internet TV and smart devices.

Programming

Our programming strategy for our Broadcast segrisetailored to match the expectations of key autbetiemographics by scheduling and marketing amaptinix of progran
in a cost effective manner. The programming thatpwavide drives our audience shares and ratings 'dadience Share and Ratings" below) and consistscally-produce!
news, current affairs, fiction, and reality andeztainment shows as well as acquired foreign mogieses and sports programming.

We focus our programming investment resources oars®y a leading position during prime time, whtte majority of advertising revenues are delivesed] improving our co
efficiency through optimizing the programming mixdalimiting the cost of programming scheduled affye time.

Audience Share and Ratin

The tables below provide a country-bgeintry comparison of all day and prime time audéeshares for 2012 in the target demographic dfi edour leading channels to
primary channels of our main competitors.

Audience share represents the share attractedchgranel as a proportion of the total audience viadctelevision. Ratings represent the number opfgewvatching a chanr
(expressed as a proportion of the total populatimasured). Audience share and ratings informatierneasured in each market by international meamntagencies usi
peoplemeters, which quantify audiences for differ@@mographics and subgeographies of the populatieasured throughout the day. Our channels scheutagrammin
intended to attract audiences within specific “&tglemographics that we believe will be attractivadvertisers.
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Bulgaria

All day audience share Prime time audience
Target Demographic Main Television Channels Ownership (2012) share (2012)

(18-49) BTV CME 32.6% 39.3%
NOVA TV MTG 15.3% 16.4%
BNT 1 Public television 6.2% 7.6%

Source: GARB

The combined all day and prime time audience staresr Bulgaria Broadcast operations in 2012 w&d% and 44.6%, respectively.

Croatia

All day audience share Prime time audience
Target Demographic Main Television Channels Ownership (2012) share (2012)

(18-54) Nova TV (Croatia) CME 23.1% 29.4%
RTL RTL 19.2% 21.8%
HTV 1 Public television 15.8% 11.9%

Source: AGB Nielsen Media Research

Excluding NOVA WORLD, the combined all day and peitime audience shares of our Croatia Broadcasatpes in 2012 was 27.9% and 33.5%, respectively.

Czech Republic

All day audience share Prime time audience

Target Demographic Main Television Channels Ownership (2012) share (2012)
(15-54) TV NOVA (Czech Republic) CME 27.3% 31.9%
Prima Family MTG 15.5% 16.3%
CT1 Public television 12.9% 13.8%

Source: ATO- Mediaresearch

Excluding MTV CZECH, NOVA SPORT and SMICHOV, therabined all day and prime time audience shares o€aech Republic Broadcast operations in 2048 33.8% ar
38.3% respectively.

Romanie
All day audience share Prime time audience
Target Demographic Main Television Channels Ownership (2012) share (2012)
(18-49 Urban) PRO TV CME 16.8% 20.9%
Antena 1 Intact group 12.2% 12.0%
Prima TV ProSiebenSatl Media Group 4.1% 5.6%
TVR 1 Public television 2.7% 3.0%

Source: Kantar Media

Excluding PRO TV INTERNATIONAL and PRO TV CHISINAUhe combined all day and prime time audience shaf®ur Romania Broadcast operations in 2048 23.69
and 29.0%, respectively.




Index

Slovak Republic

All day audience share Prime time audience

Target Demographic Main Television Channels Ownership (2012) share (2012)
(12-54) TV MARKIZA CME 26.2% 28.1%
TV JOJ J&T Media Enterprises 21.8% 25.5%
STV 1 Public Television 6.5% 6.6%

Source: PMT / TNS SK
The combined all day and prime time audience staresr Slovak Republic Broadcast operations in2®s 32.4% and 35.2%, respectively.

Slovenia

All day audience share Prime time audience
Target Demographic Main Television Channels Ownership (2012) share (2012)

(18-49) POP TV CME 24.7% 34.0%
SLO1 Public Television 10.8% 13.0%

Source: AGB Nielsen Media Research
The combined all day and prime time audience stafresr Slovenia Broadcast operations in 2012 wha4% and 50.1%, respectively.
Sales

We generate advertising revenues in our Broadegghent primarily through entering into agreementh advertisers, advertising agencies and sportegptace advertising ¢
our television channels.

Our main unit of inventory is the commercial groasng point (“GRP”),a measure of the number of people watching telavisihen an advertisement is aired. We gene
contract with a client to provide an agreed nundié&RPs for an agreed price (“cost per point” oP®). Much less frequently, and usually only for smativ@ channels, we m
sell on a fixed spot basis where an advertisensepieiced at an agreed time for a negotiated phiieis independent of the number of viewers. Tleegrer GRP varies depend
on the season and time of day the advertisemeaitad, the volume of GRPs purchased, requestspiexia positioning of the advertisement, the deraphic group that tt
advertisement is targeting and other factors. @uelr advertising customers generally enter intmiahcontracts and set the pricing for a committeidme of GRPs.

Our sales strategy is to maximize the monetizatfoour inventory by leveraging our high brand powed applying an optimal mix of pricing and selit rate. The effectivene
of our sales strategy is measured by our shareeotelevision advertising market, which represéimesproportion of our television advertising revesiin the market comparec
the total television advertising market.

We operate our Broadcast segment based on a bsisitegel of audience leadership, control of our @enand strong brands. These solid pillars arécatito converting ot
leading audience shares into strong revenues, iafipeghen our markets return to growth.

The public broadcasters in our operating countiresrestricted in the amount of advertising thay/tay sell. See “Regulation of Television Broatiogs below for additione
information.

Seasonality

We experience seasonality, with advertising saedihg to be lowest during the third quarter ofreealendar year due to the summer holiday perigalcally July and August
and highest during the fourth quarter of each cdegear.
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Regulation of Television Broadcasting

Television broadcasting in each of the countriegfifich we operate is regulated by a governmentidioaity or agency. In this report, we refer to sagencies individually as
“Media Council” and collectively as “Media CouncilsMedia Councils generally supervise broadcasterstlaeid compliance with national broadcasting legisih, as well ¢
control access to the available frequencies thrdieghsing regimes.

Programming and Advertising Regulati

All of the countries in which we operate are mem$tates of the EU with the exception of Croatied anr broadcast operations in such countries argesuto relevant E
legislation relating to media. Croatia is a cantidar EU accession and is expected to join tharEluly 2013.

The EU Audiovisual Media Services Directive (theVIS Directive”) came into force in December 200Temding the Television Without Frontiers Directiftee “TWF
Directive”). The AVMS Directive extends the legal framework fréefevision broadcasting provided by the TWF Dirextto media services generally in the EU. The A\
Directive covers both linear (i.e., broadcastingd aon-linear (e.g., video-asiemand and mobile television) transmissions of medrvices, with the latter subject to less strit
regulation. Among other things, the AVMS Directipeeserves the requirement that broadcasters, wheseticable and by appropriate meansgServe a majority of the
broadcast time for “European worksSuch works are defined as originating from an EUnimer state or a signatory to the Council of Eum@onvention on Transfront
Television as well as being written and producedhiyay residents of the EU or Council of Europemixer states or pursuant to pmduction agreements between such ¢
and other countries. In addition, the AVMS Direetialso preserves the requirement that at leastdf@dther broadcast time or programming budgetiichted to programs mé
by European producers who are independent of bastels. News, sports, games, advertising, tele@xices and teleshopping are excluded from thaulzdion of these quote
The AVMS Directive has relaxed regulations in retpsf advertising shown in linear broadcasts arsl éxdended some of those rules to finear broadcasts. In general, rn
restricting when programming can be interruptedatlyertising in linear broadcasting have been ahbetisexcept in the case of movies, news and chdtd@ogramming, whe
programming can be interrupted once every thirtputgs or more. In addition, broadcasters may usdust placement in most genres, subject to thetifdeion of sucl
practices and limitations on prominence.

Member states were required to implement the AVM&dlive by December 19, 2009, and of the couniriewhich we operate Romania, the Czech Republittha Slova
Republic have notified the European Commission thatregulations have been put in place. Legisiatias been adopted in Bulgaria and Slovenia toeémeht the AVM:!
Directive. Under the AVMS Directive, member states permitted to adopt stricter conditions tharséhset forth in the AVMS Directive. The legislatienacted in our operati
countries is consistent with the EU rules. Crohéa put in place legislation that aligns its progmng regulations with the AVMS.

Please see below for more detailed informationrognamming and advertising regulations that impactchannels.

Bulgaria: In Bulgaria, privately owned broadcasters arerniged to broadcast advertising for up to 12 misyser hour. The public broadcaster, BNT, whichriariced through
compulsory television license fee and by the gawemt, is restricted to broadcasting advertisingdfeninutes per hour and no more than 15 minutesiggrof which only fiv
minutes may be in prime time. There are also giris on the frequency of advertising breaks égample, news and childrens' programs shorter 3@aminutes cannot
interrupted). These restrictions apply to both milypland privately owned broadcasters. Furtheriggins relate to advertising content, includingam on tobacco advertising :
restrictions on alcohol advertising, regulationsmedical products advertising and regulations oredibing targeted at children or during childremsdgramming. In additio
members of the news department of our channelprat@bited from appearing in advertisements. Owneiels in Bulgaria are required to comply with saleestrictions o
programming, including regulations on the originppbgramming. These channels must ensure that 56fQchannel's total annual broadcast time cansiSEU- or locally-
produced programming and 12% of such broadcastdonsists of programming produced by independesdysrers in the EU. News, sports, games and telesigpprograms, ¢
well as advertising and teletext services, areusdad from these restrictions.

Croatia: In Croatia, privately owned broadcasters are figgchto broadcast advertising for up to 12 minyies hour with no daily limit, and direct sales adising has to la
continuously for at least 15 minutes. Additionadtrigtions apply to children's programming and nesviThe public broadcaster HRT, which is finandedugh a compulso
television license fee, is restricted to broadeastiine minutes of advertising per hour generallg #Bour minutes per hour from 6 p.m. to 10 p.m. HRTot permitted to broadc
spots for teleshopping. There are other restristibat relate to advertising content, includingaa bn tobacco and alcohol advertising. NOVA TV @ia) is required to comg
with several restrictions on programming, includirgulations on the origin of programming. Thesgude the requirement that 20.0% of broadcast tiowsists of locall
produced programming and 50.0% of such locally peed programming be shown during prime time (betw&80 p.m. and 10:00 p.m.). These restrictionsnateapplicable t
DOMA (Croatia).

Czech Republic Privately owned broadcasters in the Czech Repuk permitted to broadcast advertising for up2ominutes per hour. In September 2011, legislatvar
implemented in the Czech Republic which restribes amount of advertising that may be shown on tieeels of the public broadcaster, CT. Pursuanieoregulation, r
advertising may be shown on the public channeld@hd CT 24, while the channels CT 4 and CT 2 nhayvsa limited amount of advertising. Also includedhe legislation i
the requirement that national private broadcastaust contribute annually to a Czech cinematogrdpingl in an amount equal to 2% of their net advielgigevenues. O
production operations in the Czech Republic aréledto apply for financing from the fund. In tikzech Republic, all broadcasters are restrictel reispect to the frequency
advertising breaks during and between programgietisas being subject to restrictions that relatadvertising content, including a ban on tobaabeeetising and limitations ¢
advertisements of alcoholic beverages, pharmaesitiirearms and munitions.

Romania: Privately owned broadcasters in Romania are piggthio broadcast advertising and direct salesréidivey for up to 12 minutes per hour. There as®akstrictions ¢
the frequency of advertising breaks (for examptys and childrens' programs shorter than 30 minzdaesot be interrupted). The public broadcasterR;TWhich is finance
through a compulsory television license fee, isrieied to broadcasting advertising for eight mesuper hour and only between programs. Furtheatshs relate to advertisil
content, including a ban on tobacco advertising @trictions on alcohol advertising, and regulaion advertising targeted at children or duringdobn's programming.
addition, members of the news department of alhobks are prohibited from appearing in advertiseamen
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Slovak Republic Privately owned broadcasters in the Slovak Repuae permitted to broadcast advertising for ufpZaninutes per hour but not for more than 20.0%heir tota
daily broadcast time. Since January 2013, the publbadcaster STV, which is financed through a adeqy license fee, can broadcast advertising fotau0.5% of its tot:
broadcast time (up to 2.5% of total broadcast tinwéuding teleshopping programming), but betweed07.m. and 10:00 p.m. may broadcast only 8 minotexivertising pe
hour. There are restrictions on the frequency ekaising breaks during and between programs. $Tihot permitted to broadcast advertising breaksxgurograms. There &
also restrictions that relate to advertising coptiercluding a ban on tobacco advertising and adraadvertisements of alcoholic beverages (exctuteer and wine) between 6
a.m. and 10:00 p.m.

Slovenia: Privately owned broadcasters in Slovenia arenatbto broadcast advertising for up to 12 minuteany hour. The public broadcaster, SLO, whichnarfced through
compulsory television license fee and commercitiVities, is allowed to broadcast advertising fprto 10 minutes per hour, but is only permittedai minutes per hour betwe
the hours of 6:00 p.m. and 11:00 p.m. There a@ralstrictions on the frequency of advertising kseduring programs and restrictions that relatdweertising content, including
ban on tobacco advertising and a prohibition onatigertising of any alcoholic beverages from 7:0@.a0 9:30 p.m. and generally for alcoholic begesawith an alcohol
content of more than 15.0%. Our Slovenia operataasrequired to comply with several restrictionsppogramming, including regulations on the origfrprogramming. The:
include the requirement that 20.0% of a statioallygorogramming consist of locally produced pragnaing, of which at least 60 minutes must be brosideatween 6:00 p.m. a
10:00 p.m. In addition, 50.0% of the station's airwoadcast time must be European-origin awéioal works and at least 10.0% of the stationsuahbroadcast time must
European audio-visual works produced by indepengertucers.

Licensing Regulatio

The license granting and renewal process in ourabipg countries varies by jurisdiction and by typiebroadcast permitted by the license (i.e., catdeestrial, satellite
Depending on the country, terrestrial licenses imayalid for an unlimited time period, may be reedvautomatically upon application or may requinmare lengthy renew
procedure, such as a tender process. Generally aablsatellite licenses are granted or renewed application. We expect each of our licenses teebewed or new licenses
be granted as required to continue to operate wsinbss. In addition, as our operating countriassition from analog to digital terrestrial broastozg, we have applied for a
will continue to apply for and obtain digital licees that are issued in replacement of analog kseWe will also apply for additional digital licees and for licenses to ope
digital networks where such applications are pesibis and prudent.

The transition to digital terrestrial broadcastingeach jurisdiction in which we operate generddiiffows similar stages, although the approach beipglied is not uniforn
Typically, legislation governing the transition digital broadcasting is adopted addressing thendicey of operators of the digital networks as vesithe licensing of digit
broadcasters, technical parameters concerninglitheation of frequencies to be used for digitalviees (including those currently being used forlegaervices), broadcasti
standards to be provided, the timing of the trémsiand, ideally, principles to be applied in thensition, including transparency and rdieerimination. Generally, the legislat
relating to the digital transition provides thatumbent analog broadcasters are entitled to reeenligital license or that current licenses entitle holders to digital terrestr
broadcasting, although broadcasters in a spedifisdiction may be required to formally file an &pation in order for a digital license to be isdu®©ur markets are in differe
stages in the digitalization process. Croatia, &b, the Slovak Republic and the Czech Republe lemch completed the analog switdh-In Bulgaria the transition to digit
broadcasting will commence in March 2013 with timalag switcheff occurring in September 2013. In Romania thedition to digital broadcasting has not yet comneet
however the country expects completion to occ@0b5. Please see below for more detailed informatiolicenses for our channels.

Bulgaria: BTV operates pursuant to a national programmitenke issued by the Council for Electrokiedia, the Bulgarian Media Council, and broadcpstsuant to a natior
analog broadcasting permit that will expire at time of the analog switch-off. BTV also has a memtry digital terrestrial license that expires inyJ2024. BTV ACTION
(formerly PRO.BG) broadcasts pursuant to a natioahle registration that is valid for an indefiniiime period and also has a muatry digital terrestrial license that expire
January 2025. BTV CINEMA, BTV COMEDY and RING.BGatebroadcast pursuant to a national cable regmstréttat is valid for an indefinite time period.NRB.BG also has
digital terrestrial license that expires in Jun@20BTV LADY, which was launched in January 2018ducasts pursuant to a national cable registratiahis valid for a
indefinite time period.

Croatia: NOVA TV (Croatia) broadcasts pursuant to a natldarrestrial license granted by the Croatian Meéibuncil, the Electronic Media Council, which ewgiin April 202¢
DOMA (Croatia) broadcasts pursuant to a nationagtrial license that expires in January 2026.

Czech Republic Our channels in the Czech Republic operate uadeariety of licenses granted by the Czech Repwédia Council, The Council for Radio and Televit
Broadcasting. TV NOVA (Czech Republic) broadcastdar a national terrestrial license that expire3anuary 2025. TV NOVA (Czech Republic) may alsselcast pursuant
a satellite license that expires in December 200VA CINEMA broadcasts pursuant to a national tetniel digital license that expires in 2023. NOVANEMA also broadcas
via satellite pursuant to a license that is vafitiilNovember 2019. NOVA SPORT broadcasts purstmatlicense that allows for both satellite andieatansmission that expi
in October 2020, and MTV CZECH broadcasts purstmat satellite license that expires in October 202ANDA broadcasts pursuant to a satellite licethse expires in Jut
2024 and a national terrestrial license that esgimeAugust 2023. SMICHOV broadcasts pursuantriatéonal terrestrial license that expires in Deceni#t24. TELKA broadcas
pursuant to a national terrestrial license thatresg-ebruary 2025.

Romania: PRO TV broadcasts pursuant to a network of regiand local analog licenses granted by the Romaviedia Council, the National Audidisual Council. PRO T'
also broadcasts using a national satellite lice@&. other Romanian channels (ACASA, ACASA GOLD, ®RINEMA, SPORT.RO, MTV ROMANIA and PRO 1
INTERNATIONAL) each has a national satellite licen&icenses for our Romanian operations expire atesdranging from April 2013 to July 2021 and aeefved routine
upon application to the Romanian Media Council.nF2009, the Romanian Media Council may only extéredvalidity of an analog terrestrial license uttié date of the digit
switchover, which is expected to occur in 2015. PROand SPORT.RO also broadcast in hatgfinition pursuant to experimental terrestriaéfises that are valid until the dig
switchover. ACASA broadcasts in higlefinition pursuant to a written consent from thedi& Council and ACASA GOLD broadcasts pursuarg t@tional satellite license t|
expires in April 2021. PRO TV Chisinau Moldova bdoasts pursuant to an analog license granted bjdke-Visual Coordinating Council of the Republic of Moid tha
expires in September 2015.
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Slovak Republic TV MARKIZA broadcasts pursuant to a national thgilicense granted by the Council for Broadcasting Retransmission, the Media Council of the 3
Republic, which is valid for an indefinite periddOMA (Slovak Republic), DAJTO and FOOOR each br@stipursuant to national digital licenses thatvaitiel for an indefinit
period.

Slovenia: Our Slovenian channels POP TV, KANAL A and chdartkeat make up the POP NOBIFOP subscription package each have licenses dgraptthe Post and Electro
Communications Agency of the Republic of Slovetti@, Slovenia Media Council, that allow for broadtagson any platform, including digital, cable asatellite. These licens
are valid for an indefinite time period.

MEDIA PRO ENTERTAINMENT

We created the Media Pro Entertainment (“MP&yment by integrating our existing production afiens with those of the Media Pro Entertainmersifess that we acquirec
December 2009.

Delivering content that consistently generates fagtience shares is crucial to maintaining the esgof our broadcast operations. While contentissdjdrom the Hollywoo
studios remains popular, our audiences increasidgipand content that is produced in their locafjlmge and which reflects their society, attituded eulture. We belie\
developing and producing local content is key tm@ppesuccessful in prime time and supporting mat&atling channels. Maintaining a regular streanocél content at the lowe
possible cost is operationally important over thegkterm, and gives us the opportunity to accorhghss goal.

The fragmentation of distribution platforms presenéw possibilities to diversify revenues from therent model, where the value of content is pradantly realized throuc
advertising revenues on traditional linear broati;a® new sources of revenues such as pay TVowdelemand, direct downloads, international sales, lzowe vide
exploitation.

We are well positioned to exploit these opportesitiWe have created a fully integrated productigsiress that allows us to develop, produce andhilig¢ content to maximi:
revenues under the new model and provides seveyadvantages to enable us to maintain a high bafmuality content.

Media Pro Entertainment is organized into two besies:

Production: This business includes the fiction and realitgl ntertainment reporting unit and the productienvises reporting unit, which together provide #ssets and expert
to develop and produce a range of fiction, realitg entertainment programming and films, using lioinsed formats as well as original formats.

Our business model enables us to produce acrosg eoantries and gives us the scale to deliver gelaolume of quality content to our broadcasterthatiowest possible co
Our position in the market enables us to produceert that may be easily adapted for use acrosralemarkets and in many revengenerating windows. The result is loy
overall costs to our broadcasters without comprimgitigh production values while also allowing vsgenerate higher margin revenues from the expitmitaof our produce
content in other ways, such as the sale of finistedent and formats internationally and commissibproductions. We expect that we will continuentastly produce shows 1
our own broadcasters.

Our production services operations, including siugfiaces, set design and construction, cameraintiglgrip equipment, visual effects, costumes paost production service
allow us to achieve cost efficiencies. In most of markets we own or lease all, or substantiallycdlthe facilities and assets necessary for petidn. This base of assets
professional expertise can be pooled in order tginmae asset usage and take best advantage of gmiiteage opportunities between territories. lditdn, our operations
Romania also act as full scale production servitesiders to local and international production ke#s which generate additional third party revenues

Distribution: This business acquires rights to international fdnd television content across our region and idigegs them both to third party clients and to buwadcas
operations and also sells finished content and dsmndeveloped by our fiction and reality and eatarhent production operations to third parties.utnfsom our distributio
business throughout the creative process enabkesraximize the attractiveness of our producedertrin international markets.

Our distribution operations are also able to gdeetts@irdparty revenue by distributing content through theatrical and home video operations. MPE owns gradates eleve
cinema screens in Romania. In addition, our hondeovidistribution business sells DVD and Bay discs to wholesale and retail clients in thed@zRepublic, the Slov
Republic, Romania and Hungary. A significant partad our distribution revenues are to third parties

In total, the MPE segment currently generates #jighore than half of its revenues from sales to Broadcast segment. For that reason, the finanesailts of the segment .
largely dependent on the performance of televiaivertising markets.
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NEW MEDIA

We currently own and operate over 70 websites aaas markets and we have launched our videdesmand service, Voyo, with two principal objectivesbuild a strong onlir
vehicle for distributing popular content and to @te an efficient marketing tool for our Broadcasgment. The New Media segment focuses on offetimgers the choice
watching our premium television content anytimeyveimere and building a series of portals, rangigifigeneral information to news, sports or nichesiteb. Revenues genere
by the New Media segment are primarily derived fithm sale of advertising.

During 2012, we focused on the buddt of Voyo, our content aggregation and distributplatform that offers consumers transactionaladbcription content. We operate V
in each of our territories and we aim to improve library of available content and to increaserithistion. As it has already exceeded 100,000 sitbst; we believe that Vo
will greatly enhance our reach and allows us tthiermonetize our audience in each country thrquagth online content.

In addition, we improved the core products of oewNMedia portfolio: news portals, niche websited gelevisionrelated websites. Our target is to achieve comdiggwth o
monthly and daily visitors in order to increaseemwes as well as improve the number of adverticliegts and consequently, to outperform the lostdrnet advertising mark
growth. We recently launched a series of produmtsifnart devices as part of our strategy to inerélas time our users spend consuming content teatelver. During 2012 v
increased the average number of monthly visitor&@%s, and the average daily non-duplicated unidsieovs by 14%, year-on-year.

We aim to become one of the top three local newiangldyers in each of our broadcast countries imseof audience, an achievement that we have airaacomplished |
Slovenia and Romania. According to local monitorsegvices, the largest players in our marketsaual pportals with a fulscale portfolio of online products from email arelus
to niche websites, search engines and news siggatef by publishing houses with a strong prins@nee.

OTHER INFORMATION

Employees

As of December 31, 201,2ve had a total of approximately 4,500 employé&sdyding contractors). None of our employees ereémployees of any of our subsidiaries are co
by a collective bargaining agreement. We belieae ¢hur relations with our employees are good.

Corporate Information

CME Ltd. was incorporated in 1994 under the lawdefmuda. Our registered offices are located ata@HHouse, 3 Bermudiana Road, Hamilton HM 08, Belanand ot
telephone number is +1-441-29831. Communications can also be sent c/o CME M8diaices Ltd. at Krizeneckeho nam. 1078/5, 15P&ha 5, Czech Republic, teleph
number +420-242-465-525. CME's Class A common stikted on the NASDAQ Global Select Market ahel Prague Stock Exchange under the ticker symbeT{C.
Financial Information by Operating Segment and by Gographical Area

For financial information by operating segment gedgraphic area, see Part Il, ltem 8, Note 18, ({&ed Data”.

Available Information

We make available, free of charge, on our websitgtp://www.cme.net our Annual Reports on FormKL0Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reportd=orm 8K anc
amendments to those reports as soon as reasomablicable after we electronically file such maewiith, or furnish it to, the Securities and Exaga Commission.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

This report and the following discussion of risktfars contain forwardboking statements as discussed on page 2 ofépitr Our actual results may differ materiallynfréhos:
anticipated in these forwatdeking statements as a result of certain factoduding the risks and uncertainties describedwehnd elsewhere in this report. These risks
uncertainties are not the only ones we may facelitoal risks and uncertainties of which we aré aware, or that we currently deem immaterial, ralp become importe
factors that affect our financial condition, resudf operations and cash flows.

Risks relating to our financial position

The global recession, credit crisis and concerngarding the Eurozone have adversely affected manfiial position and results of operations; we oainpredict if or whe
economic conditions in the countries in which werafe will recover or how long any recovery mayt.la failure to achieve prompt and lasting recoesriwill continue t
adversely affect our results of operations.

The results of our operations depend heavily orediing revenue, and demand for advertising iscfd by prevailing general and regional econorar@iions. The econorr
uncertainty affecting the global financial markatsl banking system since the beginning of 200%hhdsan adverse impact on economic growth in ouratipg countries acro
Central and Eastern Europe, some of which are csiiftending with recession. There has been a widadpwithdrawal of investment funding from the Gahtind Eastel
European markets and companies with investmenteem, particularly in Bulgaria and Romania. Furnthere, the economic downturn has adversely affectetbumer ar
business spending, access to credit, liquidityestments, asset values and employment rates. Haesese economic conditions have had a materiativegimpact on tr
advertising industries in our markets, leading @ustomers to continue to spend less on advertibeg at the peak period in 2008 as they modifyaydel cancel plans to purch
advertising. This has negatively impacted our faianposition, results of operations and cash flgimse 2008. While GDP and private consumptionrnetti to growth in 2011
most of our operating countries, they weakenednagaring 2012 due to continuing concerns regardigope's sovereign debt crisis, the stability of #urozone, tf
sustainability of the Euro as a common currencytardyrowth prospects of major emerging marketdewetloped market economies globally. As a reudteconomic conditiol
of our operating countries remain challenging. Réeegonomic events related to the continuing sagerdebt crisis in several European Union counthigge highlighted issu
relating to the shortand longterm stability of the Euro as a single currencyoddh the European Union has created external fgratid stability mechanisms to provide liquir
and financial assistance to Eurozone member statédinancial institutions, there can be no asmeahat the recent market disruptions in Europateel to sovereign de
including the increased cost of funding for cer@avernments and financial institutions, will n@ntinue, nor can there be any assurance that fatsistance packages will
available or, even if provided, will be sufficietotstabilize the affected countries and marketsurope or elsewhere. The departure of a country ftee Euro or the dissolution
the Euro by its members could negatively impacthlusginess as well as cause significant volatilityt disruption in the global economy. Any of theseelopments would have
significant negative effect on our financial pasitj results of operations and cash flows.

We face severe liquidity constraints and may rexjaniditional external sources of capital for oubtigervice obligations and to fund our operationbjch may not be availak
or may not be available on acceptable terms.

As at December 31, 2012, we had US$ 140.4 milliboash and cash equivalents; cash used in operatingties was US$ 30.0 milliofor the year ended December 31, 2
The demand for television advertising declined semmur markets and a recovery in the fourth quaft2012 that we expected earlier in 2012 did rmuo because advertisers
not honor previous spending commitments. As a tesut outlook for future periods became less aer@ad we made significant downward revisions in estimates of the ca
flows that our operations will generate in futuexipds. In addition, our cash flow may be furthegatively impacted if payments for foreign prograimgm including to a relate
party supplier, cannot be rescheduled or defefrethe absence of a sustained recovery in theigédevadvertising markets in our region, we expeet our cash flows fro
operating activities will continue to be insuffioteto cover operating expenses and interest payramd we will need other capital resources to fomddebt service and ott
obligations as they become due. Under our indesitwes are able to borrow only limited additional dsrand therefore we are exploring other optionsnfarove our liquidity
including new equity financings, asset sales amddbntinuing renegotiation of payment obligatiorishwva number of major suppliers. In addition, we avaluating furth:
measures to optimize or restructure our cost bésere can be no assurances that our overall fiabperformance will improve, that the steps outlimdove will be successful
improving our liquidity or that there will not beher unanticipated developments that have a negatipact on our liquidity. If there is not a sustad recovery in the televisi
advertising market over the mediuerm, if we are unable to secure additional edfiitsgncing or sell assets on acceptable terms, oareainable to renegotiate payment te
with key suppliers, we may be unable to meet obt dervice obligations and generally fund our opiena some time beyond the next twelve months.

Our operating results will be adversely affectedé cannot generate strong advertising sales.

We generate most of our revenues from the sal@\értising airtime on our television channels. tdition to general economic conditions, other fegtihat may affect o
advertising sales are the pricing of advertisingetias well as audience ratings, changes in progiagnstrategy, changes in audience preferencesctmnnels' technical rea
technological developments relating to media amehdicasting, competition from other broadcasters gpetators of other media platforms, seasonal sréndhe advertisir
market, increased competition for the leisure tohaudiences and shifts in population and otheratgaphics. In addition, the occurrence of disastets of terrorism, civil «
military conflicts or general political instabilitpay create further economic uncertainty that redulvertising spending. The reduction in advegispending in our markets |
had a negative effect on the prices at which wesaintelevision advertising because of pressunedice prices from advertisers and discountingdmpetitors. Advertisir
spending may also be affected by the expansionstiftilition platforms and changing preferencesam fand when people view content and the accompgradivertising. Ot
ability to maintain audience ratings and to geregross rating points, the main unit of sales, alspends on our maintaining investments in telemigfrogramming ar
productions at a sufficient level to continue ttraatt audiences. Significant or sustained redustioninvestments in programming that attracts suattiences or other operat
costs in response to reduced advertising spendirauii markets have had and may continue to havadsarse impact on our television viewing levelsdireed advertisir
spending, discounting of the price of televisiowetising in our markets and competition for raifgom broadcasters seeking to attract similarenadis have had and n
continue to have an adverse impact on our abdityaintain our advertising sales. The significaetlitie in advertising sales has had and could woatio have a material adve
effect on our financial position, results of opemas and cash flows.
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We may not be successful in our attempts to diyeasd enhance our revenues.

We are focused on creating additional revenue rsise@s well as enhancing revenues generated froadast advertising, which is how we currently gafeethe substant
majority of our revenues. These include increasimgscriber fees from cable and direchtime ("DTH") operators for carriage of our chanragld subscription revenues from
subscription TV and video-odemand ("VOD") offerings. In addition, we have impiented changes to our broadcast advertising galieges that are designed to boost reve
and to support increases in advertising pricessaooor markets. The implementation of certain ef¢hstrategies, such as changes to carriage éemaments and changes to
sales policies, may be regarded as disruptive bylants or platform operators and initially haav@egative impact on our financial position if theyhdraw advertising or refu
to carry our channels. If we are ineffective inasifying our revenue streams, our profitabilitylwbntinue to be dependent primarily on advertisiavenues from our broadc
operations, which places additional pressures orability to generate advertising revenues. Tharelme no assurances that any of these initiatiiedavsuccessful and this
have an adverse impact on our results of operatindash flows.

Our debt service obligations may restrict our ailio fund our operations.

We and certain of our subsidiaries have significhetit service obligations under the Senior Notes@anvertible Notes. As a result of our debt sendbligations and covena
contained in the related indentures, we and otrictsd subsidiaries are restricted under the Seévates and Convertible Notes in the manner in tvioiar business is conduct
including but not limited to our ability to obta&mditional financing to fund future working capjtehpital expenditures, business opportunitiesaiher corporate requirements
addition, the covenants contained in the indentgmeerning the Senior Notes restrict the manner etent to which we can provide financial supporicértain subsidiarie
Furthermore, we may have a proportionally higheell®f debt than our competitors, which may puaitia competitive disadvantage. Servicing our hiyel of debt may limit ot
flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, change our business, economic conditions and ourstrgu

A further downgrading of our ratings may adversafiect our ability to raise additional financin

Our corporate credit is currently rated as B3 withegative outlook and the 2017 Fixed Rate Notesaed Ba3 by Moody's Investors Services. Ouraratp credit is current
rated CCC+ with a negative outlook, the 2016 FiRede Notes are rated CCC and the 2017 Fixed RaesNwoe rated CCC+ by Standard & Poor's. Thesegstieflect eac
agency's opinion of our financial strength, opagiperformance and ability to meet our debt ohiiyet as they become due. Credit rating agenciesmomitor companies ve
closely and have made liquidity and the key ratissociated with it, such as gross leverage rapargécular priority. We may not be able to openatth sufficient liquidity in th
next twelve months to maintain our current ratiffgmarket conditions in our operating territories dot improve, if we do not raise additional equtyif we are not able
complete other measures to optimize costs. Ourcbpse in 2012 of a portion of our outstanding idéness through equity financings from existingreholders resulted in
improvement of our balance sheet and the refingnafrcertain indebtedness has improved our matpritfile. However, we still may be subject to paiaifurther downgrades
we fail to maintain adequate levels of liquidity. the event our debt or corporate credit ratingslawered by the ratings agencies, it will be maiféicult for us to refinanc
indebtedness or raise new indebtedness that mpgrb@tted under our indentures and we will havpay higher interest rates, which would have an egveffect on our financi
position, results of operations and cash flows.

If our goodwill, indefinit-lived intangible assets and long-lived assets becionpaired, we may be required to record signiftozimarges to earnings.

We review our long-lived assets for impairment wleents or changes in circumstances indicate thgieg amount may not be recoverable. Goodwill amikfinite-lived
intangible assets are required to be tested fomimment at least annually. Factors that may beidersd a change in circumstances indicating thatcirrying amount of o
goodwill, indefinite-lived intangible assets or loniyed assets may not be recoverable include slgn@sth rates in our markets, reduced expecteddutash flows and increas
country risk premium as a result of political urte@rty and a decline in stock price and markettedipation. We recorded an impairment charge of 83%.5 millionin respect ¢
goodwill, tangible and intangible assets in thegdula, Czech Republic, Romania and Slovak Repisti@dcast reporting units during the three montited December 31, 2C
as a result of significant downward revisions i estimates of the cash flows our operations wélherate in future periods. We consider availableeot information whe
calculating our impairment charge. If there areidatbrs of impairment, our longrm cash flow forecasts for our operations detet@or discount rates increase, we ma
required to recognize additional impairment chaigdater periods.

Changes to our business could result in futurescostharges.

We periodically adjust our business strategy ipoese to particular events and circumstances,dimgjueconomic conditions, industry changes andrelciyical developments,
reflected by the change in our reporting segmeatsirsg January 1, 2013 (see Part I, Item 8, N@€'Segment Data"). In connection with the impletagan of new strategie
we may decide to restructure certain of our opemati business or assets in order to optimize ositr stoucture and capture operating efficiencieshSavents could result
restructuring and other charges and the incurrefeeditional costs or may require significant ngaraent time to implement. If any such charges atenal, they could have
adverse impact on our results of operations ani fbaws.

A default by us in connection with our obligatiamgler our outstanding indebtedness could resuitininability to continue to conduct our busine

Pursuant to the terms of the indentures goverriiag2016 Fixed Rate Notes and the Convertible Netegpledged all of the shares in CME NV and sultistéy all of the share
of CME BV, which together own substantially all the interests in our operating subsidiaries, asriggdor the notes. In addition, pursuant to thdenture governing the 2C
Fixed Rate Notes, we pledged our ownership inteies€ET 21 and substantially all of CET 21's asdetluding shares of CME Slovak Holdings B.V. awehership interests
Media Pro Pictures s.r.o. If we or our restrictebssdiaries were to default under the terms of @frthe indentures governing such notes, the seqagtes under such indentu
would have the ability to sell all or a portiontbe assets pledged to them in order to pay amawtssanding under such debt instruments. In addifiothe event of a defa
under the indenture governing the 2017 Fixed Rated\ the secured parties thereunder can enfoairsagssets that are not part of the collaterahi® other Senior Notes or
Convertible Notes, including the shares and businé€ET 21. Any such event would have a matedakese effect on our financial position, result®pérations and cash flows.
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We may be unable to refinance our existing indetgssl and may not be able to obtain favorable refirey terms.

We face the risk that our indebtedness will noabke to be renewed, repaid or refinanced when aiuthat the terms of any renewal or refinancind nalt be as favorable as
terms of such indebtedness being refinanced. T$ksis exacerbated by the current volatility in ttapital markets, which has resulted in tighteresaling requirements and
some cases the inability to refinance indebtedriesthe third quarter of 2012, we successfully ctatgul transactions to repurchase approximately 8&8lmillion aggrega
principal amount of certain of our outstanding ibigelness and refinanced the 2013 Convertible Nitdsthe 2014 Floating Rate Notes. Nonethelesstilv@ave a substanti
amount of indebtedness, including approximately @6%.0 million of 2015 Convertible Notes that maton November 15, 2015.

In addition, following the termination of the Irresable Voting Deed and Proxy dated May 18, 2009renam affiliate of Time Warner, Ronald Lauder aedain of his affiliate
and us (the “voting agreementiyhich is expected to occur in May 2013, Time Wamwweuld no longer be subject to an agreement notwio more than 49.9% of our voti
securities. The acquisition by Time Warner (or attyer person or group (as such term is definedeittiéh 13(d)(3) of the Exchange Act)) of more ti589% of our outstandir
shares of Class A common stock would constitutenddmental change under the indenture governing@fhé Convertible Notes. If such a fundamental geawccurs, we wou
need to repurchase or refinance the 2015 Conwverfibkes in the event the holders thereof exertisg tepurchase option under the indenture govgrtiie 2015 Convertib
Notes. If we were unable to repurchase or refinanrendebtedness on acceptable terms or at almight be forced to dispose of assets on disadgantss terms or reduce
suspend operations, any of which would materiaily adversely affect our financial condition, reswf operations and cash flows.

Fluctuations in exchange rates may adversely affacresults of operation:

Our reporting currency is the dollar but our coigaied revenues and costs, including programmiglgtsiexpenses and interest on debt, are dividebsier range of currenci
The Senior Notes are denominated in euros. We havattempted to hedge the foreign exchange expasurthe principal amount of these notes. Furthegmoontinuini
instability in the Eurozone may increase our expgdsa currency fluctuations. We may continue toesignce significant gains and losses on the tréoslaf our revenues or t
Senior Notes into dollars due to movements in exghaates between the euro (which has sufferedfiseymt depreciation against the U.S. dollar inercmonths), the currenc
of our local operations and the U.S. dollar. We raggerience significant gains and losses on theslation of our revenues or the Senior Notes int®. dollars due to moveme
in exchange rates between the euro, applicablé doceency and the U.S. dollar, which may have demial adverse effect on our financial positiorsuiés of operations and c:
flows.

Risks relating to our operations
Programming content may become more expensiveotiupe or acquire or we may not be able to devetagcquire content that is attractive to our audiest

Television programming is one of the most significaomponents of our operating costs. The abilitgrogramming to generate advertising revenuesntEpsubstantially on o
ability to develop, produce or acquire programmtimat matches audience tastes and attracts highraxedshares, which is difficult to predict. The ooencial success of a progr
depends on several tangible and intangible factoctyding the impact of competing programs, thailability of alternate forms of entertainment deibure time activities, o
ability to anticipate and adapt to changes in coresutastes and behavior, and general economic toamsli Furthermore, the cost of acquiring contetraetive to our viewer
such as feature films and popular television sexiebformats, has increased as a result of greatepetition from existing and new television broasting channels at the se
time as our revenues from advertising has declifed. expenditures in respect of locally producesgprmming may also increase due to the implementatf new laws ar
regulations mandating the broadcast of a greaterbeu of locally produced programs, changes in awdietastes in our markets in favor of locally proghl content, ar
competition for talent. In addition, we typicallgcuire syndicated programming rights under mydté commitments before we can predict whether gwolgramming wil
perform well in our markets. In the event any spaygramming does not attract adequate audience,sharay be necessary to increase our expendityr@s/esting in addition
programming, subject to the availability of adeguiihancial resources, as well as to write downualeie of such underperforming programming. Anyréase in programmil
costs or writedowns could have a material adverse effect oninan€ial condition, results of operations and déshs.

Our operating results are dependent on the impaeaof television as an advertising medium.

We generate most of our revenues from the sale\artising airtime on television channels in ourkets. Television competes with various other meslizgh as print, radio, t
internet and outdoor advertising, for advertisipgraling. In all of the countries in which we operaelevision constitutes the single largest corepbof all advertising spendir
There can be no assurances that the televisiontaitvg market will maintain its current positiomang advertising media in our markets. Furthermitvere can be no assurar
that changes in the regulatory environment or im@neents in technology will not favor other advéntismedia or other television broadcasters. In@g#&s competition amol
advertising media arising from the development @i fiorms of advertising media and distribution cbresult in a decline in the appeal of televisisnaa advertising medic
generally or of our channels specifically. A deelin television advertising spending as a compongétdtal advertising spending in any period ospecific markets would ha
an adverse effect on our financial position, resoftoperations and cash flows.

Our businesses are vulnerable to significant chariggechnology that could adversely affect us.

The television broadcasting industry is affectedrépid innovations in technology. The implementataf new technologies and the introduction of bozesting distributio
systems other than analog terrestrial broadcassingh) as digital terrestrial television ("DTT") bdrasting, direct-tome cable and satellite distribution systems,inbernet
video-on-demand, usgrenerated content sites and the availability @vielon programming on portable digital devicesiehahanged consumer behavior by increasing the el
of entertainment choices available to audiencesthadmethods for the distribution, storage and eomtion of content. This has fragmented televisimdiences in mo
developed markets and could adversely affect ollityato retain audience share and attract advensisis such technologies penetrate our markets.b\siness initiatives of ot
to expand our distribution capabilities to adapthanging patterns of consumption of content maybeoembraced by consumers and therefore may wetageinto profitabl
business models. New technologies that enable vietwechoose when, how, where and what contentitohyas well as to fastrward or skip advertisements, may cause ché
in consumer behavior that could impact our busieesk addition, compression techniques and ot#f@miblogical developments allow for an increasthénumber of channe
that may be broadcast in our markets and expandepigmming offerings that may be offered to higtalsgeted audiences. Reductions in the cost of lingadditional channe
could lower entry barriers for new channels andoerege the development of increasingly targetedheniprogramming on various distribution platformsurQelevisior
broadcasting operations may be required to expebdtantial financial and managerial resources Buennecessary access to new broadcasting teciemlog distributio
systems. In addition, an expansion in competitioa b technological innovation may increase cortipatfor audiences and advertising revenue
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as well as the competitive demand for programméry. requirement for substantial further investmienaddress competition that arises on accountcbhtaogical innovations
broadcasting may have an adverse effect on oundiabposition, results of operations and cash $low

Piracy of our content may decrease revenues wesaemfrom our content and adversely impact our hess and profitability

Piracy of our content poses significant challerigesur markets. Technological developments, inelgdiigital copying, file compressing, the use déinational proxies and t
growing penetration of high bandwidth internet cections, have made it easier to create, transrdidéstribute high quality unauthorized copies ofitemt in unprotected digit
formats. Furthermore, there are a growing numbeid#fo streaming sites, increasing the threat éheriransmission of our content without conseifie ‘proliferation of such sit
broadcasting pirated content could result in a cgédo of revenues that we receive from the legitereale and distribution of our content, includiegenues generated by Vo
our subscription VOD service and other revenueastge Protection of our intellectual property is elegent on the manner in which applicable intell@cproperty laws in tk
countries in which we operate are construed andread. We seek to limit the threat of content pirddowever, detecting and policing the unauthorimed of our intellectu
property is often difficult and remedies may beitéd under applicable law. Steps we take may netgnt the infringement by third parties. There bamo assurance that
efforts to enforce our rights and protect our ietetlal property will be successful in preventirigapy, which limits our ability to generate revesdem our content.

We rely on network and information systems andrdagwhnology that may be subject to disruption @use, which could harm our business or our repaitat

We make extensive use of network and informatiostesys and other technologies, included those tkelateour internal network management as well asNenw Medi:
operations. These systems are central to manyrdbuginess activities. Network and information epstrelated events, such as computer hackings, computeses, worms (
other destructive or disruptive software, procegsmkdowns, malicious activities or other securitgdzhes could result in a disruption or degradatioour services, the loss
information or the improper disclosure of persaiatia. The occurrence of any of these events caddtively impact our business by requiring us tpegx] resources to reme
such a security breach or by harming our reputatioraddition, improper disclosure of personal datald subject us to liability under laws that jeaitpersonal data in t
countries in which we operate. The development mathtenance of systems to prevent these events damarring requires ongoing monitoring and updatisgefforts t
overcome security measures become more sophisticasetechnologies evolve, we will need to expedditional resources to protect our technology arfdrmation system
which could have an adverse impact on our res@ibperations.

We may seek to make acquisitions of other channetsyorks, content providers or other companieshim future, and we may fail to acquire them on ptalgle terms c
successfully integrate them or we may fail to idgisuitable targets.

Our business and operations have grown in partgfir@acquisitions. While we continue to explore asitjon opportunities, prospective competitors neaye greater financi
resources than we do, and increased competitiotafget broadcasters or other media businessesedage the number of potential acquisitions thateaailable on accepta
terms.

If we acquire new businesses, their integration aur existing operations poses significant righsluding:

e  additional demands placed on our senior managemvantare also responsible for managing our exisijperations
. increased overall operating complexity of our basses, requiring greater personnel and other

e difficulties in expanding beyond our core expertiséhe event that we acquire ancillary busine:

e  significant initial cash expenditures to acquird artegrate new businesses;

. in the event that debt is incurred to finance asitjons, additional debt service costs relatedetweas well as limitations that may arise underitidentures governing t
Senior Notes.

To manage our growth effectively and achieve gwguisition performance objectives, we would neemtegrate new acquisitions into our existing hasses, implement financ
and management controls and produce required fimestatements for those operations. The integraifinew businesses may also be difficult due tieiing cultures, languag
or management styles, poor internal controls anthalnility to establish control over cash flowsaly acquisition and integration is not implemergadcessfully, our ability
manage our growth will be impaired and we may hi@avenake significant additional expenditures to addrthese issues, which could harm our financisitipo, results ¢
operations and cash flows. Furthermore, even ifiveesuccessful in integrating new businesses, &égbaynergies and cost savings may not materiakzseyting in lower the
expected cash flows and profit margins.

The transition to digital television broadcastingyrequire substantial additional investments amel ¢ffectiveness of such investments is uncertain.

Countries in which we have operations are migraftiom analog terrestrial broadcasting to DTT braesting. Each country has independent plans faligisal switchover with it
own timeframe, operating model and regulatory awv&stment regime. Croatia, the Czech RepublicStbeak Republic and Slovenia have completed théograwitchoff. The
migration to digital broadcasting in Bulgaria ipexted to be completed in September 2013 and inaR@anwhich is in the initial stages of migrati@ompletion is expected
2015. We cannot predict the full effect of the ratgpn to DTT broadcasting on existing operationshertake up of DTT broadcasting by their audienés also cannot pred
whether all of our operations will receive rightsliocenses to broadcast any existing or additiahainnels if additional rights or licenses to suatelcasting should be requiret
those countries that have not completed the digiétichover. Our operations may be required to nwltestantial investment and commit substantialratb&ources to impleme
DTT broadcasting and secure distribution in advaoic&nowing the take up of DTT broadcasting versospeting alternative distribution systems, suctdiasct-tohome
platforms. We may not have access to resourceisignffto make such investments when required.

We may not be aware of all related party transatiovhich may involve risks of conflicts of intértést result in transactions being concluded osslévorable terms than co
be obtained in arm'dength transactions.

In certain of our markets, the officers, generakctiors or other members of the management of parating companies have other business interestiiding interests

television and other medieelated companies. We may not be aware of all legsiinterests or relationships that exist witheesfo entities with which our operating compa
enter into transactions. Transactions with companidether or not we are aware of any businestiaeship between our employees and third partiesy present conflicts

interest which may in turn result in the conclusariransactions on terms that are not arieisgth. It is likely that we and our subsidiariedl wontinue to enter into related pa
transactions in the future. In the event thereti@esactions with persons who subsequently arerdeted to be related parties, we may be requiraddke additional disclost
and, if such contracts are material, may not mmpliance with certain
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covenants under the indentures governing the S&utes. Any related party transaction that is esttento on terms that are not araés1gth may result in a negative impac
our financial position, results of operations aadtcflows.

Our broadcasting licenses may not be renewed andhbmaubject to revocation.

We require broadcasting and, in some cases, offemating licenses as well as other authorizatioos fnational regulatory authorities in our markietorder to conduct o
broadcasting business. Our broadcasting licensesufooperations in Slovenia and the Slovak Repudié valid for indefinite time periods and our eening broadcasting licens
expire at various times through 2026. While we expleat our material licenses and authorizatiorishei renewed or extended as required to continugperate our business,
cannot guarantee that this will occur or that thélynot be subject to revocation, particularlyrimarkets where there is relatively greater polititsi as a result of less develo
political and legal institutions. The failure toraply in all material respects with the terms ofdmcasting licenses or other authorizations or wjiplications filed in respe
thereto may result in such licenses or other aithtions not being renewed or otherwise being teateid. Furthermore, no assurances can be giveretiatals or extensions
existing licenses will be issued on the same texmexisting licenses or that further restrictionsanditions will not be imposed in the future. Angnrenewal or termination
any other broadcasting or operating licenses @raththorizations or material modification of tkeemis of any renewed licenses may have a matenalse effect on our financ
position, results of operations and cash flows.

Our operations are in developing markets whereehgm risk of economic uncertainty, biased treatnaad loss of business.

Our revenuegenerating operations are located in Central arsleEa Europe where we must comply with various leggty obligations related to our businesses, iicg ir
respect of broadcasting and competition. We belibe¢ we are in compliance with all our regulatofyligations in all material respects but it is poissible to predict hc
regulatory authorities or courts that have beemay be asked teesolve any allegations or claims will decide siggues. Our markets pose different risks to thaseg b
investments in more developed markets and the itripasur markets of unforeseen circumstances omao@, political or social life is greater. The aomic and politice
systems, legal and tax regimes, standards of catg@@overnance and business practices of couimtriggs region continue to develop. Governmentgefi may be subject
significant adjustments, especially in the evena @hange in leadership. This may result in samiglolitical instability or disruptions, potentipblitical influence on the med
inconsistent application of tax and legal regulagioarbitrary treatment before judicial or othegulatory authorities and other general business riany of which could have
material adverse effect on our financial positi@sults of operations and cash flows. Other paiknigks inherent in markets with evolving economi political environmer
include exchange controls, higher tariffs and otbeies as well as longer payment cycles. Theiveldevel of development of our markets and théuerice of local politici
parties also present a potential for biased treatimieus before regulators or courts in the evémtisputes involving our investments. If such gpdi® occurs, those regulator:
courts might favor local interests over our intéseblItimately, this could lead to the loss of aremore of our business operations. The loss otenal business would have
adverse impact on our financial position, resultsperations and cash flows.

Our success depends on attracting and retainingpleegonnel.

Our success depends partly upon the efforts anitiesbof our key personnel and our ability to attrand retain key personnel. Our management teamessignificant experien
in the media industry and have made important dmrttons to our growth and success. Although weehbgen successful in attracting and retaining qadple in the pa:
competition for highly skilled individuals is intse. There can be no assurance that we will contimbe successful in attracting and retaining sodfviduals in the future. Tt
loss of the services of any of these individualsiddave an adverse effect on our businessestsedidperations and cash flows.

Risks Relating to Enforcement Rights
We are a Bermuda company and enforcement of @hilities and judgments may be difficult.

CME Ltd. is a Bermuda company. Substantially albaf assets and all of our operations are locaed,all of our revenues are derived, outside thitedrStates. In additic
several of our directors and all of our officere apbnresidents of the United States, and all or a snbatgortion of the assets of such persons amay be located outside !
United States. As a result, investors may be @nabhffect service of process within the Unitedt& upon such persons, or to enforce against jindgments obtained in t
United States courts, including judgments preditateon the civil liability provisions of the UniteStates federal and state securities laws. Tisenedertainty as to whether
courts of Bermuda and the countries in which weratgewould enforce (i) judgments of United Statesrts obtained against us or such persons predicgen the civil liabilit
provisions of the United States federal and staterdties laws or (ii) in original actions broughtsuch countries, liabilities against us or suehspns predicated upon the Un
States federal and state securities laws.

Our bye-laws restrict shareholders from bringingdéaction against our officers and directors.

Our byefaws contain a broad waiver by our shareholdeengfclaim or right of action in Bermuda, both indivally and on our behalf, against any of our @&f&or directors. Tt
waiver applies to any action taken by an officedivector, or the failure of an officer or director take any action, in the performance of his ar duties, except with respec
any matter involving any fraud or dishonesty on plaet of the officer or director. This waiver limithe right of shareholders to assert claims agaimsofficers and directc
unless the act or failure to act involves fraudiishonesty.

Risks Relating to our Common Stock
Our share price may be adversely affected by sa#lesrestricted shares or future issuances of daras.

As at February 20, 2013, we had a total of 2.2ionilbptions to purchase Class A common stock audgtg, 0.1 million options to purchase shares @fs€IB common sto
outstanding and 584,000 nonvested restricted sinitk outstanding. In 2007 we issued 1,275,227gistered shares of Class A common stock to Igoo#wlisky. Adrian Sark
beneficially owns 2,443,867 unregistered shareSlags A common stock and warrants to purchase ditiaathl 850,000 unregistered shares of Class Arsomstock. An affiliat
of Apax Partners holds 3,168,566 unrestricted shafeClass A common stock. Ronald Lauder benefic@avns 3,016,936 unrestricted shares of Class rAnaon stock and ¢
additional 2,000,000 unregistered shares of ClassmrAmon stock for which he has registration rights affiliate of Time Warner holds 32,898,443 uristgred shares of Clas:
common stock and one share of Series A conventitdéerred stock, which is convertible into 11,248 4hares of Class A common stock. Time Warnerégistration right
with respect to a significant majority of its sheu Class A
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common stock. The 2015 Convertible Notes are cdifpkerinto shares of our Class A common stock aradune on November 15, 2015. Prior to August 15,42Qh4e 201
Convertible Notes will be convertible following tain events and from that date at any time to Ndani5, 2015. Furthermore, we are exploring thesipdity of new equit'
financings to improve our liquidity. We cannot pi@dwvhat effect, if any, an issuance of shares wf Glass A common stock, or the entry into tradifigoreviously issue
unregistered or restricted shares of Class A comstaek, will have on the market price of our shatesiore shares of common stock are issued, tbaanic interests of curre
shareholders may be diluted and the price of careshmay be adversely affected.

The interests of our controlling shareholders mawftict with the interests of other shareholders.

Ronald Lauder, our founder and Chairman of the 8adrDirectors, owns or has voting control over mpgmately 56.3% of our outstanding common stoclt an affiliate o
Time Warner holds a 49.9% economic interest inTi majority of Mr. Lauder's voting power is attribble to the voting agreement whereby Mr. Laudegenerally entitled
vote all 32,898,443 shares of Class A common samckone share of Series A convertible preferreckswhich is entitled to one vote for each of ttig2111,449 shares of Clas:
common stock into which it is convertible) benedli owned by Time Warner, as well as any othevwfshares acquired by Time Warner during the tefrthe voting agreemel
On the termination of the voting agreement, whkipected to occur in May 2013, Time Warner valldble to exercise the full voting power of its3%.interest in us. Prior
the expiration of the voting agreement, Mr. Lauderand after its expiration Time Warner will ba,a position to exercise significant influence otlee outcome of corpor:
actions requiring shareholder approval, such aekbetion of directors or certain transactions. €mBermuda law, there is no takeover code or singigislation requiring &
acquirer of a certain percentage of CME commonkstod¢ender for the remaining publically held sisar@ certain circumstances, the interests of Muder or Time Warner,
controlling shareholders could be in conflict wille interests of minority shareholders.

The price of our Class A common stock is likelgetnain volatile.

The market price of shares of our Class A commoaoksinay be influenced by many factors, some of flaiee beyond our control, including those descritleolve underRisks
Relating to our Operationgls well as the following: general economic and s trends, variations in quarterly operatingltgslicense renewals, regulatory developmer
our operating countries and the European Uniong¢timelition of the media industry in our operatirmgictries, the volume of trading in shares of owasSIA common stock, futt
issuances of shares of our Class A common stoclknaedtors' and securities analysts' perceptiarsaind other companies that investors or secustiab/sts deem comparablt
the television broadcasting industry. In additistgck markets in general have experienced extrprive and volume fluctuations that have often beerelated to ar
disproportionate to the operating performance oflicasting companies. These broad market andtigdastors may materially reduce the market potehares of our Class
common stock, regardless of our operating perfooman

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

17




Index

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We own and lease properties in the countries irclwiae operate. These facilities are fully utiliZed current operations, are in good condition arel adequately equipped
purposes of conducting broadcasting, content ptagtuor such other operations as we require. Weetelthat suitable additional space is availableacteptable terms in t
event of an expansion of our businesses. The bebav provides a brief description of our signifitproperties.

Location

Property

Use

Hamilton, Bermuda
Amsterdam, The Netherlands

Sofia, Bulgaria

Zagreb, Croatia

Prague, Czech Republic
Bucharest and other key cities within Romania
Bratislava, Slovak Republic

Ljubljana, Slovenia

Leased office
Leased office

Leased buildings

Owned and leased buildings

Owned and leased buildings
Owned and leased buildings
Owned buildings

Owned and leased buildings

Registered office, corporate

Corporate office, corporate

Office and studio space (Broadcast, Media Pro
Entertainment and New Media Segments)

Office and studio space (Broadcast, Media Pro
Entertainment and New Media Segments)

Administrative center, corporate; Office and stushace
(Broadcast, Media Pro Entertainment and New Media
Segments)

Office and studio space (Broadcast, Media Pro
Entertainment and New Media Segments)

Office and studio space (Broadcast, Media Pro
Entertainment and New Media Segments)

Office and studio space (Broadcast, Media Pro
Entertainment and New Media Segments)

For further information on the cash resourcesfilnad these facility-related costs, see Part Imi& 111, "Liquidity and Capital Resources."
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ITEM 3. Legal Proceedings
General

While we are, from time to time, a party to litigat, arbitration or regulatory proceedings arisimghe normal course of our business operationsaneeot presently a party to
such litigation, arbitration or regulatory proce®gliwhich could reasonably be expected to have armaheffect on our business or consolidated fiteratatements, including t
proceeding described below.

Video International termination

On March 18, 2009, Video International Company @rdDGSC (“VI"), a Russian legal entity, filed aichain the London Court of International ArbitratigtLCIA") against oL
wholly-owned subsidiary CME BV, which was, at the time tt@m was filed, the principal holding company afr former Ukrainian operations. The claim relateshe
termination of an agreement between VI and CME Bited November 30, 2006 (the “parent agreememttiich was one of four related contracts by whichsubsidiarie:
including LLC Video International-Prioritet (“Priitet”), supplied advertising and marketing servitesStudio 1+1 LLC (“Studio 1+1"pand certain affiliates. Following t
termination of these agreements on March 24, 280fJio 1+1 was required to pay a termination pgné&h June 1, 2009, Studio 1+1 paid UAH 13.5 mil{@pproximately US
1.7 million) to Prioritet and set off UAH 7.4 mifin (approximately US$ 0.9 million) against amountsng to Studio 1+1 under the advertising and mtamgeservices agreemer
In its LCIA claim, VI sought payment of a separetgemnity from CME BV under the parent agreemerlt 8 58.5 million. On September 30, 2010, a pastiedrd was issued
the arbitration proceedings, pursuant to whichs\dfaim for relief in the amount of US$ 58.5 miflivas dismissed. The partial award does permib\iring a subsequent cle
against CME BV as parent guarantor in the event\Whastablishes that it is entitled to certain iiddal compensation under the advertising and etarg services agreeme
with Studio 1+1 and that such compensation is atisfied by Studio 1+1. On July 13, 2011, Priorftietd claims against Studio 1+1 in the Commer€alrt of Kiev relating t
alleged violations of the advertising services agrent and marketing services agreement and scelggftaf approximately UAH 201.0 million (approxittedy US$ 25.0 million).
On September 23, 2011, the Commercial Court of Kieswmissed Prioritet's claims. On November 7, 2Gh&, Commercial Court of Appeal of Kiev dismissedappeal b
Prioritet of the lower court's decision. On Decemb@, 2011, the Superior Commercial Court of Ukeailismissed an appeal of Prioritet following theisien of the appella
court. On June 5, 2012, the Superior CommercialriGafuJkraine denied Prioritet's request to appgeahe Supreme Court of Ukraine. On June 18, 2Bti@yitet filed a clair
against Studio 1+1 in the Commercial Court of Kileat alleges violations of one of the advertising anarketing services agreements and seeks rélgfpooximately UAH42.2
million (approximately US$ 5.3 milliop On September 7, 2012, the Commercial Court elKiismissed Prioritet's claims. Prioritet appeaisl decision on September 17, 2(
On October 31, 2012, the Commercial Court of Kimmissed Prioritet's appeal. Prioritet has filefdirgher appeal. In addition, on September 28, 2011flled a further claim ii
the LCIA against CME BV, alleging CME BV owes apgiroately US$ 4.0 milliorunder the partial award as an indemnity paymeral&ms Prioritet is owed from Studio 1+1
connection with the termination of the advertisangl marketing services agreements between Studi@id Prioritet. We do not believe that it is likéhat we will be required
make any further payment.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable
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PART Il
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELA TED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Shares of Class A common stock of Central Europdeadia Enterprises Ltd. began trading on the NASDW&ional Market on October 13, 1994 under the trgdiymbc
“CETV".

On June 15, 2012, we issued 2,000,000 shares 8§ @Glaommon stock to RSL Capital LLC and 9,901,868res of Class A common stock to TW Investor. AlsaJune 1!
2012, Time Warner and Ronald Lauder converted thleares of Class B common stock into an equivatemiber of shares of Class A common stock for natiaddl
consideration. On July 3, 2012, we issued to TWe#ter an additional 874,819 shares of our ClassrAngon stock and orghare of Series A convertible preferred stock e
Company, which is convertible into 11,211,449 shafeClass A common stock (see Item 8, Note 13uftgt).

On February 20, 2013 , the last reported saleg jivicshares of Class A common stock was US$ 5.94 .

The following table sets forth the high and lowesaprices for shares of Class A common stock fon gaarterly period during the last two fiscal year

Price Period High (US$ / Share Low (US$ / Share
2012

Fourth Quarter $ 7.0z $ 4.5¢€

Third Quarter 7.71 4.78

Second Quarter 8.94 4.73

First Quarter $ 9.0C $ 5.91
2011

Fourth Quarter $ 12.1¢ $ 6.2F

Third Quarter 19.40 7.81

Second Quarter 23.57 19.11

First Quarter $ 21.2C $ 17.9¢

At February 20, 2013 , there were approximateljh@@lers of record (including brokerage firms angeothominees) of shares of Class A common stock.

7,500,000 shares have been authorized for issuamespect of equity awards under a stock-basegeaosation plan (see Item 8, Note 16, “Stock-Basami2nsation”).
DIVIDEND POLICY

We have not declared or paid and have no prestmition to declare or pay in the foreseeable futumecash dividends in respect to any class ofbares of common stock.
PURCHASE OF OWN STOCK

We did not purchase any of our own stock in 2012 .
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PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following performance graph is a line graph panng the change in the cumulative shareholdermetf the Class A common stock against the curvaldbtal return of th
NASDAQ Composite Index and the Dow Jones World Boaating Index between December 31, 2007 and Dexre®it2012 .

140
120

100

Index Value

40 |

Dec-07 Dec-08 Dec-09 Dec-10 Dec-11 Dec-12

CME Ltd. —ll— NASDAQ Composite

—A— DJ World Broadcasting Index

Value of US$ 100 invested at December 31, 2007 Becember 31, 2012 :

Central European Media Enterprises Ltd. $ e384
NASDAQ Composite Index $ 113.8¢
$ 83.0¢

Dow Jones World Broadcasting Index (1)

(1) This index includes 71 companies, many of whithnont).S. based. Accordingly, we believe that the indoof this index is useful in understanding owrckt performanc
compared to companies in the television broadeastable industry.

21




Index

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Our selected consolidated financial data shoulddael together with our consolidated financial steets and related notes included in Item Binancial Statements a
Supplementary Data” of this Annual Report on FolrKl

The following tables set forth the selected comsad financial data for each of the years in the-year period ended December 31, 20The selected consolidated finan
data is qualified in its entirety and should bedrgmconjunction with Item 7, “Management's Diséaasand Analysis of Financial Condition and Resoft©perations’and Item ¢
“Financial Statements and Supplementary Data”. \Aelderived the consolidated statements of opesagmd comprehensive income data for the yearsdeDdeember 3:
2012 , 2011 and 2010 and the consolidated baldmeet slata as of December 31, 2012 and Zfidh the consolidated audited financial statemémtiided elsewhere in tt
Annual Report on Form 10-K. The consolidated stateisiof operations and comprehensive income datiéoyears ended December 31, 2009 and 20@8he balance sh
data as of December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 veeieed from consolidated audited financial statetsi¢imat are not included in this Annual Report omfr 10-K.

For The Years Ending December 31,
201z 2011 201cC 200¢ 200¢

(US$ 000's, except per share data)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHEN SIVE

INCOME DATA:

Net revenues $ 772,08 $ 864,78: $ 737,13: $ 681,94 $ 920,47¢
Operating (loss) / income (488,19) 6,79z 22,877 (38,97) 183,461
Net (loss) / income from continuing operations (546,39 (179,60 (116,929 (70,987 41,94:
Income / (loss) from discontinued operations — — 213,69 (36,829 (309,42)
Net (loss) / income attributable to CME Ltd $ (53568) $ (17461) $ 100,17¢ $ (97,15) $ (269,54

PER SHARE DATA:

Net (loss) / income per common share from:

Continuing operations - basic $ (6.9¢ $ 271 $ @7y $ 211 $ 0.9¢
Continuing operations - diluted (6.9¢) (2.7)) .77 (2.1)) 0.93
Discontinued operations — basic — — 3.3¢ (0.6¢) (7.32)
Discontinued operations - diluted — — 3.3 (0.6¢) (7.25
Net (loss) / income attributable to CME Ltd. — loasi (6.96€) (2.77) 1.57 (2.79 (6.37%)
Net (loss) / income attributable to CME Ltd. — ¢id $ (6.9 $ 2717 % 157 % @279 $ (6.39)
Weighted average common shares used in computimghpee amounts (000's):

Basic 76,91¢ 64,38t 64,02¢ 54,34« 42,328
Diluted 76,91¢ 64,38t 64,02¢ 54,34¢ 42,683

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET DATA:

Cash and cash equivalents 140,39: 186,38t 244,05( 445,95. 94,42¢
Other current assets 378,15¢ 351,90: 368,03! 435,50 485,08!
Non-current assets 1,656,16 2,143,48 2,328,46! 1,991,32 1,827,10
Total assets 2,174, 71! 2,681,76! 2,940,55! 2,872,78 2,406,61
Current liabilities 291,36 255,57! 243,07t 352,11 248,48
Non-current liabilities 1,252,08. 1,408,25. 1,449,72. 1,348,82! 1,059,68
CME Ltd. shareholders' equity 626,06: 1,001,69: 1,226,87! 1,177,58 1,095,25
Noncontrolling interests 5,20¢ 16,25( 20,87 (5,749 3,187
Total liabilities and equity 2,174,711 2,681,76 2,940,55! 2,872,78 2,406,61
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion should be read in conjiorctvith the sections entitled “Forward-looking ®taents” on page 2 and “Risk Factors'Part |, ltem 1A. Unless the cont
otherwise requires, references in this report &0“ompany”, “CME”, “we”, “us” or “our” refer to Cetral European Media Enterprises Ltd. (‘CME Ltdot) CME Ltd. and it
consolidated subsidiaries listed in Exhibit 21.@%eto.

As used herein, the term “2014 Floating Rate Note&rs to our floating rate senior notes due 2@id;term “2016 Fixed Rate Notesfers to our 11.625% senior notes
2016; the term “2017 Fixed Rate Notes” refers ®3t0D% senior secured notes due 2017 issued bylaily owned subsidiary, CET 21 spol. s r.o. (“CET"); the term Senio
Note¢" refers collectively to the 2014 Floating Rate 8&t2016 Fixed Rate Notes and 2017 Fixed Rate Ntitesterm “2015 Convertible Noteséfers to our 5.0% sen
convertible notes due 2015, the term “2013 ConvlerfNotes” refers to our 3.5% senior convertibléeesalue 2013 and the term “Convertible Notegérs collectively to the 20
Convertible Notes and the 2015 Convertible Noté® fErm “Secured Revolving Credit Facility” reféosthe fiveyear CZK 1.5 billion secured revolving credit fagilentered int
on October 21, 2010 by CET 21 with BNP Paribas, SI#&. Morgan plc, Citigroup Global Markets LindtéNG Bank N.V. and Ceska Sporitelna a.s. ("CSA&'mandated le
arrangers and original lenders, BNP Paribas, SsAagent, BNP Paribas Trust Corporation UK Limitedsacurity agent, and Central European Media EmgesplLtd. ("CME
Ltd.") and our whollyewned subsidiaries Central European Media Entaprid.V. ("CME NV"), CME Media Enterprises B.V. ("GBV"), CME Investments B.V., CM
Slovak Holdings B.V. and MARKIZASLOVAKIA, spol. s r.o., as the original guarantoféie term "TW Loans" refers to amounts drawn urilerTerm Loan Facilities Cre
Agreement dated April 30, 2012 with Time Warner.I¢i@ime Warner"). The term “Preferred Sharefers to the one share of our Series A Convertioéderred Stock, par val
US$ 0.08 per share, held by Time Warner Media HgsliB.V. (“TW Investor”)on July 3, 2012. The term "Equity Commitment Agreeth refers to the Subscription and Eq
Commitment Agreement by and between TW InvestorthedCompany, dated as of April 30, 2012.
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CME Strategy

We enjoy very strong positions in our markets basedrand strength, audience leadership, the demthexperience of local management and our expertithe production
local content. Historically, these strengths hauppsrted price leadership, high margins, and stroperating cash flows. These competitive advantdge® permitted o
operations some measure of resilience in the dueemomic downturn and should provide the oppdttifor us to benefit as and when growth resumes.

Our strategy for the future is based on our aspetsple, brands, audience and market leadershipcontent and growing new distribution platformse e focused on enhanc
the performance of the business over the shortadium term. Our priorities in this regard include:

. developing and producing our own content on a fasgale and distributing this content on multiplgtribution platforms and devices in our region amtérnationally

. maintaining or increasing our audience and matkates in all of our marke

. driving growth in advertising revenues through pricing strategie:

. diversifying our revenues with an increased foaugpay and subscription TV channels and subscriptid@o-ondemand ("VOD");

. maintaining our operating leverage, with a strongus on cost control to protect both profitabilapd liquidity, while safeguarding our brands andnpetitive
strengths;

. generating positive free cash flows;

e optimizing our capital structul

We are prepared to face new challenges and adjustmtegy when new opportunities or threats arise

Structure of Operations

During 2012 we managed our business on a divisioasis with three operating segments: Broadcastijdviero Entertainment, our production and distidoubusiness, and Ne
Media. These operating segments, which were alsseportable segments, reflect how our operatwa® managed by segment managers, how our opepifagrmance ws
evaluated by senior management and the structumumofnternal financial reporting. We provide sugpental geographic information on the performanteus Broadca:

operating segment due to the significance of ooathcast operations to CME Ltd. and managementMaslithis provides users of the financial statemeittsuseful information.

We evaluate the performance of our segments basétbRevenues and OIBDA.
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OIBDA, which includes program rights amortizatioosts, is determined as operating income / (los&réalepreciation, amortization of intangible assatd impairments
assets. Items that are not allocated to our segnfienpurposes of evaluating their performance thedefore are not included in their OIBDA, inclusteckbased compensati
and certain other items.

Our key performance measure of the efficiency ofsmgments is OIBDA margin. We define OIBDA margsithe ratio of OIBDA to Net Revenues. We beli@dBDA is usefu
to investors because it provides a meaningful ssmation of our performance as it excludes ceitains that either do not impact our cash flowsher operating results of ¢
operations. OIBDA is also used as a componengiarthining management bonuses. Intersegment res@maeprofits have been eliminated on consolidation

OIBDA, as defined above, and free cash flow, amddfbelow, may not be comparable to similar messteported by other companies. NBAAP financial measures should
evaluated in conjunction with, and are not a stistifor, US GAAP financial measures. For addiioinformation regarding our business segmentsuding a reconciliation 1
US GAAP financial measures, see Part Il, ltem 8eN@®, “Segment Data”.

Starting in the first quarter of 2013, the Broadcktedia Pro Entertainment and New Media operasigments have been reorganized to streamline teggoaurces and create
new operating segments: Bulgaria, Croatia, the I€&epublic, Romania, the Slovak Republic and Sl@ae@perating our businesses through these geagrapgments wi
enable us to better execute our strategy of digtrip our content on multiple distribution platfosrand devices in a number of windows in each ma#set result, from January
2013 we will change our segment reporting to reéftee way the businesses are now managed and fedsenresults reviewed by the chief operating sieci maker whe
allocating resources and assessing performance.

Summary of Results

The following sections contain references to likedfke (“% Lfl") or constant currency percentage movements. Thésemees reflect the impact of applying the curarioc
average exchange rates to the prior period reveangsosts. Given the significant movement of treencies in the markets in which we operate ag#iesdollar, we believe tr
it is useful to provide percentage movements baselike-for-like or constant currency percentageverents as well as actual (“% Acpgrcentage movements (which inclt

the effect of foreign exchange). Unless otherwiated, all percentage increases or decreases falbwing analysis refer to year-on-year percentabanges.

The following tables provide a summary of our cdidsted results for the years ended December 3112 22011 and 2010 :

For the Years Ending December 31, (US$ 000's)

Movement Movement
201z 2011 % Act % Lfl 2011 201C % Act % Lfl
Net revenues $ 772,088 $ 864,78. (10.7)% (1.6)% $ 864,78 $ 737,13 17.3 % 10.2 %
OIBDA 125,42: 167,00: (24.9)% (16.2)% 167,00: 107,32: 55.6 % 40.2 %
Operating (loss) / income $ (488,19) $ 6,79z Nm® Nm® $ 6,79 $ 22,87 (70.3)% (76.4)%

(1) Number is not meaningful.

Our financial results for 2012 were affected by tthe performance of the economies in our regioterAddjusting for inflation, we estimate that GDPour territories remained f
overall during 2012, and was down from the 2% glowate reported in 2011 following the combinatidraslowdown in export growth and ongoing restvietfiscal measures
some of the countries in our region. Real privatesamption is estimated to have declined by 1%adlvduring 2012. This continued general lack ofvgtto of the economies
our region has led to a decrease in advertisingdipg. On a constant currency basis, televisioregibing spending in our markets declined overplb® in 2012 while overe
internet advertising spending in our markets ingeelsby 2%. Furthermore, our anticipated recovetiiéndemand for television advertising in our méske the fourth quarter ¢
not materialize when a number of advertisers inditahey no longer intended to honor their previspending commitments. A full recovery in our regicontinues to t
hampered by continuing concerns surrounding thermgétack of confidence about economic growth in@untries. These concerns contributed to thetahece of advertisers
spend in 2012, negatively impacting advertisingereies in the Broadcast division, and may contiouwdtso into 2013.

Overall, on a constant currency basis, our conataiinet revenues declined only slightly compaoeti¢ corresponding period in 2011 as we maintamecdaudience and mar|
shares in difficult market conditions. The lowensolidated net revenues was attributable to théndein spending in the television advertising neaskwhich was partially offs
by the growth in revenues in our Media Pro Entarteint ("MPE") and New Media divisions.

Costs charged in arriving at OIBDA decreased byi72012 compared to 2011 . On a constant curreasjstrosts increased 2% in 2012 compared to 2abdl included cos
associated with launching five new channels togmtobur audience leadership and market share ibroadcast operations, the full year effect of Bafitm, acquired on June ¢
2011, in our MPE segment and the accelerated proginag amortization in the amount of US$ 18.6 millio our Broadcast operations. We continued to $amu optimizing ot
costs charged in arriving at OIBDA.

We recognized impairment charges in respect of gdbdangible and intangible assets amounting ®$5622.5 million. Due to the lack of recovery in the fourth quartan
outlook for future periods is less certain and weden significant downward revisions in our estimaieshe cash flows that our operations will generat future periods.
connection with our 2012 goodwill impairment anédysve have concluded that the total estimatedvilines used for purposes of the test are reasobgtdomparing the marl
capitalization of the Company to the results ofdiszounted cash flows analysis of our reportingsyas adjusted for unallocated corporate assetdiabilities. This impairmel
charge, lower OIBDA, and overall flat depreciatimmd amortization resulted in an operating los2€#2 compared to operating income in 2011.
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For the Years Ending December 31, (US$ 000's)

201z 2011 Movement 2011 201(C Movement
Net cash (used in) / generated from operating itietv $ (30,02) $ 29,63¢ Nm @ $ 29,63¢ $ (49,619 Nm @
Capital expenditures, net (32,42¢) (33,109 (2.0)% (33,109 (45,877) (27.8)%
Free cash floW’ $ (62459 $ (3,469 Nm @ $ (3,469 $ (95,48¢) 96.4 %
As at December 31 As at December 3!
201z 2011 Movement
Cash and cash equivalents 140,39 186,38 (24.1%

(1) Free cash flow is defined as cash flows froraraping activities less purchases of property, tdend equipment, net of disposals of property, tdaml equipment and is useful as a measure oflwlity.
to generate cash.
(2) Number is not meaningful.

Our negative free cash flow in 2012 was US$ 62l8ani, compared to negative free cash flow of LB million in 2011 This decline is largely due to lower revenuea assul
of the year-onsear decline of the television advertising spendmgur regions and consequent decrease in casliptedn 2012 compared to 2011. In addition, oroastan
currency basis, an increase in payments relatirfigreggn programming and additional investmentum local content production also contributed to negative free cash flow
2012. We ended the year with cash of US$ 140.4amill

We continue to take steps to conserve cash, imdudirgeted reductions to our operating cost Baseigh cost optimization programs. In addition,ave exploring further optio
to improve our liquidity, including new equity finaeings, asset sales and continuing the renegatiafipayment obligations with a number of majorigrs. In this respect, \
are in discussion with Time Warner regarding itsgilole participation in a public or private equiffering.

Capital Transactions

We reduced our long-term debt and improved our detitrrity profile during 2012 (see Item 8, Noteé'lsong-term Debt and Other Financing Obligations"). Agsult, the neare
principal repayment obligation on the Company'giterm debt is November 2015. During the year, meéentook the following actions:

. On April 30, 2012, we entered into a series gfeaments with our major shareholders, Time Waamet RSL Capital LLC (“RSL Capitalan affiliate of Ronal
Lauder), to enable us to fund tender offers to Ipase up to an aggregate of US$ 300 million of @ir32Convertible Notes, 2014 Floating Rate Notes201b Fixe!
Rate Notes.

. On May 31, 2012, we completed the purchase of UE$01million in aggregate principal of 2013 Conilee Notes for cash consideration of US$ 109.0iamillplus
accrued interest.

. On June 14, 2012, we completed the purchase of BUR million (approximately US$ 75.8 million at tidate of repurchase) aggregate principal amou20a#
Floating Rate Notes for EUR 56.7 million (approxteig US$ 71.1 million at the date of repurchasesccrued interest.

. On June 15, 2012, we issued 2,000,000 shares s$ @l@ommon stock to RSL Capital and 9,901,260eshaf Class A common stock to TW Investor, each fartice
of US$ 7.51 per share, for aggregate proceedset@tmpany of approximately US$ 89.4 million. Theqaeds were applied to repay amounts drawn unéer\ty
Loans to repurchase the 2013 Convertible Notegtan@014 Floating Rate Notes.

. On June 15, 2012, Time Warner and Ronald Laudererted their shares of Class B common stock intecprivalent number of shares of Class A commorksftarenc
additional consideration. Following these conversjdhere are no shares of Class B common stoskamdting.

. On July 3, 2012, we issued 874,819 shares ofCtass A common stock and one Preferred Sharee@tiikly, the “Option Shares"at a price per share of Clas:
common stock (including those underlying the PreférShare) of US$ 7.51 , to TW Investor for aggregmnsideration of approximately US$ 90.8 millioaacl
pursuant to the Equity Commitment Agreement. Thesitteration was applied to repay in full the TW heaFollowing the issuance, TW Investor owns 42d§%he
outstanding shares of Class A common stock an@ H&9% economic interest in the Company.

. On August 16, 2012, CET 21, a wholly-owned sdiasy of CME Ltd., issued and sold EUR 70.0 milliGapproximately US$ 92.4 millio of its 2017 Fixed Ra
Notes at an issue price 108.25% for net proceeds of approximately EUR 7#8ilion (approximately US$ 97.4 million ) and apghmately EUR 1.8 million
(approximately US$ 2.4 millioh of accrued interest from May 1, 2012. CET 21 uednet proceeds from the 2012 offering to fullipay outstanding amounts ur
and cancel its five-year CZK 1.5 billion (approximg US$ 73.0 million on the date of repayment)8ed Revolving Credit Facility.

. On September 7, 2012, we completed the issuandesale of EUR 104.0 million (approximately US® 23million ) of 2016 Fixed Rate Notes at an issue pric
103.00% for net proceeds of approximately EUR 1@dilBon (approximately US$ 138.3 million ) and apgimately EUR 5.8 million (approximately US$ 7.6llion )
of accrued interest from March 15, 2012.

. Additionally, on September 7, 2012, we madersvocable deposit of US$ 21.0 millivith the trustee for the 2013 Convertible Notesicivhiepresents the aggrec
principal amount plus all interest that will be phie when the 2013 Convertible Notes mature on Maf; 2013.

. On October 7, 2012, we redeemed the remainin@® B®@.5 million (approximately US$ 115.4 millionaggregate principal amount of 2014 Floating Rdtges

outstanding at a price of 100.09lus EUR 0.9 million (approximately US$ 1.2 nut) of interest payable at redemption, using aigomf the proceeds from the <
of the 2016 Fixed Rate Notes on September 7, 2012.
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Segment Performance

NET REVENUES

For the Years Ending December 31, (US$ 000's)

Movement Movement
2012 2011 % Act % Lfl 2011 201¢ % Act % LAl
Broadcast 665,35! $ 774,97¢ (14.1)% 55)% $ 77497t $ 690,72 12.2 % 5.4 %
Media Pro Entertainment 205,06 187,22: 9.5 % 21.5% 187,22: 140,79 33.0% 26.3 %
New Media 18,69( 15,76¢ 18.6 % 30.3 % 15,76¢ 11,19¢ 40.8 % 325 %
Intersegment revenues (117,029 (113,189 (3.4)% (14.2)% (113,189 (105,58 (7.2)% 1.7)%
Total Net Revenues 772,08 $ 864,78 (10.7 )% (16)% $ 864,78 $ 737,13: 17.3 % 10.2 %
OIBDA
For the Years Ending December 31, (US$ 000's)
Movement Movement
201z 2011 % Act % Lfl 2011 201¢ % Act % Lfl

Broadcast 147,72¢ $ 211,09 (30.0)% (229)% $ 211,09 $ 164,41t 28.4 % 19.1 %
Media Pro Entertainment 15,91: 3,99¢ 298.2 % 328.1% 3,99¢ (3,005) Nm® Nm®
New Media (4,225 (2,55¢) (65.2)% (82.6)% (2,55¢) (6,547) 60.9 % 62.6 %
Central (27,53) (41,85) 342 % 31.6 % (41,85) (44,067) 5.0 % 6.3 %
Intersegment elimination (6,467) (3,675 (75.9)% (100.2)% (3,67%) (3,489 (5.5)% (8.5)%
Consolidated OIBDA 125,42 $ 167,00: (24.9)% (162)% $ 167,000 $ 107,32 55.6 % 40.2 %
(1) Number is not meaningful.
Broadcast
Our Broadcast segment comprises our broadcast ehaperations in primarily Bulgaria, Croatia, theeCh Republic, Romania, the Slovak Republic angediia.
The following table sets out our estimates of tisien advertising spending by market (in US$ milkd for the years set forth below:
Country 2012 2011 2010
Bulgaria 106 % 11€ 121
Croatia 98 111 11z
Czech Republic 34¢ 36¢ 35¢E
Romania* 18¢ 20¢ 21F
Slovak Republic 134 13t 134
Slovenia 76 82 79
Total CME Markets 9%5: $ 1,01¢ 1,01%
Growth rate (6)% — % (4)%

Market sizes are quoted using the average 201ardotchange rate for all the years presented above.
* Romania market excludes Moldova.
Source: CME estimates

Television advertising spending in the fourth geadf 2012 continued to decline year on year, witiumber of advertisers spending less than thewarcommitments. Due
the failure of advertisers to meet their annual wiment targets, we issued significantly lower aggewmolume bonuses than anticipated, and much Ither the prior year. Tt
partially mitigated the lower spending. We mainégirour overall share of the television advertisimarkets for the full year compared to 2011, desghigecontinuing difficu
market conditions.

We are committed to maintaining our leadershipudience and market shares across all of our Breadgerations, which provides us with a unique oetitige advantage and
essential to achieving high operating leverage wi@ntelevision advertising markets recover. Topaupthis strategy, we launched five new channel2d12: FANDA an
SMICHOV in the Czech Republic, ACASA GOLD in RomanDAJTO in Slovakia and BTV LADY in Bulgaria. Aditinally, we launched two more channels in thet fivgo
months of 2013: TELKA in the Czech Republic and FIFin the Slovak Republic.

The Broadcast segment reported net revenues 068658 million compared to US$ 775.0 million in 2014 decrease of 14% , or % a constant currency basis, in line with
decrease in overall television advertising spendirmaur region.
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Costs charged in arriving at OIBDA decreased byiB%012 compared to 2011 . On a constant curremsjskcosts increased 1% in 2012 compared to 2@t include
accelerated programming amortization of US$ 18 #ianiin our Broadcast operations primarily relgfito expiring foreign programming content for whisle were unable
agree on extensions to the license periods befaegnd. We continued to focus on optimizing owtgcharged in arriving at OIBDA, even while lavimchfive new channels.

Our Broadcast segment generated OIBDA of US$ 14lifon in 2012 compared to US$ 211.1 million in120, a decrease of 30%0n a constant currency basis, OIB
decreased 23% compared to 2011 .

Media Pro Entertainment
Our Media Pro Entertainment (“MPE”") segment cormgsisur production and distribution businesses.

MPE’s revenues predominantly represent sales of fidisioatent to our broadcasters and revenues fromh gairties from our production and distribution @tens. The MP
segment delivered a 10% increase in net revenu@lip, or an increase of 22% on a constant currbasig.

We generated approximately US$ 91.3 million ( 45%otal MPE segment revenues) of our revenues fitard parties during 2012, compared to US$ 75.2ionil( 40%of tota
MPE segment revenues) during 2011. The increasmiimevenues and the increase in the proportioouofthird party revenues primarily reflects thel fygar impact of th
revenues from Bontonfilm, which we acquired in $leeond quarter of 2011.

The Media Pro Entertainment segment reported OIRDAS$ 15.9 million in 2012, compared to US$ 4.0lion in 2011, an improvement of US$ 11.9 millio®n a consta
currency basis, OIBDA improved US$ 12.2 million quamed to 2011.

During 2012, we delivered 1,065 hours of fictiomgmamming to our Broadcast operations compare@@h®urs in 2011. This programming comprised teleffas, soap ope
shows and comedy series such as 'Lara’s ChoiCebatia, 'Top Notch' in Slovenia, 'Second Chanc#\é Slovak Republic, 'The Street' in the CzechuRéc and 'Las Fierbinti'
Romania; and drama series such as 'Rose Gardeo' €lithe Czech Republic and the Slovak Repuliligmpl' in the Czech Republic and '‘Bet With Life'Romania.

We delivered a total of 1,837 hours of reality @mdertainment programming to our Broadcast oparatio 2012 compared to 1,483 hours in 2011, witwshsuch as 'Got Talel
'Master Chef', 'The Voice' and 'Dancing with StaxdRomania, and 'X Factor' in Slovenia, 'The Voaed 'Wife Swap' in the Czech Republic and thev&{dRepublic and Tt
Farm' in the Slovak Republic.

Following the integration of Bontonfilm, we now teadistribution operations in the Czech Republie 8lovak Republic, Hungary and Romania. During 26a@ theatrice
distribution units in the Czech and Slovak Republiemained the market leaders with an estimated d#¥ket share and Romania maintained its strondigasachieving
market share of 27%. Our home video distributioitsumaintained their leadership positions, withestimated 65% market share in Romania and an dstinmaarket share
49% in the Czech Republic and the Slovak Republic.

New Media
Our New Media segment comprises a video-on-dematdbdition and internet content business in edauo markets.

During 2012 we completed the introduction of Vowoy subscription video-on-demand distribution seyiinto all of our territories. Voyo delivers prieim, locally-produce:
content as well as many local and foreign featilmasf Following our actions to improve the librao§ available content and to increase distributioe, reached 101,6'
subscriptions as at December 31, 2012, an incriease20,000 subscriptions as at December 31, 2024 believe that Voyo is now the leading videod®mand distributic
platform in our territories, based on the numbeswdfscribers.

Our internet content business comprises a websitiofio in each of our markets that distributesdtly-produced content and operates as an efficient riagkeool for ou
Broadcast operations. We currently operate ovew@Bsites and we continue to launch new targetedugts to establish and grow our online presencenaadket share ai
ultimately provide our products on multiple distriton platforms. Our target is to achieve consistgowth of monthly and daily visitors in order ittcrease revenues and
number of advertising clients and as a result,utperform the local internet advertising marketvgito We recently launched a series of productsfoart devices as part of «
strategy to increase the time our users spend odngcontent that we deliver. During 2012, we iaaed the number of average daily non-duplicateguanvisitors by 14% year-
on-year in the countries in which we operate.

The following table sets out our estimates of i¢rdvertising spending by market (in US$ milljofus the years ended December 31,

Country 201z 2011 201c
Bulgaria $ 21 $ 21 $ 16
Croatia 13 18 1€
Czech Republic 122 11€ 111
Romania* 27 25 22
Slovak Republic 25 23 2C
Slovenia 14 14 11
Total CME Markets $ 222 $ 217 $ 19¢
Growth rate 2% 11% 9%

Market sizes are quoted using the average 201ardotchange rate for all the years presented above.
* Romania market excludes Moldova.
Source: CME estimates
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Our New Media segment reported an increase inevenues for 2012 of 19% compared to 2011, or 30% oanstant currency basis. We reported an OIBB3A ff US$4.2
million in 2012 compared to an OIBDA loss of US$ #illion in 2011 . On a constant currency basis, ®IBDA loss increased US$ 1.9 million comparedQal .

Future Trends

As described above, from January 1, 2013, the BamtdMedia Pro Entertainment and New Media opeyategments have been reorganized to streamlineacezsources al
create six new operating segments: Bulgaria, Giptite Czech Republic, Romania, the Slovak Repualolit Slovenia. We expect to incur restructuringso$ between US$ :
million and US$ 20 million to reorganize our busises through these geographic segments in 2018naedccomplete, we anticipate annual savings 0bwiS$ 25 million.

Although the outlook for our markets is uncertaie, currently expect low singldigit real GDP growth in 2013, with variations fraountry to country in the timing and strer
of recovery. We are confident that we will contirtoeenjoy a high television advertising market shiarthe regions in which we operate. We plan tatiooe to control our cos
and anticipate that any revenue growth will flowniediately to our bottom line in terms of OIBDA.

We are currently seeing the following trends in mgion:
. an increased emphasis on the importance of locaént
. an increase in the availability and consumptio®D content as these technologies devt
. an increased consumption of content on televisismsyrt televisions and other smart devi
. advertising spending is at a crossroads: advestser looking to maintain their level of consumptf Gross Rating Points ("GRPs") at falling priteg we see tt
availability of cheap inventory decreasing in theufe; and
. advertisers demanding more profiled audiences fsayadcasters in order to better target specifisgorer group

Our one content, multiple distribution strategylésigned to respond to these trends and maximizgrowth in revenues.

We remain committed to maintaining and growing audience leadership. We have been negotiatingaeetvacts with our foreign suppliers of programmingobtain bette
selections of product with additional rights (foizigson obtaining the rights needed to enhance ayo\service and our other distribution channelshath lower prices that bet
reflects the potential of that product to generatenues. We intend to use these savings to semar output of local programming that drives prime time audience share
Furthermore, we continue to implement cost efficies in our local productions. As a result, waeha that we can make incremental improvementsiiraadience shares go
forward without increasing our overall costs.

We are determined to reverse the trend of falleigvision advertising spending and the downwardsane on prices. We have implemented new salem@mpolicies in all ot
territories to maximize our revenues, including@ases in pricing. Our challenge will be to coneimclvertisers in our region to support our newssaledel, enabling us to inv
more in premium quality local programming and tlpueviding advertisers with a better audience peofiVe are meeting certain resistance in our attenepincrease price
particularly in the Czech Republic, and could seerevenues negatively impacted in the first haB@13. Nonetheless, the overall results thusdad lus to believe that we will
successful in executing our strategy.

We intend to achieve a better return on our cortbgntharging higher carriage fees to carriers ithisting our channels on their platforms (DTH, cabted IPTV). We belie\
Voyo will be a key factor in building the onlineidacontent market in our territories. We expecbamefit from the shift of advertising spending frgmint and other media
television and internet advertising in each couitryhich we operate.

We believe that our brand strength, audience lshggrthe depth and experience of local managearahbur expertise in the production of local cohteifi place us in a stror
position to capture the benefits of these new send
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II. Analysis of the Results of Operations and Finaaial Position

Il (@) Net Revenues for the years ending Decembef 32012 , 2011 and 2010 .

NET REVENUES

For the Years Ending December 31, (US$ 000's)

Movement Movement
201z 2011 % Act % Lfl 2011 201(C % Act % Lfl

Broadcast:

Bulgaria $ 83,027 $ 93,73 (11.4)% 43)% ¢ 93,73. $ 61,75¢ 51.8 % 42.3 %
Croatia 54,61¢ 61,50: (11.2)% (3.2)% 61,50: 51,35( 19.8 % 155 %
Czech Republic 241,03 285,86! (15.7)% (6.9)% 285,86! 265,01¢ 7.9 % (0.4)%
Romania 134,02 159,38 (15.9)% (4.5)% 159,38 157,41¢ 1.3 % (3.8)%
Slovak Republic 88,85 101,972 (12.9)% (5.9)% 101,97 90,39: 12.8 % 6.8 %
Slovenia 63,79¢ 72,51¢ (12.0)% 5.1)% 72,51¢ 64,79¢ 11.9% 6.3 %
Total Broadcast 665,35! 774,97¢ (14.1)% (5.5)% 774,97 690,72 122 % 54 %
Media Pro Entertainment 205,06:- 187,22: 95 % 215 % 187,22: 140,79° 33.0 % 263 %
New Media 18,69( 15,76¢ 18.6 % 30.3 % 15,76¢ 11,19: 40.8 % 325 %
Elimination (117,029 (113,189 (3.4)% (14.2)% (113,189 (105,58) (7.2)% (1.7)%
Total Net Revenues $ 772,088 $ 864,78 (10.7)% (16)% $ 864,78 $ 737,13 173 % 102 %

Our Broadcast segment reported revenues of US# é6ilion in 2012, a decrease of 14% compared thl12@n a constant currency basis, we experiencedraalge in revenu
of 6% , broadly in line with the decline in telewis advertising spending in our markets. Our Braaticevenues increased by US$ 84.3 million , or 124ring 2011 reflectir
the impact of foreign currency movements. On a @misurrency basis, revenues increased by 5%gi@fitl compared to 2010 due to the full year afiéthe acquisition of tt

bTV group in Bulgaria in April 2010.

Our Media Pro Entertainment segment reported reaeofiUS$ 205.1 million in 2012, an increase of Id%mpared to 2011 . Revenues increased by &2% constant curren
basis compared to 201Yeflecting an increase in the amount of productold to our broadcasters as well as the full ympact of the acquisition of Bontonfilm in the sec
quarter of 2011. The 33% increase in Media ProEaitenent revenues during 2011 is primarily duth®acquisition of Bontonfilm in June 2011.

Our New Media segment reported revenues of US$mdlion in 2012, an increase of 19% compared th12200n a constant currency basis, revenues irenldas 30%n 2012
compared to 2011 , reflecting an increase in thaber of Voyo subscribers. On a constant currensjsbaur net revenues increased by 33%ing 2011 compared to 20

reflecting the launch of Voyo across all our temigs during 2011.

29




Index

Il (b) Cost of Revenues for the years ending Decerab31, 2012 , 2011 and 2010 .

Cost of Revenues
For the Years Ending December 31, (US$ 000's)

Movement Movement
201z 2011 % Act % Lfl 2011 201( % Act % Lfl

Operating costs $ 17517 $ 182,04t (3.8)% 6.6 % $ 182,04t $ 144,31 26.1 % 19.1 %
Cost of programming 377,98: 399,77: (5.5)% 4.1 % 399,77: 369,32¢ 82 % 3.0%
Depreciation of property, plant

and equipment 41,73. 52,954 (21.2)% (12.7)% 52,954 54,41 2.7)% (8.7)%
Amortization of broadcast licenses

and other intangibles 46,62° 34,88: 33.7 % 45.3 % 34,88: 25,98 34.2% 24.4 %
Total Cost of Revenues $ 64151: $ 669,65 (4.2)% 5.6 % $ 669,65 $ 594,04 12.7 % 6.8 %

Cost of revenues:Our total cost of revenues decreased by US$ 28libmj or 4% , during 2012 compared to 2010n a constant currency basis, our total coseeémue
increased by 6%luring the period, reflecting a decrease in deptieri of property, plant and equipment which wagertban offset by increases in operating costsctist o
programming and the amortization of broadcast §esrand other intangibles following the revisioroof estimate of the remaining useful life of certaf our broadcast licens
as of January 1, 2012 (see Item 8, Note 4, "Goddwd Intangible Assets").

Our total cost of revenues for 2011 increased b$ U&6 million, or 13% compared to 2010, primadlye to our acquisition of the bTV group in Bulgaria\pril 2010.

OPERATING COSTS
For the Years Ending December 31, (US$ 000's)

Movement Movement

201z 2011 % Act % Lfl 2011 201C % Act % Lfl
Broadcast:
Bulgaria $ 19,12 $ 16,98« 12.6 % 222 % $ 16,98: $ 14,66¢ 15.8 % 8.4 %
Croatia 9,86: 11,01( (10.4)% 1.3)% 11,01( 9,95¢ 10.6 % 6.4 %
Czech Republic 24,90° 35,45¢ (29.8)% (22.3)% 35,45¢ 32,557 8.9 % 0.6 %
Romania 17,10: 20,81¢ (17.8)% (6.9)% 20,81¢ 23,53t (11.6)% (14.9)%
Slovak Republic 19,41¢ 20,297 (4.3)% 3.8 % 20,297 16,79¢ 20.8 % 142 %
Slovenia 11,957 11,90¢ 0.4 % 8.5 % 11,90¢ 10,37¢ 148 % 8.6 %
Total Broadcast 102,37: 116,47: (12.1)% (32)% 116,47: 107,88¢ 8.0 % 18 %
Media Pro Entertainment 68,93¢ 60,76: 135 % 273 % 60,76: 32,84 85.0 % 75.6 %
New Media 6,63¢ 4,81¢ 379 % 51.3 % 4,81: 3,58¢ 342 % 26.1 %
Elimination (2,779 — Nm® Nm® — — Nm® Nm®
Total Operating Costs $ 17517. $ 182,04 (3.8)% 66% $ 182,04t $ 144,31 26.1 % 19.1 %

(1) Number is not meaningful.

Operating costs: Total operating costs (excluding programming codépreciation of property, plant and equipmentoization of broadcast licenses and other intdegila:
well as selling, general and administrative expshdecreased by US$ 6.9 million , or 4% , during26ompared to 2011 . On a constant currency lasis increased by 7%
We achieved decreases in transmission and retiafed costs in our Broadcast operations, howthese were more than offset by the cost of newraldaunches, higher co
associated with third party revenues in MPE follogvthe acquisition of Bontonfilm and with the build of Voyo in our New Media division.

Total operating costs for 2011 increased by US$ &iillion , or 26% , compared to 2010. On a cortstamrency basis, operating costs increased by d@8étpared to 201

primarily due to our acquisition of the bTV group Bulgaria in April 2010, an increase in transnassand operating staflated costs in the Czech Republic and the S
Republic, as well as an increase in costs follovtfreggacquisition of Bontonfilm.
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COST OF PROGRAMMING
For the Years Ending December 31, (US$ 000's)

Movement Movement
201z 2011 % Act % Lfl 2011 201c % Act % Lfl

Broadcast:

Bulgaria $ 46,51: $ 56,15¢ (17.2)% (10.6)%  $ 56,15¢ $ 42,827 31.1% 23.1%
Croatia 32,69 39,72¢ 17.7)% (10.2)% 39,72¢ 32,64 217 % 17.4 %
Czech Republic 95,30¢ 93,90" 15 % 12.3 % 93,90° 92,167 1.9 % (6.2)%
Romania 95,42¢ 100,57: (5.1)% 7.5 % 100,57: 98,03¢ 2.6 % (1.8)%
Slovak Republic 57,17: 62,83¢ (9.0)% (1.9)% 62,83¢ 64,87¢ (3.1)% (8.1)%
Slovenia 33,66 35,85: (6.1)% 1.7 % 35,85 31,69 13.1% 7.1 %
Total Broadcast 360,77. 389,05¢ (7.3)% 21 % 389,05« 362,24: 74 % 14 %
Media Pro Entertainment 111,24 110,21 09 % 114 % 110,21- 99,78 105 % 81 %
New Media 11,85¢ 8,83 342 % 478 % 8,83¢ 9,40 (6.1)% (11.6)%
Elimination (105,89 (108,329 22 % (7.9)% (108,329 (102,099 (6.1)% (0.8)%
Total Cost of Programming $ 377,98 $ 399,77 (5.5)% 41 % $ 399,77: $ 369,32¢ 82 % 3.0 %

Cost of programming: Programming costs (including production costs amrtization of programming rights) decreased b @2%.8 million , or 6% during 2012 compared
2011 . On a constant currency basis, the increb4@&oaeflects increased investment in our programmirtedales to maintain our audience leadership in sufhoeir territorie
where competition has been intense. We intend ttirage to invest in local programming to maintair @audience leadership and deliver the necessapubaf gross ratir
points, in line with the demands of the markete/fich we operate, without increasing our overatitsoWe recorded accelerated programming amodizati US$ 18.6 million i
our Broadcast operations primarily relating to exg foreign programming content for which we wengable to agree on extensions to the license pefiedore yeaend
Programming costs in our New Media division inclutie costs associated with providing content fer biildout of Voyo. We prospectively applied a aparn estimates
respect of programming expense during the secolidha011. The impact of this change was to redacertization for the first six months of 2012 hgpeoximately US$3.€
million (see Item 8, Note 6, "Program Rights").

Programming costs increased by US$ 30.4 million8% , during 2011 compared to 2010. On a constamency basis, the increase of 8Uing 2011 compared to 2010 refle
the acquisition of the bTV group in April 2010 atigé impact of increased competition for high gyafitogramming on the cost of acquired programmmg@ur markets. W\
prospectively applied a change in estimates ine&spf programming expense during the second Ha#0&1. The impact of this change was a lower aizstibn charge ¢
approximately US$ 3.9 million.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment: Total depreciation of property, plant and equiptrdgcreased in 2012 by US$ 11.2 million , or 2d8mpared to 2011. Or
constant currency basis, depreciation decreased, 18fecting a decrease in capital expendituresdent years.

Total depreciation of property, plant and equipmer2011 decreased by US$ 1.5 million, or 3%. Quostant currency basis, depreciation decreasededpécting a decrease
capital expenditures.

Amortization of broadcast licenses and other intanifples: Total amortization of broadcast licenses and othtmgibles increased US$ 11.7 million during 2@#234%,
compared to 2011 . On a constant currency bagisntinease of 45%eflects additional amortization of broadcast Imendue to the change in the remaining estimaefdiuge of
our broadcast licenses in Bulgaria, Romania andeBlia. The impact of this change in estimateshgher amortization charge amounting to approxitgetkss$ 20.7 millionfor
the year ended December 31, 2012 , compared ta 20& tecorded impairments of broadcast licenseso#met intangibles amounting to US$ 522.5 millduring the year end
December 31, 2012 so we expect our amortizationtahgibles to decrease in future periods (see &ehote 4, "Goodwill and Intangible Assets").

Total amortization of broadcast licenses and oitangibles increased by US$ 8.9 million in 2014.34%, compared to 2010. On a constant currendg ik increase of 24
reflects additional amortization of intangible @ssaising from the acquisition of the bTV group.
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Il (c) Selling, General and Administrative Expensedor the years ending December 31, 2012 , 2011 ap@10 .

SELLING, GENERAL and ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
For the Years Ending December 31, (US$ 000's)

Movement Movement

201z 2011 % Act % Lfl 2011 201(C % Act % Lfl
Broadcast:
Bulgaria $ 353 $ 7,692 (54.1)% (50.3)% $ 7,69 $ 6,32¢ 21.6 % 12.4 %
Croatia 6,16¢ 6,10¢ 1.0 % 9.0 % 6,10¢ 6,38t (4.4)% (6.6)%
Czech Republic 19,14t 16,10¢ 18.9 % 30.6 % 16,10¢ 17,47¢ (7.8)% (15.2)%
Romania 11,34t 12,05¢ (5.9)% 6.7 % 12,05¢ 9,84¢ 224 % 15.2 %
Slovak Republic 5,72¢ 8,87( (35.4)% (30.0)% 8,87( 9,71¢ (8.7)% (13.9)%
Slovenia 3,96: 5,16( (23.2)% (16.8)% 5,16( 4,301 19.8 % 13.3%
Divisional operating costs 4,601 2,361 94.9 % 1125 % 2,361 2,12 11.2 % 3.9 %
Total Broadcast 54,48 58,35t (6.6 )% 25 % 58,35t 56,18t 39 % (2.7)%
Media Pro Entertainment 11,73¢ 15,34¢ (23.5)% (14.9)% 15,34¢ 14,36: 6.9 % 0.3 %
New Media 4,41¢ 4,67¢ (5.5)% 41 % 4,67¢ 4,748 (1.5)% (5.3)%
Central 27,53: 42,41 (35.1)% (32.5)% 42,41 44,52¢ (4.7)% (5.3)%
Elimination (1,89%) (1,202 (57.7)% (75.4)% (1,209 — Nm® Nm®
Total Selling, General anc
Administrative Expenses $ 9627: $ 11958 (19.5)% (132)% $ 119,58 $ 119,81¢ (0.2)% (4.3)%

(1) Number is not meaningful.
Selling, general and administrative expenses dseceby US$ 23.3 million during 2012 compared tol20frimarily due to a reduction in staff-relateghenses.

Selling, general and administrative expenses dsecehy US$ 0.2 million in 2011 compared to 201flecéing our efforts to implement cost efficienci@e increase of costs
the Broadcast segment, primarily reflecting a yelr of operations of the bTV group in 2011, wagddy offset by a decrease in central costs.

Central costs decreased by US$ 14.9 million , 86 8firing 2012 compared to 2011 , reflecting a rédndn staffrelated expenses following redeployment of cerftegldcour
into operational positions and lower compensatiqreases. Central costs decreased by US$ 2.1 mitio5% in 2011 compared to 2010, reflecting a cédn of accounting ar
tax costs incurred during 2010 related to the bTaug acquisition.

Central costs for the year ended December 31, RB@li2de a charge of US$ 4.2 million in respect ofittash stockased compensation, a decrease of US$ 1.6 miltiorpare!
to 2011 (see Item 8, Note 16, “Stock-Based Compmmsa
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Il (d) Impairment charge for the years ending Decerber 31, 2012 , 2011 and 2010 .

For the Years Ending December 31, (US$ 000's)
201z 2011 201(C
Impairment charge $ 522,49( $ 68,74¢ $ 397

We recognized impairment charges amounting to LZ%millionin respect of goodwill, tangible and intangibleetssn 2012. Due to the lack of recovery in our ket in th:
fourth quarter, our outlook for future periodséss certain and we made significant downward r@wisin our estimates of the cash flows that ouraifmns will generate in futu
periods. The impairments recorded included US$illon related to the bTV trademark in BulgariaS$# 28.1 millionto fully impair the customer relationship intangibh the
Slovak Republic, US$ 180.6 million to fully impahe broadcast licenses in Bulgaria, Romania an®tixeak Republic, US$ 297.9 milliaelated to goodwill in Bulgaria and 1
Czech Republic, and US$ 8.7 million related to kingd assets (see Item 8, Note 4, "Goodwill andrgible Assets"). In connection with our 2012 goitidmpairment analysi:
we have concluded that the total estimated faineslused for purposes of the test are reasonabderbparing the market capitalization of the Comptmyhe results of tt
discounted cash flows analysis of our reportindsyris adjusted for unallocated corporate assetabilities.

We recognized impairment charges totaling US$ @8ilion in 2011 which reflected a US$ 4.3 millionrite-down of the trademark and a US$ 53.4 millionitevdown o
goodwill included within the Bulgaria Broadcast ogjing unit, as well as US$ 11.0 million relatedte writeoff of goodwill in the production services repodionit of Media Pr
Entertainment. We revised our estimates of futwehcflows in each of these reporting units during final quarter of 2011 primarily to reflect owvised expectations
uncertainty in the Eurozone and its periphery onRBulgaria Broadcast operations and an expectatfi@hallenges in growing third party revenues farduction services.

We recognized an impairment charge of US$ 0.4 onilin 2010 to write off the carrying value of thddPro trademark, included within our Romania Bzl segment, aff
ceasing operations of the InfoPro radio channeldatdrmining that the trademark was no longer reble. There were no other indicators of impairtnienour goodwill o
long{ived assets, and we were not required to recoydimpairment charges against goodwill following q@etion of our annual review of the recoverabilifygoodwill in the
fourth quarter of 2010.

Il (e) Operating (loss) / income for the years endig December 31, 2012 , 2011 and 2010 .

Operating (Loss) / Income
For the Years Ending December 31, (US$ 000's)

Movement Movement
2012 2011 % Act % Lfl 2011 201( % Act % Lfl
Operating (loss) / income $ (488,19) $ 6,79: Nm @ Nm®  $ 6,79: $ 22,87 (70.9% Nm @

(1) Number is not meaningful.

The operating loss for 2012 was US$ 488.2 milliompared to operating income of US$ 6.8 million D12, primarily as a result of the impairments recogdizelated t
goodwill, tangible and intangible assets. Excluding impact of the impairments (see Item 8, Not&&odwill and Intangible Assets"), our operatimgaome for the year end
December 31, 2012 would have been US$ 34.3 million

Operating income for 2011 decreased by US$ 16 .lomitompared to 2010. While revenues increased$$ 127.6 million compared to 2010, cost of reverninereased by U¢
75.6 million and selling, general and administtdxpense declined slightly. The positive diffeeem@s more than offset by impairment charges of 88% million, resulting i

the decrease in operating income.

Our operating margin was (63.2)% during 2012, caeghao 0.8% in 2011 and 3.1# 2010. Excluding the impact of noncash impairmamdrges, our operating margins v
4.4% , 8.7% and 3.2% during 2012, 2011 and 20kpectively.
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II (f) Other income / (expense) items for the yearending December 31, 2012 , 2011 and 2010 .

Other Income / (Expense)
For the Years Ending December 31, (US$ 000's)

201z 2011 % Act 2011 201C % Act
Interest income $ 77¢ % 2,75: 717)%  $ 2,75  $ 2,23¢ 23.0 %
Interest expense (127,969 (161,45) 20.7 % (161,45) (133,501 (20.9)%
Foreign currency exchange gain / (loss), net 4,92; (31,129 Nm® (31,129 (5,030) Nm®
Change in fair value of derivatives 49,027 7,281 Nm® 7,281 1,16¢ Nm®
Other income 901 1 Nm® 1 357 (99.7)%
Credit / (provision) for income taxes 14,13¢ (3,850 Nm® (3,850 (5,025 23.4%
Discontinued operations, net of tax — — — % — 213,69 (100)%
Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interests 10,71 4,99: Nm® 4,99: 3,40z 46.8 %
Currency translation adjustment, net $ 28,65. $ (59,43() Nm® $ (59,430 $ (17,58¢) Nm®

(1) Number is not meaningful.

Interest incomein 2012 decreased by US$ 2.0 million compared tbl2Qprimarily as a result of lower average cash baganInterest income in 2011 increased by US
million compared to 2010, primarily as a resultled movement of foreign exchange rates and higterest rates on cash deposits.

Interest expensein 2012 decreased by US$ 33.5 million comparecheostame period in 2011primarily due to differences in the amount ofslam extinguishment of de
recorded each year. The repurchase of 2013 CobleeMiotes and 2014 Floating Rate Notes during 2@%$8Ited in a marginal net loss on extinguishmeee (item 8, Note
"Long-Term Debt and Other Financing Arrangements! Bote 15, "Interest Expense").

Interest expense in 2011 increased by US$ 28.@omitlompared to 2010, primarily as a result of L 259 million of losses on the repurchase and rafimay of debt (see ltem
Note 5, "Lon-term Debt and Other Financing Arrangements") arditiadial interest expense associated with the engbs of 2013 Convertible Notes for 2015 Convertitides
the 2017 Fixed Rate Notes issued in October 208l Secured Revolving Credit Facility.

Foreign currency exchange gain / (loss), net:We are exposed to fluctuations in foreign exclearses on the revaluation of monetary assets iabiitles denominated

currencies other than the local functional curreocthe relevant subsidiary. This includes thirdtypaeceivables and payables, including our SeNimtes, which are denomina
in Euros, as well as our intercompany loans. Qinsiliaries generally receive funding via loand #r@ denominated in currencies other than theadadind any change in
relevant exchange rate will require us to recogais@nsaction gain or loss on revaluation.

In 2012, we recognized a net gain of US$ 4.9 mmillicomprised of transaction gains of US$ 17.3iamiltelating to the revaluation of intercompany loaamsransaction loss
approximately US$ 6.7 million on the Senior Note® do the overall weakening of the dollar agaihst Euro between January 1, 2012 and December 22,,2(hd transactic
losses of US$ 5.7 million relating to the revaloatof monetary assets and liabilities denominatezlirrencies other than the local functional cuyesf the relevant subsidiary.

In 2011, we recognized a net loss of US$ 31.1 omijlcomprised of transaction losses of US$ 30.8amilelating to the revaluation of intercompangns, a transaction gain
approximately US$ 15.2 million on the Senior Nadeg to the overall strengthening of the dollar asfathe Euro between January 1, 2011 and Decenib@031, and transacti
losses of US$ 15.5 million relating to the revalabf monetary assets and liabilities denominatezlirrencies other than the local functional coeseof the relevant subsidiary.

In 2010, we recognized a net loss of US$ 5.0 mniJlicomprised of transaction losses of US$ 40.0ianiltelating to the revaluation of intercompanyrisaa transaction gain
approximately US$ 54.7 million on the Senior Nadeg to the strengthening of the dollar agains&he between January 1, 2010 and December 31, 20tiGtransaction loss
of US$ 19.7 million relating to the revaluationrobnetary assets and liabilities denominated inecwies other than the local functional currencthefrelevant subsidiary.

Change in fair value of derivatives:During 2012, we recognized a net gain of US$ 22IBom related to the forward sale of shares to TWestor and US$ 25.0 milliorelatec
to the derivative for Option Shares with TW InvesitVe also recognized a gain of US$ 0.6 millaana result of the change in the fair value ofitterest rate swap entered intc
February 9, 2010 and a gain of US$ 0.7 mill&sna result of the change in fair value of theenoy swaps entered into on April 27, 2006. Theenay swap terminated on Ag
15, 2012, the forward sale was completed on Jun€d®B2, and we exercised the Company Option on 2@n®012. There will be no further impact on eagsi from thes
instruments.

During 2011, we recognized a gain of US$ 0.3 millas a result of the change in the fair value efititerest rate swap entered into on February 90,28nd a gain of US$ (
million as a result of the change in fair valuehw call option issued in connection with the nestturing of the Bulgarian operations in 2010. Thé aption strike price now equi
the value of the underlying, which is the equityORIE Bulgaria B.V., so the fair value of the optisnUS$ nil, and there will be no further changesognized in earnings. We &
recognized a gain of US$ 6.8 million as a resuthefchange in fair value of the currency swapsreadtinto on April 27, 2006.

In 2010 we recognized a loss of US$ 1.1 milliormassult of the change in the fair value of therest rate swap entered into on February 9, 20d@a#S$ 2.8 million gain as
result of the change in fair value of the call optentered into in connection with the restructyiaf the Pro.BG business (see Item 8, Note 3, “Asitjons and Disposals”)\Ve
also recognized a loss of US$ 0.5 million as alteduhe change in fair value of the currency swaptered into on April 27, 2006.

See Item 8, Note 12, “Financial Instruments and ¥alue Measurements”.
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Other income: We recognized other income of US$ 0.9 million dgr2®12 compared to other income of US$ 0.0 miliilo2011 and US$ 0.4 million in 2010.

Credit / (provision) for income taxes: The credit for income taxes during 2012 of US$11#illion reflects the value of deferred tax benefits that hewe realized ¢
impairments, which caused the reduction in incomxeeixpense in 2012 compared to 2011.

The provision for income taxes during 2011 wastgpnavision of US$ 3.9 million, which reflects valiion allowances in respect of the tax benefigaflosses. It also includes
credits in respect of tax losses in our RomaniafEMperations.

The provision for income taxes in 2010 reflectsuatibn allowances in respect of tax losses. It alstudes tax credits in respect of tax lossesathdr temporary differences
US$ 2.9 million in our Slovakia broadcast operatiand tax credits in respect of other temporarfedihces of US$ 3.6 million in our Romania broatlogerations.

Our subsidiaries are subject to income taxes fitety rates ranging from 10.0% in Bulgaria to 20.01 Croatia (see Iltem 8, Note 14, “Income Taxes").

Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interests: During 2012, the loss of US$ 10.7 milliamrespect of the noncontrolling interest in coidatied subsidiaries related prima
to the noncontrolling interest share of losseh@Bulgaria Broadcast reporting unit.

In 2011, the loss of US$ 5.0 million in respectta# noncontrolling interest in consolidated sulzsigs related primarily to the noncontrolling irgtstr share of impairment char
in the Bulgaria Broadcast reporting unit. In 20tt@ loss of US$ 3.4 million primarily reflected thencontrolling interest portion of losses in MR#ich offset the noncontrollir
interest portion of income generated by the bTWgro

Currency translation adjustment, net: The underlying equity value of our investmentsiflihare denominated in the functional currencyhefitelevant entity) are converted i
dollars at each balance sheet date, with any changgue of the underlying assets and liabilitiesng recorded as a currency translation adjusttoethe balance sheet rather t
the statements of operations and comprehensivengco

The dollar weakened overall against the functi@uatencies of our operations during 2012. Therefior@012, we recognized other comprehensive incoht¢S$ 28.7 millioron
the revaluation of our net investments in subsiesacompared to other comprehensive losses of 9SBrbillion and US$ 17.6 million in 2011 and 20i€spectively.

The following table illustrates the amount by whitle exchange rate of the dollar to the functianatencies of our operations moved between Jarnlianyd December 31
2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively:

For The Years Ending December 31,

201z 2011 201C
Bulgarian Lev (2% 3% 8%
Croatian Kuna 2% 5% 9%
Czech Koruna (4)% 6% 2%
Euro (2)% 3% 8%
New Romanian Lei 1% 4% 9%

The dollar was weaker overall against the funcli@uarencies of our operations between Januarydlletember 31, 201,2but was, on average, stronger than it was duhe
same period in 2011 The following table illustrates the change ie #iverage exchange rates of the dollar to the iimadt currencies of our operations for the yeardirg
December 31, 2012 , 2011 and 2010.

For The Years Ending December 31,

201z 2011 201C
Bulgarian Lev 8% (5)% 5%
Croatian Kuna 9% )% 4%
Czech Koruna 1% (7)% 1%
Euro 8% (5)% 5%
New Romanian Lei 14% (4)% 5%

To the extent that our subsidiaries incur transachbsses in their local functional currency incosta&tement on the revaluation of monetary assetdialilities denominated
dollars, we recognize a gain of the same amouat@srency translation adjustment within equity whee retranslate our net investment in that suasidnto dollars. Similarl
any exchange gain or loss arising on the retraoslaf intercompany loans in the functional curnen€ the relevant subsidiary or the dollar will biset by an equivalent loss
gain on consolidation.
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The following charts depict the movement of thectional currencies of our operations versus théaddbased on monthly closing rates, during 2002,12and 2010.
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11 (g) Consolidated balance sheet as at December,21012 and December 31, 2011 .

Summarized Consolidated Balance Sheet (US$ 000's)

December 31, 201 December 31, 201 Movement
Current assets $ 518,55. $ 538,28¢ B.7)%
Non-current assets 1,656,16. 2,143,48 (22.7)%
Current liabilities 291,36 255,57! 14.0 %
Non-current liabilities 1,252,08 1,408,25: (11.1)%
CME Ltd. shareholders’ equity 626,06: 1,001,69: (37.5)%
Noncontrolling interests in consolidated subsidiari $ 520¢ $ 16,25( (68.0)%

Current assets: Current assets at December 31, 2012 decreased#$y18.7 million compared to December 31, 2Qftimarily as a result of the decrease in cashtduée
impact of the decline in the television advertismagrkets on our financial performance, particulartycash receipts, and an increase in paymentsrigEign programming and loc
production. A portion of the proceeds from the sHl2016 Fixed Rate Notes in September 2012 wassditepl with the trustee of the 2013 Convertibledsdbr settlement of tI
notes at their maturity (see Item 8, Note 5, "Ldreggm Debt and Other Financing Arrangements").

Non-current assets: Non-current assets at December 31, 2012 decrdnsetb$ 487.3 million compared to December 31, 2pptimarily due to the impairment of goodw
tangible and intangible assets (see Item 8, Not&dodwill and Intangible Assets").

Current liabilities: Current liabilities at December 31, 2012 increalggdJS$ 35.8 million compared to December 31, 20ptimarily as a result of the inclusion of our 2
Convertible Notes, which mature in March 2013 amddf for the repayment of which were irrevocablpasited in escrow in September 2012, and an inergathird part
programming liabilities.

Non-current liabilities: Non-current liabilities at December 31, 2012 dasesl by US$ 156.2 million compared to Decembe®811, primarily as a result of the repurchas
2013 Convertible Notes and 2014 Floating Rate N(gee Item 8, Note 5, "Longerm Debt and Other Financing Arrangements”) amdpitesentation of the remaining 2
Convertible Notes within current liabilities. Thesas also a decrease in deferred tax liabilitieslting from the impairments recognized.

CME Ltd. shareholders’ equity: CME Ltd. shareholders’ equity decreased by US$&itsllion compared to December 31, 2011 , primadile the net loss of USB5.7 millior
during 2012. This loss was partially offset by thguance of 12.8 million shares of our Class A camrstock to TW Investor and RSL Capital and theasse of one Preferr
Share convertible into 11.2 million shares of odass A common stock to TW Investor (see Item 8,eNbB, "Equity”). There was also an increase iruacdated othe
comprehensive income of US$ 28.7 million due to dkerall impact of the weakening of the dollar arr éoreign currency denominated assets. We recedrézstockase!
compensation charge of US$ 4.2 million during 2012

Noncontrolling interests in consolidated subsidiags: Noncontrolling interests in consolidated subsiggrat December 31, 2012 decreased US$ 11.0 milionpared t
December 31, 2011 , primarily due to the net ldsthatable to noncontrolling interests and dividerpaid.
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IIl. Liquidity and Capital Resources
Il (@) Summary of Cash Flows
Cash and cash equivalents decreased by US$ 46i@nailiring 2012. The change in cash and cash atgrits for the periods presented below is sumnthazseollows:

For the Years Ending December 31, (US$ 000's)

201z 2011 201¢(
Net cash (used in) / generated from operating itietv $ (30,02) $ 29,63¢ (49,619)
Net cash used in investing activities (32,42¢) (42,699 (456,77()
Net cash provided by / (used in) financing actsti 11,89¢ (38,16¢) 7,33¢
Net cash used in discontinued operations — opgratitivities — — (5,92)
Net cash generated from discontinued operationsesting activities — — 307,79
Impact of exchange rate fluctuations on cash 4,56¢ (6,43€) (4,729
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents $ (4599) $ (57,669 (201,90¢)

Operating Activities

Cash used in operations during 2012 was US$ 30l®mcompared to cash generated during 2011 of @S$ million, due to the impact of the decline in the televi
advertising market on our financial performancetipalarly on cash receipts, and an increase imays for foreign programming and local productionr free cash flow in tt
prior year also benefited from an advance collecimogram for customers that were granted discdorpstly much earlier than our normal terms, whiehhave not repeated.
paid interest of US$ 104.7 million on our Seniort@&& Convertible Notes and credit facilities in 2@bmpared to US$ 111.8 million in 2011 .

Cash generated from continuing operations of US$ 28llion in 2011 reflected the generation of piesi cash flows from our Broadcast operations irfgBria, the Czec
Republic, Romania, the Slovak Republic and Sloveasawell as improvements in working capital, whigére partially offset by the negative cash flowesnf our Broadca
operations in Croatia and our MPE operations. We jpgerest of US$ 111.8 million on our Senior No&nd Convertible Notes in 2011 compared to US$31®(llion in 2010.

During 2010 cash used in continuing operationseotsl an increase of US$ 39.0 million in interestnpents compared to the prior year as well as tmiraged impact of th
market slowdown on the level of cash generatedunyoperations.

Investing Activities
Our investing cash flows in 2012 primarily compddg8S$ 32.7 million relating to capital expenditures

Our investing cash flows in 2011 primarily compdddS$ 34.2 million relating to capital expenditusesl net cash paid for Bontonfilm of US$ 8.8 miilitsee Item 8, Note
“Acquisitions and Disposals”).

Our investing cash flows in 2010 primarily compdd8S$ 409.5 million relating to the acquisitiontbé bTV group and US$ 46.0 million relating to ¢apéxpenditures.
Financing Activities

Cash provided by financing activities during 2012swJS$ 11.9 million compared to cash used of US$ 88llion during 2011 The amount of net cash provided by finan
activities in 2012 reflected proceeds from the asme of unregistered shares (see Item 8, NoteEHiity") and issuance of additional Senior Notesuced by payments made
purchases of our 2013 Convertible Notes and 20d4tiRlg Rate Notes (see Item 8, Note 5, "Ldmym Debt and Other Financing Arrangements"), ab agethe increase
restricted cash deposited with the trustee of 682 onvertible Notes for their settlement at migtur

The amount of net cash used in 2011 primarily ot$l&)S$ 32.1 million paid in connection with thekanges of 2013 Convertible Notes for 2015 CorverfNotes and US$ 7¢
million paid to repurchase of a portion of the 20E&ed Rate Notes and the 2013 Convertible Notee (#em 8, Note 5, "Longerm Debt and Other Financi
Arrangements”). These payments were partially bffsenet proceeds from credit facilities, which lided drawings of US$ 84.9 million from the Secufeelvolving Cred
Facility.

The amount of net cash received in 2010 reflediedssuance of EUR 170.0 million (approximately \238.5 million at the date of issuance) aggregsteipal amount of 201
Fixed Rate Notes, less costs of US$ 12.0 milli@amtiglly offset by the repayment of CZK 1.45 billigapproximately US$ 78.1 million at the date qfagment) of credit facilitie
the repayment of a revolving facility in SlovenigElJR 22.5 million (approximately US$ 30.2 milliat the date of repayment), the repurchase of appedaly US$ 101.5 millio
of our Senior Notes and 2013 Convertible Notes dB8& 6.5 million paid in connection with the acqti@is of noncontrolling interests (see Item 8, N8te¢'/Acquisitions an
Disposals"). A credit facility with Erste Group BaA.G. that had been drawn in full in 2010 was répa full on October 21, 2010 using the proceedsnf the issuance of t
2017 Fixed Rate Notes.

Discontinued Operation

Our former Ukraine operations were sold in Aprill20
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Il (b) Sources and Uses of Cash

We believe that our current cash resources aréciuff to allow us to continue operating for atsiethe next twelve months, after considering thetensa disclosed und
“Contractual Obligations, Commitments and Off-Balarsheet Arrangements” and “Cash Outlook” below.

Our ongoing source of cash at our broadcast andmedia operations is primarily the receipt of pagyteefrom advertisers, advertising agencies and spsn This may
supplemented from time to time by local borrowiSgrplus cash, after funding the ongoing statiorratpens, may be remitted to us, where appropri&erplus cash is remitted
us in the form of debt interest payments and chgfmyments, dividends, and other distributions laans from our subsidiaries.

Corporate law in the Central and Eastern Europeantdes in which we operate stipulates generaist tividends may be declared by the partners anesiolders out of yeal
profits subject to the maintenance of registerqutak required reserves and after the recovergoofimulated losses. The reserve requirement testrigenerally provides tr
before dividends may be distributed, a portionroiwal net profits (typically 5.0%be allocated to a reserve, which is capped abpoption of the registered capital of a comg
(ranging from 5.0% to 25.0% The restricted net assets of our consolidatédidiaries and equity in earnings of investmentoanted for under the equity method togethe
less than 25.0% of consolidated net assets.

Il (c) Contractual Obligations, Commitments and Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Our future contractual obligations as at Decemie2812 are as follows:

Payments due by period (US$ 000's)

Total Less than 1 yea 1-3 years 3-5years  More than 5 years
Long-Term Debt — principa? $ 1,213,339 $ 64 % 261,48. $ 948,12: $ 3,14:
Long-Term Debt — principal payable from restrictagh 20,64° 20,64° — — —
Long-Term Debt — intere&t 475,64: 115,32( 229,91 130,40t —
Unconditional Purchase Obligations 365,68 159,33. 160,20( 44,35 1,80¢
Operating Leases 28,04« 6,28 6,71 3,91( 11,13«
Capital Lease Obligations 4,48 1,21¢ 1,58¢ 85¢ 82(
Other Long-Term Obligations 131,35( 30,15¢ 34,78¢ 22,84( 43,57
Total Contractual Obligations $ 2,239,251 $ 333,60 $ 694,68 $ 1,150,48 $ 60,47:

(1) Maturities of principal exclude the 2013 Coriile Notes for which we have irrevocably deposité®$ 21.0 million in escrow with the trustee of 2@13 Convertible Not
(see Item 8, Note 8, "Other Assets"). The princgrabunt of the 2013 Convertible Notes outstandmgtaDecember 31, 2012 has been separately prdserttes table as Long-
Term Debt — principal payable from restricted cash.

(2) The amounts presented exclude interest on @8 Zonvertible Notes for which we have irrevocatigposited US$ 21.0 million in escrow, which représ the aggreg:
principal amount plus all interest that will be pale when the 2013 Convertible Notes mature on Mak; 2013. (see Item 8, Note 8, "Other Assets").

Long-Term Debt

For more information on our Long-Term Debt, seenlt®, Note 5, “Long-Term Debt and Other Financingaf\gements”. Interest payable on our Ldregm Debt is calculats
using interest rates and exchange rates as at bec&h, 2012 .

Unconditional Purchase Obligations

Unconditional purchase obligations primarily corsprfuture programming commitments. At December2812, we had commitments in respect of future programgnaf US¢
356.8 million . This includes contracts signed witlense periods starting after December 31, 2012 .

Other Long-Term Obligations

Other long-term obligations include US$ 131.2 milliof digital transmission commitments and US$million related to an interest rate swap (see I1&rlote 12, Financia
Instruments and Fair Value Measurements”).

Operating Leases

For more information on our operating lease comreiits see Iltem 8, Note 19, “Commitments and Conticigs”.

Other

Top Tone Media Holdings Limited has exercisedigétrto acquire additional equity in CME BulgariaVB Upon consummation of the equity transfer, wé aivn 90.0%of out

Bulgaria Broadcast operations. The option strikeepis the fair value of the equity in CME Bulgarés determined by an independent valuation. Tésing of this transaction ¢
not yet occurred because the purchaser financistjlipending.
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Il (d) Cash Outlook

Historically, our operations have generated castvdl sufficient, in conjunction with equity and ddltancing, to fund our operations and our invesgtattivities. During th
difficult economic conditions in our markets sirtbe end of 2008, cash flows from operating actsithave declined. While cash flows from operatictivities were positive i
2011, they were US$ (30.0) millian 2012 due to the impact of the decline in thewision advertising market on our financial perfarmoe, particularly on cash receipts, an
increase in payments for foreign programming awdllproduction. As at December 31, 2012, we had US%4 million of cash and cash equivalents.

We continue to take steps to conserve cash, ingudirgeted reductions to our operating cost daseigh cost optimization programs. In addition,ave exploring further optio
to improve our liquidity, including new equity finaeings, asset sales and continuing the renegatiafipayment obligations with a number of majorigrs. In this respect, \
are in discussion with Time Warner regarding itsgdlole participation in a public or private equiffering. We are also evaluating other measurésrtber optimize or restruct.
our cost base. The nearest principal repaymengatih on our londerm debt is November 2015, following the repaymanthe 2013 Convertible Notes in March 2013 »
funds deposited in escrow during 2012.

There can be no assurances that our overall fiahperformance will improve or that the steps otti above will be successful. Without such improsemwe will hav
difficulties attracting equity investors. Under andentures we are able to borrow only limited &ddal funds, either at the parent or subsidiameleWe believe that we ¢
taking appropriate actions to monitor and addrhesisks affecting our business, and with our auroash balances, cash generative operations, arking capital manageme
initiatives, taken together, we believe we will baadequate cash resources to meet our debt saricether financial obligations for the next twelwenths. If there is not
sustained recovery in the television advertisingkeiaover the mediunterm, we are unsuccessful in securing additionaitgedinancing, cannot sell assets, or are unat
renegotiate supplier credit terms, we may be un@hfeeet our debt service obligations and genefatig our operations some time beyond the nextveveionths.

Credit ratings and future debt issuances

Our corporate credit is rated B3 with negative @akl by Moody's and CCC+ with the negative outlogk3&P. Ratings agencies have indicated that reterdf these ratings
dependent on maintaining an adequate liquidityilerahcluding maintaining at least US$ 125.0 roifliof cash. We may not be able to meet this liquigdyameter in the ne
twelve months if market conditions in the terrigmiin which we operate worsen more than expectedhich case it is possible that the rating ageneiél downgrade
further. The availability of additional liquiditis dependent upon new equity financings, asses salé the renegotiation of payment obligations a&itiumber of major supplie
as well as on our continued financial performangerating performance and credit ratings. We areently able to raise only a limited amount of amdial debt but there are
indenture constraints on our ability to refinangistng debt.

Credit rating agencies have made liquidity andréfated key ratios a particular priority. One o #ey indicators used by the ratings agenciessigaisig credit ratings to us is ¢
gross leverage ratio, which was 9.3 times at Deeer@b, 2012 and is calculated as our gross delutediby our trailing twelvenonth OIBDA (calculated in accordance with
indentures excluding stock based compensation aB&® of our unrestricted entities) (‘LTM OIBDA"). A at December 31, 2012 , our total gross debt &f 1J317.6 millior
excluding the principal amount of funds irrevocaliBposited with the trustee of the 2013 Convertii¢es to repurchase those notes at maturity wasum of the remainii
Senior Notes, the 2015 Convertible Notes, otheditfacilities and obligations under capital leas@sd the liabilities under our interest rate s\agpeement as disclosed in
consolidated financial statements. Our LTM OIBDAsA#S$ 131.6 million and the ratio of gross debs lessh to LTM OIBDA was 8.2 at December 31, 20d/hich is a measu
of our leverage after considering our cash balaAcether measure of our leverage, typically applgdratings agencies, is the ratio of net debtefmorted OIBDA, which i
calculated as gross debt less cash divided by tegp@IBDA. The ratio of net debt to reported OIBRAs 8.6 as at December 31, 2012 .

Unrestricted and Restricted Subsidiaries

As at, and for the year ended December 31, 20&2)iirestricted Subsidiaries did not constitute figant Subsidiaries (as this term is defined ia thdenture governing the 2(
Fixed Rate Notes) of CME Ltd.

Credit risk of financial counterparties

We have entered into a number of significant catgravith financial counterparties as follows:

Interest Rate Swap

On February 9, 2010, we entered into an interéstawap agreement with UniCredit Bank Czech Repuphls. and CSAS expiring in April 2013 to reduee impact of changir
interest rates on our previously outstanding fluptiate debt (see Item 8, Note 12, “Financial lmetents and Fair Value Measurement$i)e do not consider that there is
substantial risk to our liquidity if our counterfias were unable to meet their respective rightieuthe interest swap agreement.

Cash Deposits

We deposit cash in the global money markets witlinge of bank counterparties and review the copatées we choose weekly. The maximum period pbdg is three montl
but we have more recently held amounts on deposgHtorter periods, from overnight to one monthe Thedit rating of a bank is a critical factor ietekrmining the size of ca
deposits and we will only deposit cash with bankaroinvestment grade of A or A2 or higher. In didai we also closely monitor the credit default pvgpreads and other mat
information for each of the banks with which we sider depositing or have deposited funds.

Il (e) Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

None.
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IV. Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our accounting policies affecting our financial digion and results of operations are more fullyadié®d in Note 2 to our consolidated financial esta¢nts that are included
Item 8. The preparation of these financial statémegguires us to make judgments in selecting apjat@ assumptions for calculating financial estesawhich inherently conte
some degree of uncertainty. We base our estimatdsstorical experience and on various other as§omgpthat we believe to be reasonable. Using tlestenates we ma
judgments about the carrying amounts of assetdianitities and the reported amounts of revenuesexpenses that are not readily apparent from stierces. Actual results v
differ from these estimates under different assionptor conditions.

We believe the following critical accounting poésiaffect our more significant judgments and esésased in the preparation of our consolidatezhfiral statements.
Program Rights

Program rights consist of programming acquired ftbird parties and programming (film and televigignoduced locally, which together form an impottaamponent of ot
station broadcasting schedules. Acquired prograhitsiand the related liabilities are recorded eir tross value when the license period beginstlagrograms are available
use. Where the initial airing of content allowedaiicense is expected to provide more value thiésequent airings, program rights are amortized thesr expected useful liv
in a manner which reflects the pattern we expects® and benefit from the programming. These fiimd series are amortized with the amortizationgdtain respect of ea
airing calculated in accordance with a scheduleréftects our estimate of the relative economilueaf each run. For program rights acquired uredstandard twaen license
we generally amortize 65% after the first run aB&e3after the second run. During 2011 we changecasiimate in regard to the relative economic valueach run of a threem
license, and for these we now amortize 50% onitkerfin, 28% on the second run and 22% on thd thin with effect from July 1, 2011. Had we congduo amortize conte
with an estimated three runs by 60% on the firat B0% on the second run and 16%the third run using our previous estimate duthrgfirst six months of 2012, the progi
rights amortization charge for 2012 would have bapproximately US$ 3.8 million higher, or US$ 0.88d US$ 0.05er basic common share and diluted common ¢
respectively (see ltem 8, Note 6, "Program Rights")

The program library is evaluated at least quarterlgetermine if expected revenues are sufficiemioiver the unamortized portion of each programthiEoextent that the reveni
we expect to earn from broadcasting a programaver than the book value, the program rights aiigesrdown to their net realizable value by wayredording an addition
amortization charge. Accordingly, our estimatesutfire advertising and other revenues, and ourdubroadcasting schedules have a significant impacthe value of o
program rights on the consolidated balance shekttenannual programming amortization charge resbid the consolidated statements of operationscangrehensive incom

Produced Program Righ

Through our Media Pro Entertainment segment, welygre and distribute a variety of filmed contente Thajority of this is television movies and sefiésch are predominant
expected to be exploited by transmission on ouadrast stations. In addition to this we also predeature films which are intended to be exploitétially through exhibition ii
theaters and subsequently through sales in oneo of the home video, pay TV, free TV, internaibeyndication and internet markets. Finally, w&oahcquire content frc
third parties which we distribute through all oétvindows mentioned above.

We recognize revenue from filmed content at the isl€to Entertainment level when the revenue redimgncriteria are met. In practice, it usually meaavenue on the sale
content is recognized when the finished conterivalable for our broadcasters or delivered todtipiarties (unless the license period has not bedntgrcompany revenue
eliminated upon consolidation, and this revenueoisrecognized at the CME group level until theteahis exploited by our broadcasters, which ugualéans we have earr
advertising or other revenue.

We recognize revenue from the distribution of agepliicontent when the content is available for sdgavhich is usually when we furnish a Notice @filery to our clients, ar
when the license period for the arrangement unalesideration, usually a pre-defined “window”, hagbn.

Produced program rights as shown in the consolidhtdance sheet represent the unamortized costropleted theatrical films and television episodésgatrical films an
television series in production and film rightspireparation of development. Produced program righitsch include direct costs, production overhead development costs,
stated at the lower of cost, less accumulated aratidn, or fair value.

When we recognize revenue on a title, both at #wgment and at the CME consolidated level, we aésognize a proportion of the capitalized film costghe respecti
statements of operations using the individual fiorecast model. The proportion of costs recognigeelqual to the proportion of the revenue recoghizempared to the to
revenue expected to be generated throughout k&i's tife cycle (the "ultimate revenues").

The process of evaluating a title's ultimate reesmequires management judgment and is inherauttfgctive. The calculation of ultimate revenue bara complex one, howe
the level of complexity and subjectivity is cortteld to the number of revenue streams that manaddeteves will be earned. Our process for evahgatiltimate revenues
tailored to the potential we believe a title hasdgenerating multiple types of revenues. As alremeytioned, the majority of our production is irded primarily for exploitatio
by our own broadcasters and we have few supporeadgectations of generating revenue from othercasunn such cases, we consider mainly the freeiggbn window in oL
calculation of the ultimate revenue. For produced acquired feature films or other projects wheeeds have supportable estimates of generating pteultevenue streams,
base our estimates of ultimate revenues for e&mohofin factors such as the historical performancsirilar films, the star power of the actors anttesses, the rating and genr
the film, prerelease market research (including test markeenaorgs) and the expected number of theaters inhathie film will be released. We update such estmdiased ¢
information available on the progress of the filpreduction and upon release, the actual resultscii film. Changes in estimates of ultimate reesrftrom period to period affe
the amount of film costs amortized in a given p&@ad, therefore, could have an impact on our te$ul that period.

When the estimated ultimate revenues, less addltioosts to be incurred (including exploitationtspsare less than the carrying amount of the &ibsts, the value of a film
deemed to be impaired and thus, an immediate wfitef unrecoverable film costs is recorded in toasolidated statements of operations and compseleimcome.
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Recognition of goodwill and intangible ass

We allocate the purchase price of our acquisitionthe tangible assets, liabilities and identifeabitangible assets acquired based on their estihfatr values, with the exce
purchase price over those fair values being recbadegoodwill.

The fair value assigned to identifiable intangiblesets acquired is supported by valuations thathievthe use of a large number of estimates andngstsons provided
management. If we make different estimates andngssons, the valuations of identifiable intangilalssets change, and the amount of purchase pridritgtble to these ass
also changes, leading to a corresponding chantpe imalue of goodwiill.

The assumptions and estimates that we have apydigdaccording to the date, location and type afetssacquired for each of our acquisitions. Fompta, some of tt
assumptions and estimates that we have used imdeieg the value of acquired broadcast licensesaar follows: methodology applied in valuation,cdisnt rate (being tt
weighted average cost of capital and applicablefestor), useful life of license (definite or irfitete) and probability of renewal, audience shgrewth and advertising marl
share, power ratio and growth, revenue growthHerforecast period and then in perpetuity, opegatiargin growth, future capital expenditure andkirag capital requiremen
future cost saving as a result of the switch framaaalog to a digital environment, inflation andriforce cost, among others.

All assumptions and estimates applied were basdzkshestimates at the respective acquisition défeschanged our estimate as of January 1, 201hdéoremaining useful li
of the broadcast license recorded in connectioh thigé acquisition of the bTV group, see Item 8,eNbt'Goodwill and Intangible Assets".

Impairment of goodwill, indefinite live intangible assets and long-lived assets

We assess the carrying amount of goodwill and atitengible assets with indefinite lives on an aairhasis, or more frequently if events or changesrcumstances indicate t
such carrying amount may not be recoverable. Qttgr our annual review, factors we consider imprntehich could trigger an impairment review includederperformance ¢
reporting units or changes in projected resultengles in the manner of utilization of the assetewere and sustained decline in the price of oareshand negative mar
conditions or economic trends. Therefore, our jueighas to the future prospects of each businesa bigsificant impact on our results and financihdition. We believe that c
assumptions are appropriate. If future cash flowsiot materialize as expected or there is a futdreerse change in market conditions, we may beleralrecover the carryil
amount of an asset, resulting in future impairniesges.

Impairment tests of goodwill and indefiniiged intangible assets are performed at the remptnit level. If potential impairments of goodingixist, the fair value of the reporti
unit is subsequently measured against the fairevaftits underlying assets and liabilities, exahgdgoodwill, to estimate an implied fair value bétreporting unit's goodwill. £
impairment loss is recognized for any excess ofcireying amount of the reporting unit's goodwieo the implied fair value. If goodwill and anothesset or asset group
tested for impairment at the same time, the otkseta are tested for impairment before goodwillhéf other asset or asset group is impaired, tEirment loss is recogniz
prior to goodwill being tested for impairment.

The fair value of each reporting unit, and consetjy¢he implied fair value of the reporting unijsodwill is determined using an income methodolesgtymating projected fut.
cash flows related to each reporting unit. Thesgepted future cash flows are discounted back ¢ovéiluation date. Significant assumptions inhenerthe methodology us
include estimates of discount rates, future revegroeith rates and a number of other factors, allloith are based on our assessment of the futospects and the risks inhet
at the respective reporting units. We have idexdifen reporting units which consist of our sixgr@phic locations for our broadcast operationsgBti&, Croatia, Czech Repub
Romania, Slovak Republic and Slovenia; the fictieality and entertainment, production services disttibution reporting units within our Media PratErtainment reportak
segment and our New Media reporting unit (which alas a reportable segment during the year endewgidber 31, 2012).

Recoverability of assets to be held and used isumed by a comparison of the carrying amount aisset to estimated undiscounted future cash flaysated to be generated
the respective asset. The same estimates ares@dadruplanning for our long- and sheaaige business planning and forecasting. We afisessasonableness of the inputs
outcomes of our undiscounted cash flow analysifnagavailable comparable market data. If the ¢gagamount of an asset exceeds its estimated undiged future cash flow
an impairment charge is recognized for the amoyntiich the carrying amount exceeds the fair valithe respective asset.

Assessing the fair value of goodwill, indefinitgdd intangible assets and loliged assets requires significant judgment and lire® a great deal of detailed quantitative
qualitative businesspecific analysis with several individual assummgiovhich fluctuate with the passage of time. Thretdelow shows the key measurements involved la¢
valuation methods applied:

Measurement Valuation Method
Recoverability of carrying amounts Undiscounted future cash flows
Fair value of broadcast licenses Build-out method

Fair value of indefinite-lived trademarks Relief from royalty method

Fair value of reporting units Discounted cash flow model

Our estimate of the cash flows our operations géherate in future periods forms the basis for neéghe significant assumptions inherent in our anment reviews. Ol
expectations of these cash flows are developedglwir long- and shorange business planning processes, which are @esignaddress the uncertainties inherent il
forecasting process by capturing a range of passiblvs about key trends which govern future césh §rowth.

Historically, the overall cash flow growth ratesved by our operations have not provided a goditation of future cash flows. This is largely hase the markets in which
operate are relatively new and have experienceld leigels of growth as advertising markets becanpaha established. Instead, we have observed owrynyears a strol
positive correlation between the maawenomic performance of our markets and the sizheofelevision advertising market and ultimatdlg tash flows we generate. With
in mind, we have placed a high importance on d@ietpour expectations for the future developmerthefmacroeconomic environment in general, the advertisingketeand oL
share of it in particular. While this has involvad appreciation of historical trends, we have plagéhigher emphasis on forecasting these markedsrevhich has involved
detailed review of macro-economic data, a rangkotfi proprietary and publicly-available estimatesffiture market development, and a process ajang consultation wit
local management.
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In developing our forecasts of future cash flows,take into account all available external estisiateaddition to considering developments in edabuo markets, which provic
direct evidence of the state of the market andréutnarket development. In concluding whether a galb@mpairment charge is necessary, we performitigairment test undel
range of possible scenarios. In order to checki¢hsonableness of the fair values implied by osh dlow estimates we also calculate the value of@ass A common sto
implied by our cash flow forecasts and comparetthactual traded values to understand the diffardietween the two.

Each method noted above involves a number of ségmf assumptions over an extended period of tirhilwcould materially change our decision as to thWieassets a
impaired. The most significant of these assumptiookide: the discount rate applied, the total afilsiag market size, achievable levels of markeirehforecast OIBDA at
capital expenditure and the rate of growth intgpéurity, each described in more detail below:

. Cost of capital: The cost of capital reflects tetirn a hypothetical market participant would regdor a longterm investment in an asset and can be viewedasxa
for the risk of that asset. We calculate the cosapital according to the Capital Asset Pricingddbusing a number of assumptions, the most sagmifiof which is
Country Risk Premium (“CRP”")The CRP reflects the excess risk to an investdnwdsting in markets other than the United States$ generally fluctuates wi
expectations of changes in a country's maoAomic environment. The costs of capital thahese applied to cash flows in all reporting unitsh@ end of 2012 we
lower than those we had used in our annual impaitmeview at the end of 2011, which was driven priity by a reduction in the CRP.

e  Total advertising market: Thsze of the television advertising market effedfiyelaces an upper limit on the advertising revemweecan expect to earn in each coul
Our estimate of the total advertising market iseleped from a number of external sources, in coatlnin with a process of ogeing consultation with loc
management. In our annual impairment review pergatim the fourth quarter, we decreased our shad-raediumterm view of the size of the television adverti
markets based on current market views regardingtbroates in the coming periods before marketswexcm the long-term.

U Market share: This is a function of the audienc@slwe expect our stations to generate, and thévelprice at which we can sell advertising. Cstineate of the tot
advertising market is developed from a number ¢éremal sources, in combination with a process efioing consultation with local management.

. Forecast OIBDA: The level of cash flow generatedebgh operation is ultimately governed by the exterwhich we manage the relationship between neggran
costs. We forecast the level of operating costsebgrence to (a) the historical absolute and redalévels of costs we have incurred in generatexgmue in eac
reporting unit, (b) the operating strategy of eholsiness and (c) specific forecast costs to berieduOur annual impairment review includes assionptto reflec
further cost control we intend to execute.

. Forecast capital expenditure: The size and phasfirgapital expenditure, both recurring expendittogeplace retired assets and investments in neyeqis, has
significant impact on cash flows. We forecast #ael of future capital expenditure based on curstnategies and specific forecast costs to be iaduin line with o
ongoing efforts to protect our operating margihs, absolute levels of capital expenditure foremasiained broadly constant with the prior year impant reviews.

e  Growth rate into perpetuity: This reflects the llewé economic growth in each of our markets frore tast forecasted period into perpetuity and issiten of a
estimated real growth rate, which reflects ourdjeat macraconomic growth in our markets will eventually cerye to Western European markets, and long
expectations for inflation. Our estimates of thetes are based on observable market data anchbaebanged since the end of 2011.

We anticipated that 2012 would be a challenging f@athe advertising markets in the territoriesvhich we operate, but we expected the rate ofrkeah advertising spending
reduce by the end of the year and particularlyrduthe fourth quarter. There was an overall impnoet in the perceived level of risk associated witresting in the Eurozol
and its periphery, which led to the reduction infFGRas at December 31, 2012 noted above; howeigdithnot translate into a corresponding improvenire advertising spendil
during the fourth quarter of 2012 that we previgiestpected. The fourth quarter is traditionally thest significant quarter for television advertgsiand therefore this period te!
to have a larger influence on developing our laagd short-range forecasts for our businesses.

Our mediumterm outlook included in forecasts used for ounjmes impairment review performed in 2011 antiogghaé recovery in total advertising spending dugi3, whicl
was consistent with then current internal and eweprojections for the television advertising neskin our territories following overall flat grolwin these advertising mark
during 2011. During 2012 the demand for televisidnertising declined across our markets and a exgadu the fourth quarter of 2012 that we expeeedier in the year did n
occur because advertisers did not honor previoesdipg commitments. As a result, our outlook fdufa periods is less certain and we made signifidawnward revisions
our estimates of the cash flows that our operatigitiggenerate in future periods. This decreasestimated future cash flows during the impairmentew performed during tl
fourth quarter of 2012 more than offset the impHdhe decrease in the cost of capital, and resutteestimated fair values for each reporting timétt were significantly less th
those calculated during the previous impairmeniergvn 2011. The Romania Broadcast and MPE didibbureporting units specifically benefited frometbdecrease in cost
capital between 2011 and 2012. Had the cost otalagsed to estimate the fair value of these ré@ppuinits remained constant year-oyear, it is possible that we would hi
been required to record additional goodwill impants.

Our current mediunterm outlook included in forecasts used for theampent review performed during the fourth quadef012 expects continuing challenges in our ma
during 2013. This difference from the impairmentieev performed in 2011 related to the timing ofaeery causes current projections for the size efdativertising market ov
the longterm in certain territories to be less than thaugalcalculated under significant adverse changeskslow) when evaluating our significant accountstimates in tt
prior year, and resulted in a significant decréaghe estimated fair values of each reporting img012 when compared to the amounts estimat201ia.

We recorded certain impairments of indefinite-liietangible assets, lorgred assets, and goodwill in our Bulgaria, Czedp#blic, Romania and Slovak Republic Broac
reporting units during 2012 (see Item 8, Note 40d@will and Intangible Assets"). In connection wihr 2012 goodwill impairment analysis, we haveatoded that the tot
estimated fair values used for purposes of theatresteasonable by comparing the market capitaizaif the Company to the results of the discoumtsh flows analysis of ¢
reporting units, as adjusted for unallocated cafmassets and liabilities.
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The table below shows the percentage movementirdbts of capital that we applied to each repprtinit with goodwill between the 2011 annual impant review and tt
annual impairment review performed in 2012 alonthwhe adverse movement, in percentage terms,regtjto make the fair value of the reporting uniti@atheir carryin

amounts (with all other assumptions constant):

Percentage change in cost of capital

Reporting Unit

Between 2011 and 2012 review Necessary to break even

Bulgaria

Croatia

Czech Republic

Romania

Slovak Republic

Slovenia

Fiction and Reality and Entertainment

Distribution

(1.6)% N/A @
(1.8)% 50.0%
(0.9)% N/A ®
(1.5)% 6.2%
(0.9)% 8.1%
(0.4)% 41.9%
(1.1)% 11.3%
(1.1)% 1.1%

(1) Goodwill in these reporting units was impairkding the fourth quarter of 2012.

For those reporting units with goodwill as at Debem31, 2012, the following compound cash flow diowates are necessary to avoid failing Step hefgoodwill impairmer
test. For comparison, we have also included thepcoimd average cash flow growth rates currently iapby our estimates of future cash flows:

Reporting Unit

Break even growth rate (%)" Growth rate currently implied (%) *

Bulgaria®

Croatia

Czech Republié

Romania

Slovak Republic

Slovenia

Fiction and Reality and Entertainment
Distribution

23.3% 23.3%
44.5% 50.1%
6.6% 6.6%
18.0% 18.9%
30.2% 31.3%
3.9% 9.4%
17.1% 20.0%
29.5% 29.8%

(1) The breakeven growth rates and the implied current growtesraeflect the level of cash currently generateddr operations. Those reporting units which autiy
generate the majority of our cash flows have theeki implied growth rates and the reporting unésegating the minority of our cash flows have highgplied growtt
rates. These growth rates are calculated by agplyiconstant annual growth rate to current yedr fiaw forecasts, with all other variables constauitch that the n
present value of all future cash flows to perpgtaijuals the carrying amount of the reporting srassets for the bre@ken rate or our estimate of the fair value o
reporting unit for the rate currently implied. Suettes do not indicate our expectation of cash fipewth in any given year, nor are they necessanlyparable wit

actual growth rates achieved in previous years.
(2) Rates reflective of value used for Step 2 afdyaill impairment test.

The table below shows whether an adverse chang)@.0% in any of our most significant assumptionsild@esult in additional impairments after reflectithe impairment char
recognized in the year ended December 31, 2012 .aflmgrse change in assumptions would impact thgaBial and Czech Republic Broadcast reporting Umgtause the balar
was not fully written-off. Where an adverse chanfkess than 10.0% would result in an impairmemg, level of that change is presented parenthsticall

10% Adverse Change in:

Indefinite- lived trademarks Goodwill

Cost of Capital
Total Advertising Market
Market Share

Forecast OIBDA
Forecast Capital Expenditure
Perpetuity Growth Rate

Romania (6.2%), Slovak Republic (8.1¢

None Distribution (1.1%,
Croatia (8.3%), Romania (2.5%), Slovak Repu
None (2.0%)
Croatia (8.3%), Romania (2.5%), Slovak Repu
None (2.0%)

Romania (7.2%), Slovak Republic (9.2¢

Not applicable Distribution (2.3%,

Not applicable None

None None

Given the current outlook for television advertgsimarkets in the territories in which we operate, @stimates consider the uncertainty of marketvgiran the short- and medium-

term, and primarily reflect growth returning latean previously estimated.
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The equity fair value of each reporting unit whgo®dwill was not impaired as of December 31, 2058 substantially in excess of its equity carryimgpant, with the exceptic
of the MPE distribution reporting unit where theuity fair value was 4.0%nore than its equity carrying amount. The balanicgamdwill allocated to each reporting uni
presented in Item 8, Note 4, "Goodwill and Intafgissets".

We consider all current information in respect effprming our impairment reviews and calculating @upairment charges. If our cash flow forecasts dar operatior
deteriorate, or if uncertainty surrounding the Earte and its periphery returns causing costs dfatdp increase, we may be required to recognititmnal impairment charg
in later periods.

Revenue Recognitic

Net revenues predominantly comprise revenues flwmsale of advertising time less discounts and @geommissions, and theatrical distribution of lmNet revenues ¢
recognized when the advertisement is aired asdsriere is persuasive evidence that an arrangemitera customer exists, the price of the deliveaddertising time is fixed |
determinable, and collection of the arrangemenifaeasonably assured. In the event that a custtaite significantly behind its contractual payrhéerms, revenue is deferi
until the customer has resumed normal payment terms

Agency commissions, where applicable, are calcdlbtesed on a stated percentage applied to grdisg lbdvenue. Advertisers remit the gross billimgaunt to the agency and
agency remits gross billings, less their commissiorus when the advertisement is not placed dyrést the advertiser. Payments received in advahdeing earned are recor(
as deferred income.

We record sales from theatrical distribution ofni§l as films are exhibited. Sales of home videdsphe return provision, are recognized as incorhemthe videos are deliverec
and available for sale by retailers. Revenue frieenking of film and television programming is rgoized when we make the material available fongiri

We maintain a bad debt provision for estimateddssgsulting from the inability of our customersnieke required payments. If the financial conditidrour customers were
deteriorate, additional allowances may be requinefditure periods. We review the accounts receidtalances periodically and our historical bad detdtomer concentratic
and customer creditworthiness when evaluating degjaacy of our provision.

Income Taxe

The provision for income taxes includes local ameifjn taxes. Deferred tax assets and liabilittesrecognized for the estimated future tax consecpeeof temporary differenc
between the financial statement carrying amountistheir respective tax bases. Deferred tax assetdiabilities are measured using enacted tax mpscted to apply to taxa
income in the year in which the temporary diffeen@re expected to be recovered or settled. Weiaeathe realizability of our deferred tax asseid establish a valuati
allowance when it is more likely than not thatall portion of deferred tax assets will not bdized.

In evaluating the realizability of our deferred &ssets, we consider all available positive anéitieg evidence, including future reversals of engstaxable temporary differenc
projected future taxable income, tax planning sgs and recent financial operations. Any redudticestimated forecasted results may requireweatecord additional valuati
allowances against our deferred tax assets. Ouakiation allowance has been established, it wiliraintained until there is sufficient positivedamce to conclude that it is m
likely than not that such assets will be realiz&d.ongoing pattern of sustained profitability wgénerally be considered as sufficient positive ena. If the allowance is rever:
in a future period, our income tax provision wié beduced to the extent of the reversal. Accorglintjle establishment and reversal of valuationwadltces has had and cc
continue to have a significant negative or positiapact on our future earnings.

We measure deferred tax assets and liabilitieguemacted tax rates that, if changed, would réswdither an increase or decrease in the provigipimncome taxes in the period
change.

We recognize in the consolidated financial statémtrose tax positions determined to be “moreyikkan not"of being sustained upon examination, based oretttentcal merit
of the positions.

From time to time, we engage in transactions, sichusiness combinations and dispositions, in wiiettax consequences may be subject to uncert&iggificant judgment
required in assessing and estimating the tax coesegs of these transactions. We prepare andafilesturns based on interpretation of tax laws regdlations. In the norm
course of business, our tax returns are subjeekamination by various taxing authorities. Suchngxations may result in future tax and intereseassents by these tax
authorities. We only recognize tax benefits takerax returns when we believe they are “more likbBn not’of being sustained upon examination based on tibenical merit:
There is considerable judgment involved in detemginvhether positions taken on the tax return ameré likely than not” of being sustained.

We recognize, when applicable, both accrued inteaed penalties related to unrecognized benefithdome tax expense in the accompanying consotidstatements
operations and comprehensive income. The lialfdityaccrued interest and penalties was US$ 0.0amiind US$ 0.3 million at December 31, 2012 antil20respectively.

Foreign exchang

Our reporting currency and functional currencyhis tollar but a significant portion of our consalied revenues and costs are in other currencigading programming righ
expenses and interest on debt. In addition, ouioB&lotes are denominated in Euros. CME Ltd. hasational currency of the dollar. All of our otheperations have functior
currencies other than the dollar.

We record assets and liabilities denominated iareeacy other than our functional currency usirg élkchange rate prevailing at each balance shegtwith any change in val
between reporting periods being recognized aswadrion gain or loss in our consolidated statesnehtperations and comprehensive income. We gresexl to foreign curren
on the revaluation of monetary assets and liagdliienominated in currencies other than the lagattional currency of the relevant subsidiary. Timsludes third pari
receivables and payables, including our Senior Natkich are denominated in Euros, as well as intepany loans, which are generally provided in awies other than tl
dollar. We recorded transaction gains of US$ 4 ianiin 2012 and transaction losses of US$ 31.lioniand US$ 5.0 million in 2011 and 2010, respeaty.
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The financial statements of our operations whosetfanal currency is other than the dollar aredtated from such functional currency to dollarshat exchange rates in effec
the balance sheet date for assets and liabilares$ at weighted average rates for the period f@mees and expenses, including gains and lossassl@tional gains and losses
charged or credited to accumulated other compréremeome, a component of equity.

Determination of the functional currency of an gntiequires considerable management judgment, wisiadtsssential and paramount to this determinafidms includes ot
assessment of a series of indicators, such asithency in which a majority of sales transactioresrzegotiated, expense incurred or financing secuf¢he nature of our busine
operations changes, such as by changing the cyrienehich sales transactions are denominated ondyrring significantly more expenditure in a difént currency, we may
required to change the functional currency of safeur operations, potentially changing the amouvesreport as transaction gains and losses indhsotidated statements
operations and comprehensive income as well asrdinslational gains and losses charged or crediteatcumulated other comprehensive income. In kstély functions
currency, specific facts and circumstances areigered carefully, and judgment is exercised ashatwypes of information might be most useful teeistors.

Contingencies

We are, from time to time, involved in certain legeoceedings and, as required, accrue our estiofatee probable costs for the resolution for thelséms. These estimates
developed in consultation with legal counsel ang lsaised upon an analysis of potential results,n@agua combination of litigation and settlementttgies. It is possib
however, that future results of operations for paxticular period could be materially affected byacges in our assumptions or the effectivenessio$tategies related to thi
proceedings. See Item 8, Note 19, “CommitmentsGomtingencies” for more detailed information ofghttion exposure.

Recent Accounting Pronounceme

See Item 8, Note 2, “Basis of Presentation and Samywf Significant Accounting Policies” for a digsion of accounting standards adopted since Dege3ib2012and recentl
issued accounting standards not yet adopted.
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V. Related Party Matters
Overview
There is a limited local market for many specialedevision services in the countries in which weerate; many of these services are provided toyugalbties known to

connected to our local shareholders. As statedd@ 850,Related Party Disclosuresiansactions involving related parties cannot nesidly be presumed to be carried out o
arm's-length basis, as the requisite conditiorofpetitive, free-market dealings may not exist. &etinue to review all of these arrangements.

We consider our related parties to be those shitetsowho have direct control and/or influence etteer parties that can significantly influence ngeraent; a “connecteqarty
is one for whom we are aware of the existence dframediate family or business connection to a di@der. We have entered into related party trafmasin all of our market
For detailed discussion of all such transactioes,|ltem 8, Note 20, “Related Party Transactions”.
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ITEM 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosuresabout Market Risk

We engage in activities that expose us to varioasket risks, including the effect of changes irefgn currency exchange rates and interest ratesddhot engage in specula
transactions, nor do we hold or issue financiatiments for trading purposes.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk Management
Although our functional currency is the dollar, s@nduct business in a number of foreign curreramesour Senior Notes are denominated in Eurosa #&sult, we are subject
foreign currency exchange rate risk due to thecedféhat foreign exchange rate movements of thasercies have on our costs and on the cash flovseaeive from ol

subsidiaries. In limited instances, we enter fotevard foreign exchange contracts to minimize ifgmecurrency exchange rate risk.

We have not attempted to hedge the Senior Noteshemdfore may continue to experience significaihg and losses on the translation of the SenidesNinto dollars due
movements in exchange rates between the Euro antbtlar.

Interest Rate Risk Management

We are party to an interest rate swap agreemeandetl to reduce our exposure to interest rate menen(see Item 8, Note 12Fitancial Instruments and Fair Va
Measurements”).

Interest Rate Table as December 31, 2012

Expected Maturity Dates 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Thereafter

Total debt in Euro (000's)

Fixed rate — — — 478,60( 240,00t —
Average interest rate (%) — — — 11.62% 9.0(% —

Total debt in US$ (000's)

Fixed rate 20,647 — 261,03: — — —
Average interest rate (%) 3.5(% — 5.0(% — — —
(1) As at December 31, 2012 , we had US$ 20.6anilli principal amount of 2013 Convertible Notes daegayment on March 15, 2013. We have irrevocaklyodited US
21.0 millionwith the trustee of the 2013 Convertible Notes,auhiepresents the aggregate principal amount flirgterest that will be payable when the 2013 Gartible Note
mature on March 15, 2013 (see Item 8, Note 8, "OMssets").

Variable Interest Rate Sensitivity as at Decemtigr2812

As discussed in Item 8, Note 5, "Long-term Debt @tlder Financing Arrangements," the amounts outiitgnunder Secured Revolving Facility were repaiddogust 16, 2012,
and all outstanding 2014 Floating Rate Notes wedeemed on October 7, 2012.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

(Financial Statements and Supplementary data lmegihe following page and end on the page immelgliateceding Item 9.)
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of GéEuropean Media Enterprises Ltd.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Central European Media Enterprisesalid subsidiaries (the "Company") as of Decemtie2812 and 2011
and the related consolidated statements of opesmtiad comprehensive income, equity and cash ffowsach of the three years in the period endeceéer 31, 2012. O
audits also included the financial statement scleetisted in the Index at Item 15. These finansi@tements and the financial statement scheduléhareesponsibility of tt
Company's management. Our responsibility is toesgan opinion on the financial statements anfinhacial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighaiqUnited States). Those standards require tagilan and perform tl
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whittdinancial statements are free of material mtsstent. An audit includes examining, on a tesisbasidence supporting t
amounts and disclosures in the financial statemémtsaudit also includes assessing the accountimgiples used and significant estimates made bgagement, as well
evaluating the overall financial statement presentaWe believe that our audits provide a reastmbasis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statetagresent fairly, in all material respects, timaricial position of Central European Media Entisgs Ltd. and subsidiaries a:
December 31, 2012 and 2011 , and the results of dperations and their cash flows for each of ree years in the period ended December 31, 201Zonformity witt
accounting principles generally accepted in theé¢hBtates of America. Also, in our opinion, theaficial statement schedule, when considered iticel® the basic consolidal
financial statements taken as a whole, presenty,fai all material respects, the information &wth therein.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stdsdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the Company's internal contvef dinancial reportin
as of December 31, 2012 , based on the criterabkstted ininternal Control-Integrated Frameworissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatafnthe Treadws
Commission and our report dated February 27, 2@mBeesed an unqualified opinion on the Companyestial control over financial reporting.

DELOITTE LLP
London, United Kingdom
February 27, 2013
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CENTRAL EUROPEAN MEDIA ENTERPRISES LTD.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(US$ 000's, except share and per share data)

December 31, 201

December 31, 201

ASSETS
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 140,39¢ 186,38t
Accounts receivable, net (Note 7) 184,49« 192,15
Program rights, net (Note 6) 120,02: 101,74:
Other current assets (Note 8) 73,64. 58,00
Total current assets 518,55! 538,28¢
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment, net (Note 9) 206,70t 217,36
Program rights, net (Note 6) 303,70t 266,21
Goodwill (Note 4) 836,53 1,095,19:
Broadcast licenses and other intangible asset¢Noét 4) 284,94. 538,19!
Other non-current assets (Note 8) 24,27 26,50¢
Total non-current assets 1,656,16 2,143,48
Total assets $ 2,174,71! 2,681,76
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 10) $ 255,68: 240,04¢
Current portion of long-term debt and other finagcarrangements (Note 5) 21,91¢ 1,05¢
Other current liabilities (Note 11) 13,76¢ 14,46¢
Total current liabilities 291,36 255,57!
Non-current liabilities
Long-term debt and other financing arrangementsgSp 1,198,87. 1,323,31
Other non-current liabilities (Note 11) 53,21: 84,94
Total non-current liabilities 1,252,08. 1,408,25!
Commitments and contingencies (Note 19)
EQUITY
CME Ltd. shareholders’ equity (Note 13):
One share of Preferred Stock of $0.08 each (Dece&ihe011 — nil) — —
77,185,129 shares of Class A Common Stock of $e@8 (December 31, 2011 — 56,892,114) 6,17« 4,551
Nil shares of Class B Common Stock of $0.08 ea@téinber 31, 2011 — 7,500,936) — 60C
Additional paid-in capital 1,556,25! 1,404,64:
Accumulated deficit (982,515) (425,70:)
Accumulated other comprehensive income 46,15( 17,59t
Total CME Ltd. shareholders’ equity 626,06: 1,001,69:
Noncontrolling interests 5,20¢ 16,25(
Total equity 631,26° 1,017,94.
Total liabilities and equity $ 2,174,71 2,681,76!

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofétemsolidated financial statements.

51




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHEN

Net revenues

Operating expenses:
Operating costs
Cost of programming

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

CENTRAL EUROPEAN MEDIA ENTERPRISES LTD.

(US$ 000's, except per share data)

SIVE INCOME

For The Years Ending December 31,

Amortization of broadcast licenses and other intaleg (Note 4)

Cost of revenues
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Impairment charge (Note 4)
Operating (loss) / income
Interest income
Interest expense (Note 15)
Foreign currency exchange gain / (loss), net
Change in fair value of derivatives (Note 12)
Other income
Loss from continuing operations before tax
Credit / (provision) for income taxes
Loss from continuing operations
Discontinued operations, net of tax (Note 2)
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations (Nyte 2
Income from discontinued operations
Net (loss) / income
Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interests
Net (loss) / income attributable to CME Ltd.

Net (loss) / income
Currency translation adjustment
Comprehensive (loss) / income

Comprehensive loss attributable to noncontrollirtgriests

Comprehensive (loss) / income attributable to CME td.

PER SHARE DATA (Note 17):
Net (loss) / income per share:
Continuing operations - Basic
Continuing operations - Diluted
Discontinued operations — Basic
Discontinued operations - Diluted
Net (loss) / income attributable to CME Ltd. — Rasi
Net (loss) / income attributable to CME Ltd. — Déd

Weighted average common shares used in computirehpee amounts (000’s):

Basic
Diluted

201z 2011 201(
$ 772,088 $ 864,78 737,13
175,17 182,044 144,31

377,98 399,77 369,32

41,73 52,95 54,41

46,62’ 34,88 25,98

641,51« 669,65 594,04«

96,27« 119,58' 119,81

522,49( 68,74¢ 397

(488,19) 6,79: 22,87

77¢ 2,75¢ 2,23¢

(127,96 (161,45) (133,509

4,92 (31,129 (5,030

49,02' 7,281 1,16¢

901 1 357

(560,53) (175,759 (111,899

14,13¢ (3,850) (5,02%)

(546,39) (179,609 (116,929

— — (3,929

— — 217,61

— — 213,69

(546,39) (179,609 96,77:

10,71 4,99: 3,40:

$ (535,68) $ (174,61) 100,17
(546,39) (179,609 96,77:

28,65 (59,430 (17,58¢)

$ (517,74) $ (239,039 79,18
10,61 4,27: 2,821

$ (507,12) $ (234,76) 82,00t
$ (6.96 $ 2.79) (1.79)
(6.96) .79 (1.7

— — 3.3¢

_ — 3.3¢

$ (6.96 $ 2.79) 1.57
$ (6.96 $ .79 1.57
76,91¢ 64,38t 64,02¢

76,91¢ 64,38t 64,02¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofél@msolidated financial statements.
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CENTRAL EUROPEAN MEDIA ENTERPRISES LTD.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY
(US$ 000’s, except share data)

CME Ltd.
Series A Convertible Class A Class B
Preferred Stock Common Stock Common Stock
Accumulated
Additional Other
Number Par Number of Par Number of Par Paid-In Accumulated = Comprehensive Noncontrolling
of shares value shares value shares value Capital Deficit Income Interest  Total Equity
BALANCE December 31, 2009 — —  56,046,17 $4,48¢ 749093 $ 59¢ $ 1,410,558 $ (333,99) $ 9591 $ (5,749 $ 1,171,84
Stock-based compensation _ _ _ — — — 7,418 — — — 7,41F
Acquisition of noncontrolling
interests - Pro. BG business — — — — — — (34,69¢) — — 31,44¢ (3,250)
Acquisition of noncontrolling
interest - Pro TV, MPI and MV — — 800,00 64 — — (5,56¢) — — (684) (6,189
Adjustment - Media Pro
Entertainment — — — — — — — — — (1,14¢€) (1,14¢)
Stock option exercised — — 32,31: 2 — — 58¢ — — — 591
Other — — — — — — (524) — — — (524
Dividends — — — — — — — — — 173 179
Net income / (loss) — — — — — — — 100,17 — (3,402 96,77:
Currency translation adjustment — — — — — — — — (18,167 581 (17,586
BALANCE December 31, 2010 — — 56,878,48 $ 4,55( 749093 $ 59¢ $ 1,377,80. $ (233,819 $ 77,748 $ 20,87: $ 1,247,75
Stock-based compensation _ _ _ _ — — 5,89¢ — — — 5,89¢
Repurchase of 2013 Convertible
Notes — — — — — — (8,389 — — — (8,387)
Issuance of 2015 Convertible
Notes, net of transaction costs —_ - — — — — 11,85: — — — 11,85:
Reclassification of capped call
options — — — — — — 17,27: (27,279 — — —
Stock options exercised — — 13,62¢ 1 10,00( 1 24C — — — 247
Other _ _ _ — _ — (35) — _ — (35)
Dividends — — — — — — — — — (350) (350)
Net loss — — — — — — — (174,61)) — (4,999 (179,609
Currency translation adjustment — — — — — — — — (60,15() 72C (59,43()
BALANCE December 31, 2011 — — 56,892,11 $ 4,551 7,500,931 $ 60C $ 1,404,64 $ (425,70) $ 17,598 $ 16,25( $ 1,017,94.
Stock-based compensation _ _ _ — — — 4,24¢ — — — 4,24¢
Conversion of Class B shares to
Class A shares (Note 13) — — 7,516,931 601 (7,516,93) (601) — — — — —
Share issuances
(Note 13) 1 — 12,776,07 1,022 — — 127,34: — — — 128,36:
Repurchase of 2013 Convertible
Notes (Note 5) — — — — — — (869) — — — (86¢)
Reclassification of capped call
options (Note 5) — — — — — — 21,131 (21,13) — — —
Stock options exercised _ _ _ _ 16,00( 1 32 — _ _ 33
Dividends — — — — — — — — — (427 (427)
Other = = = = = = (289 = = = (28%)
Net loss — — — — — — — (535,68() — (10,719 (546,39)
Currency translation adjustment — — — — — — — — 28,55¢ 96 28,65
BALANCE December 31, 2012 1 — 77,185,12 $6,17¢ — $ — $ 155625 $ (982,51) $ 46,15( $ 520¢ $ 631,26

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofét@msolidated financial statements.
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CENTRAL EUROPEAN MEDIA ENTERPRISES LTD.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(US$ 000's)
For The Years Ending December 31,
2012 2011 201
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net (loss) / income $ (546,39) (179,609 96,77
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash (igedgenerated from operating activities:
Income from discontinued operations (Note 2) — — (213,69)
Amortization of program rights 256,47: 276,07¢ 246,58:
Depreciation and other amortization 111,22! 115,06° 111,05«
Net loss on extinguishment of debt (Note 5) 19¢ 25,90+ 5,29¢
Impairment charge (Note 4) 522,49( 68,74¢ 397
(Gain) / loss on disposal of fixed assets (281) 567 (59)
Stock-based compensation (Note 16) 4,24¢ 5,89¢ 6,83
Change in fair value of derivatives (Note 12) (49,02 (7,28)) (1,169
Foreign currency exchange (gain) / loss, net (4,927) 31,12« 5,03(
Net change in (net of effects of acquisitions aisgiakals of businesses):
Accounts receivable, net 5,742 17,02t (19,549
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (12,677 (19,259 (1,477)
Program rights (301,969 (304,939 (289,45)
Other assets (97€) 4,19( 18,68
Accrued interest 3,382 (3,059 47€
Income taxes payable 4,92¢ 2,77¢ (1,25%)
Deferred revenue 54z 6,582 (3,939
Deferred taxes (24,019 (6,149 (8,53))
VAT and other taxes payable 1,001 (4,045 (1,642
Net cash (used in) / generated from operating acities (30,027 29,63¢ (49,619
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (32,73)) (34,197 (45,98Y)
Disposal of property, plant and equipment 30€ 1,091 11E
Investments in subsidiaries, net of cash acquired — (9,597 (410,89
Net cash used in investing activities (32,42¢) (42,699 (456,77()
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Repurchase of Senior Notes (290,139 (73,56() (101,47)
Payment on exchange of Convertible Notes — (32,12¢) —
Debt transactions costs (7,000 (2,109 (15,31()
Issuance of Senior Notes 228,89( — 237,46:
Change in restricted cash (20,977) — 69€
Proceeds from credit facilities 195,25 104,15: 203,49t
Payment of credit facilities and capital leases (105,879 (34,459 (312,199
Issuance of common stock 15,03¢ — —
Equity issuance costs (2,9472) — —
Acquisition of noncontrolling interests — — (6,467
Settlement of forward currency swaps (82 — —
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 33 242 591
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensatiangements — — 667
Dividends paid to holders of noncontrolling inteses (30¢) (31€) (12¢)
Net cash provided by / (used in) financing activigs 11,89¢ (38,16 7,33¢
NFET CASH [ISFD IN DISCONTINIIED OPFRATION— OPFRATING ACTIVITIES — — (5 021



NET CASH FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS — INVESTINGGY IVITIES

— — 307,79(

Impact of exchange rate fluctuations on cash 4,56¢ (6,43€) (4,727)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (45,997 (57,669 (201,90¢)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of period 186,38t 244,05( 445,95:

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of period $ 140,39 $ 186,38t $ 244,05(
The accompanying notes are an integral part ofel@msolidated financial statements.
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SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid for interest

Cash paid for income taxes (net of refunds)

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NON-CASH FINANCING AND | NVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Conversion of credit facility to shares of Seriepr&ferred stock and Class A common stock (Note 13)

Issuance of 800,000 shares of Class A common $toobnnection with acquisition of noncontrollingenest (Note
3)

Issuance of call option in connection with restmuicty of Pro.BG business (Note 3)

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment unceapital lease

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofétemsolidated financial statements.
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CENTRAL EUROPEAN MEDIA ENTERPRISES LTD.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Tabular amounts in US$ 000's, except per share da

1. ORGANIZATION AND BUSINESS

Central European Media Enterprises Ltd. ("CME Ltdd' Bermuda company limited by shares, is a madéentertainment company operating leading braadpeoduction ar
distribution, and new media businesses in Centrd|Eastern Europe. References to the "Companye;,"ws" or "our" refer to CME Ltd. and its constdied subsidiaries. C
assets are held through a series of Dutch and @wmirlaglding companies. At December 31, 201#e operated mainly in Bulgaria, Croatia, the ®zBepublic, Romania, t
Slovak Republic and Slovenia.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, we managrebusiness on a divisional basis, with ttoperating segments, Broadcast, Media Pro Entertzihnour production ai
distribution business, and New Media, which wess a@ur reportable segments. See Note 18, "Segn#tat r a discussion of changes to our segmeaits fanuary 1, 2013.

Broadcast

Our Broadcast segment consists of 36 televisiomrodla primarily in sixcountries. We generate advertising revenues irBooadcast segment primarily through entering
agreements with advertisers, advertising agencidsponsors to place advertising on the televisimnnels that we operate. Our main general emerait television channels
each country are distributed on a freeatobasis terrestrially in analog, digital or botlepending on the digitalization status in eacmtguand are also distributed via cable
satellite. Our other channels are generally disteitl via cable and satellite. Unless otherwisécatdd, we own 100%f our broadcast operating and license companiesdf
country.

Bulgaria

We operate one general entertainment channel, Bi¥ five other channels, BTV CINEMA, BTV COMEDY, RG.BG, BTV ACTION and BTV LADY, a femal@riented cabl
channel that was launched on January 28, 2012.I8eperate several radio channels. We currently ®v0%of CME Bulgaria B.V. ("CME Bulgaria"), the subsidjathat own
our Bulgaria Broadcast operations. Top Tone Medididgs Limited (“Top Tone Holdings"), the thirdpathat owns the remaining interest in CME Bulgatias exercised
right to acquire additional equity in CME Bulgarfmwever the closing of this transaction has nbbgeurred because the purchaser financing ispgtiitling. Upon consummati
of the equity transfer, we will own 90.0% of ourl8aria Broadcast operations.

Croatia

We operate one general entertainment channel, NDVACroatia), one female-oriented channel, DOMAd#tfa), and an international channel, NOVA WORLD.

Czech Republic

We operate one general entertainment channel, TVA(@zech Republic), and six other channels, NOVINEMA, NOVA SPORT, MTV CZECH, FANDA, a malerientec
channel that was launched on July 14, 2012, SMICH®Omedy channel that was launched on Decemb@022 and TELKA, which was launched on February22A 3.

Romanie

We operate two general entertainment channels, PR@nd ACASA, and siother channels, PRO CINEMA, SPORT.RO, MTV ROMANRRO TV INTERNATIONAL, ar
international channel, PRO TV CHISINAU, a genernateetainment channel broadcasting in Moldova, aRlR8A GOLD, a femaleriented cable channel that was launche
April 15, 2012,

Slovak Republic

We operate one general entertainment channel, T\RKIZA, and three other channels, DOMA (Slovak Rdm)pa female-oriented channel, DAJTO, a matented chann
that was launched on August 20, 2012, and FOO@RBmneedy channel that was launched on February 25.20

Slovenia

We operate two general entertainment channels, PO&nd KANAL A, and POP NON STOP, a subscriptiorthzge of sixchannels which includes POP KINO, POP KIN
POP BRIO, POP FANI, POP OTO and POP SPOT.

Media Pro Entertainment

Media Pro Entertainment (“MPE"pur production and distribution business, leveragrestive talent across all our countries and fesusn the development, production
distribution of content for our television channatsl to third parties, both within our region amabglly.

MPE is organized into two businesses:

Production: This business provides assets and expertiseottupe a range of fiction, reality and entertainnyaigramming, and films, using both licensed fosrag well &
original formats and content developed by the lrssinThe content produced can be easily adapteddoacross several markets and in many revenwegzaigg windows.

Distribution : This business acquires rights to internationiah fand television content across our region anttibiges them both to third party clients and to &uoadcas

operations, and also sells finished content anchdts developed by our production operations taltparties. Our distribution operations are alsce @bl generate thirgarty
revenue by distributing content through the theatrand home video operations. MPE owns and opeed¢een cinema screens in Romania.

56




Index

CENTRAL EUROPEAN MEDIA ENTERPRISES LTD.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Tabular amounts in US$ 000’s, except per share da

In addition, a home video distribution busines$ssBVVD and Bluray discs to wholesale and retail clients in thec@zRepublic, the Slovak Republic, Romania and ldongA
significant portion of our distribution revenues &o third parties.

New Media

We own and operate more than 70 websites acrossarkets as well as our video-demand service, Voyo, in order to build strongmaichannels to distribute popular con
and to operate an efficient marketing tool for Buoadcast operations. The New Media segment faoois®ffering viewers the choice of watching owrpium television conte
anytime, anywhere, and operates a series of newslqoranging from general information to sportsniche sites. Voyo is an internessed content aggregation
distribution platform that offers consumers botéefrand paid content in multiple distribution windovduring 2012, Voyo completed the introductionaoubscription bas
video-ondemand service in all of its regions, offering piem locally produced productions as well as hundrefilocal and foreign feature films. It also ofean embedd:
transactional video-odemand element devoted to movie content from nid@lywood and independent studios. Revenues gestetat the New Media segment are prim:
derived from the sale of advertising.

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICAN T ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Unless otherwise noted, all statistical and finaha@iformation presented in this report has beemverded into U.S. dollars using periedd exchange rates. All reference
“US$”, “USD” or “dollars” are to U.S. dollars, ateferences to “BGN” are to Bulgarian leva, all refeces to “HRK” are to Croatian kuna, all referente “CZK” are to Czec
korunas, all references to “RON” are to the New Rpian lei, all references to “UAH” are to Ukrainianyvna and all references to “Euro” or “EURFe to the European Uni
Euro.

Basis of Consolidatio

The consolidated financial statements include twoants of CME Ltd. and our subsidiaries, afterehmination of intercompany accounts and transasti Entities in which w
hold less than a majority voting interest but owdrich we have the ability to exercise significanfiuence are accounted for using the equity metfdier investments ¢
accounted for using the cost method.

Reclassification:

Certain amounts included in the accompanying cattesteld financial statements have been reclasgifi@dnform to the current period presentation. &eNLO, "Accounts Payat
and Accrued Liabilities” we reclassified certaindmees presented as other accrued liabilities &eaember 31, 2011 to accrued services and ottpgliss. Additionally, w
reclassified certain amounts in the MPE segmemh ftost of programming to operating costs in thesobidated statements of operations and comprehestome for the yee
ending December 31, 2011 and 2010.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith accounting principles generally acceptedhia United States of America ("U.S. GAAP") regsireaanagement to me
estimates and assumptions that affect the repartezlints of assets and liabilities and disclosureootingent assets and liabilities at the dateéheffinancial statements and
reported amounts of revenues and expenses dugngplorting period. Actual results could diffesrfr those estimates and assumptions.

Cash flows from operating activities have declirsgghificantly in 2012. This decline is largely dte lower revenues as a result of the yeasear decline of the televisi
advertising spending in our regions and conseqdetitease in cash receipts in 2012 compared to 20Hddition, an increase in payments relatingoreifyn programming ai
additional investment in our local content prodostialso contributed to our negative free cash flow2012. We continue to take steps to conserve, dashuding targete
reductions to our operating cost base through @ainization programs. In addition, we are explgrfarther options to improve liquidity, includingw equity financings, as:
sales and continuing the renegotiation of paymetigations with a number of major suppliers. Weidat that we are taking appropriate actions to tormind address the ri¢
affecting our business, and with our current cadhrizes, cash generative operations, and workipiggtananagement initiatives, taken together, wete we will have adeque
cash resources to meet our debt service and attagrcfal obligations for the next twelve months.

These financial statements have been preparea¢ardance with U.S. GAAP. The significant accountijjcies are summarized as follows:
Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when there is persuasivemssgdof an arrangement, delivery of products hasreed or services have been rendered, the priceet or determinable al
collectability is reasonably assured. A bad debvigion is maintained for estimated losses resuifiom our customers' subsequent inability to maégments.

Revenues are recognized net of discounts and castgates incentives. Our principal revenue stremmistheir respective accounting treatments areiskisd below:
Advertising revenu

Revenues primarily result from the sale of adviengigime. Television advertising revenue is recagdi as the commercials are aired. In many countiescommit to provic
advertisers with certain rating levels in connettwith their advertising. Revenue is recorded rfetstimated shortfalls, which are usually settlgdppoviding the advertis

additional advertising time. Discounts and agenoymissions are recognized at the point when theréiding is broadcast and are reflected as a rifutd gross revent
Display advertising on our websites is recognizedrgpressions are delivered. Impressions are detivehen an advertisement appears in pages vieyasdss.
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Program distribution revenu

Program distribution revenue is recognized whenréievant agreement has been entered into, theugirdsl available for telecast or delivery, the tise period has begi
collectability of the cash is reasonably assurediahof our contractual obligations have beens§iatl. Revenues from home video sales are recadjmizthe later of the delive
date or the date that video units are made widedylable for sale or rental by retailers based sg sales less a provision for estimated retdimsatrical revenues are recogni
as the films are exhibited.

Subscription revenues

Subscriber fees from cable operators and direbbtoe broadcasters are recognized as revenue @v@ettod for which the channels are provided andhih the fees relat
Subscriber revenue is recognized as contracteddhgmon the level of subscribers.

Barter transaction:

We enter into barter transactions which represduérising time or other services exchanged for-cash goods and/or other services, such as prorabiitems, advertisin
supplies and equipment. Revenue from barter tréinsacis recognized as income when the services baen provided. Expenses are recognized when gmasisrvices a
received or used. We record barter transactioniseafair value of goods or services received orediking surrendered, whichever is more readilesinable. Barter reven
amounted to US$ 2.9 million , US$ 2.3 million an8%J2.7 million for the years ending December 31,2202011 and 2010 , respectively.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hahdnarketable securities with original maturitidsttmee months or less. Cash that is subject twicgens is classified ¢
restricted cash.

Program Rights
Purchased program right
Purchased program rights and the related lialsiltie recorded at their gross value when the licpasod begins and the programs are availablerfradcast.

Purchased program rights are classified as cuarenbn-current assets based on anticipated usdgle, tive related program rights liability is cldgsi as current or noourren
according to the payment terms of the license ageee

Program rights are evaluated to determine if exgeetvenues are sufficient to cover the unamortoetion of the program. To the extent that expg:cevenues are insufficie
the program rights are written down to their nelizable value.

The costs incurred to acquire program rights apétalzed and amortized over their expected usefak in a manner which reflects the pattern weeexpo use and benefit frc
the programming. If the initial airing of conteritoaved by a license is expected to provide moreiwahan subsequent airings, we apply an accelena¢¢idod of amortizatio
These accelerated methods of amortization deperileoastimated number of runs the content is erpetct receive, and are determined based on a efuuigtorical results fc
similar programming. For programming that is novextising supported, each program's costs are @edrbn a straightne basis over the license period. For content i$
expected to be aired only once, the entire cagtdggnized as expense on the first run.

Produced program right

Program rights that are produced by us consisefdreed film and television costs including direosts, production overhead and development cobts.csts are stated at
lower of cost, less accumulated amortization, ar\falue. The amount of capitalized production sagtcognized as cost of revenues for a given ptadues it is exhibited

various markets is determined using the film foseeaethod. The proportion of costs recognized isaktp the proportion of the revenue recognizedgamed to the total reven
expected to be generated throughout the prodifet'syicle (the “ultimate revenues'Qur process for evaluating ultimate revenues lerd to the potential we believe a title
for generating multiple revenues. The majority of production is intended primarily for exploitatiby our own broadcasters. In such cases, we cmsidinly the free televisit
window in our calculation of the ultimate revenuBsr produced and acquired feature films or othrejepts where we have a supportable expectatiogenérating multipl
revenue streams, we base our estimates of ultirea¢emues for each film on factors such as the ficstiogperformance of similar films, the star powéthe actors and actresses,
rating and genre of the film, prelease market research (including test marketesargs) and the expected number of theaters inhathie film will be released. These estim
are updated based on information available on tbgrpss of the film's production and upon reletts=actual results of each film.

Produced program rights are amortized on an indaliggroduction basis using the ratio of the curpamod's gross revenues to estimated remainird atttmate revenues frc

such programs. Produced program rights are evaltatdetermine if expected revenues, less additmwsts to be incurred (including exploitation &)sire sufficient to cover t
unamortized portion of the program. To the extbat expected revenues are insufficient, the progigints are written down to their fair value.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cess hccumulated depreciation. Depreciation is ctedpusing the straighine method over the estimated useful lives assigo
each major asset category as below:

Asset category Estimated useful life
Land Indefinite

Buildings 25 years

Machinery, fixtures and equipment 4 - 8 years

Other equipment 3-8 years
Software licenses 3-5years

Construction-in-progress is not depreciated untilipto use. Capital leases are depreciated omamistline basis over the shorter of the estimated ud#éubf the asset or tl
lease term. Leasehold improvements are depreastedthe shorter of the related lease term orifeeof the asset. Assets to be disposed of arertegpat the lower of carryil
amount or fair value, less expected costs of dapos

Long-Lived Assets Including Intangible Assets wittFinite Lives
Long-lived assets include property, plant, equipnaen intangible assets with finite lives.

We review longlived assets for impairment whenever events or gésiin circumstances indicate that the carryinguamhof an asset may not be recoverable. The cg
amounts of londived assets are considered impaired when theipatiz undiscounted cash flows from such assetfeasethan their carrying amounts. In that everibsa i
recognized based on the amount by which the cayrgmount exceeds the fair value. We recorded cemapairments of londgived assets in our Czech Republic and Sl
Republic Broadcast reporting units during the yerated December 31, 2012 (see Note 4, "Goodwillatashgible Assets").

Goodwill and Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets
Goodwill represents the excess of the fair valueoofsideration paid over the fair value of net thiggand other identifiable intangible assets aeglin a business combination.

We evaluate the carrying amount of goodwill for airment in the fourth quarter of each year, or nicgguently if events or changes in circumstannd&ate that the asset mi
be impaired. An impairment exists when the carryamgount of a reporting unit (including its goodyvilexceeds its fair value after adjusting for ampairments of londived
assets or indefinite-lived intangible assets.

Goodwill impairment is measured as the excesset#irying amount of goodwill over its implied faalue, which is calculated by deducting the failue of all assets, includi
recognized and unrecognized intangible assets thenfair value of the reporting unit. During theayended December 31, 2012, we had three opeisggmgents, which were a
our reportable segments as described in Note ¥yrf@nt Data"We have determined that we have ten reporting wiitsse fair value is determined based on estinwdtégure
cash flows discounted at appropriate rates andubfigly available information, where appropriate.the assessment of discounted future cash floev$olfowing data is use
management plans for a period of at least fivegjeaterminal value at the end of the forecasteidq® assuming an inflationary perpetual growtle,rahd a discount rate selec
with reference to the relevant cost of capital.

Indefinite-lived intangible assets at DecemberZ112 consist of trademarks, which are not amorti¥éd evaluate indefinitbved intangible assets for impairment in the fb
quarter of each year, or more frequently if evemtshanges in circumstances indicate that the asigétt be impaired. An impairment loss is recogdiifethe carrying amount
an indefinite-lived intangible asset exceeds iis ¥alue. We recorded certain impairments of ingiédHived intangible assets and goodwill in our BulgarCzech Republi
Romania and Slovak Republic Broadcast reportintsuhiring the year ended December 31, 2012 (see NdGoodwill and Intangible Assets").

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes under the asset ahilitfamethod. Deferred tax assets and liabilitees recognized for the expected tax consequencesrgforary differenct
between the tax bases of assets and liabilitiesr@idreported amounts. Deferred tax assets abdifies are measured using enacted tax ratesceeghéo apply to taxable incol
in the year in which the temporary differencesexpected to be recovered or settled. Valuatiomaliwes are established when necessary to reduseeadefax assets to amot
which are more likely than not to be realized. Walaating the realizability of our deferred tax etss we consider all available positive and negagividence, including futu
reversals of existing taxable temporary differenpesjected future taxable income, tax planningtsgies and recent financial operations.

We recognize in the consolidated financial statémtrose tax positions determined to be “moreyikan not"of being sustained upon examination, based oretttentcal merit

of the positions and we recognize, when applicaib¢h accrued interest and penalties related tertaio tax positions in income tax expense in tt@mpanying consolidat
statements of operations and comprehensive income.
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Foreign Currency

Translation of financial statements

Our reporting currency and functional currencyhis tollar. The financial statements of our operstiwhose functional currency is other than theadatre translated from st
functional currency to dollars at the exchangesraiieeffect at the balance sheet date for assdtfiahilities, and at weighted average rates ferghriod for revenues and expen
including gains and losses. Translational gainslesses are charged or credited to accumulated ctineprehensive income, a component of equity.

Transactions in foreign currencies

Gains and losses from foreign currency transactaesincluded in foreign currency exchange gailegs], net in the consolidated statements of ojp&stand comprehensi
income in the period during which they arise.

Leases

Leases are classified as either capital or operafihose leases that transfer substantially akéfiisrand risks of ownership of the property taaus accounted for as capital lea
All other leases are accounted for as operatirggkea

Capital leases are accounted for as assets adeareciated on a straighite basis over the shorter of the estimated udiééubf the asset or the lease term. Commitmentepa
the principal amounts arising under capital ledseations are included in current liabilities teetextent that the amount is repayable within ozeer;yotherwise the principal
included in noreurrent liabilities. The capitalized lease obligatireflects the present value of future lease paysndhe financing element of the lease paymenthasged t
interest expense over the term of the lease.

Operating lease costs are expensed on a stranghibdisis over the term of the lease.
Financial Instruments
Fair value of financial instrumen

The carrying amount of financial instruments, imithg cash, accounts receivable, and accounts payalol accrued liabilities, approximate their faatue due to the shorern
nature of these items. The fair value of our Sebielot (as defined hereinafter) is included in N&t&_ong-term Debt and Other Financing Arrangemiénts

Derivative financial instrument

We use derivative financial instruments for thegmse of mitigating currency risks, which exist astf ongoing business operations. As a policyda@ot engage in speculat
or leveraged transactions, nor do we hold or isieuivative financial instruments for trading purpss

Forward exchange contracts and currency swapssaigta mitigate exposures to currency fluctuatmmsertain shorterm transactions generally denominated in curesnethe
than our functional currency. These contracts aaekead to market at the balance sheet date, anésb#ant unrealized gains and losses are recamdéé consolidated stateme
of operations and comprehensive income, togethtrnedalized gains and losses arising on settleofehiese contracts.

Stock-Based Compensation

Stock-based compensation is recognized at fairevalMle calculate the fair value of stock option alsausing the Blaclscholes option pricing model and recognize
compensation cost over the vesting period of therdwThe grant date fair value of restricted stogits ("RSUs") is calculated as the closing pritew class A common sha
on the date of grant.

Contingencies

The estimated loss from a loss contingency sucahlagal proceeding or claim is recorded in the obdated statements of operations and compreheirsiegne if it is probab
that an asset has been impaired or a liabilitytdeges incurred and the amount of the loss can ts@mebly estimated. Disclosure of a loss contingéncyade if there is at leas
reasonable possibility that a loss has been indurre

Discontinued Operations

We present our results of operations, financialtpwsand cash flows of operations that have eitfe®n sold or that meet the criteria for "heldgate accounting” as discontint
operations if the cash flows associated with theugrof assets will be significantly eliminated frafre ongoing operations of the Company and we hélle no significal
continuing involvement in the group of assets atfter disposal transaction. At the time an operagjoalifies for held-forsale accounting, the operation is evaluated toruhéte
whether or not the carrying amount exceeds itsviine less cost to sell. Any loss as a resuliofying amounts in excess of fair value less ansell is recorded in the period
operation meets held-for-sale accounting. Managéfmdgment is required to (1) assess the critetpired to meet held-f@ale accounting, and (2) estimate fair value. Cés
to the operation could cause it to no longer qud#tif held-for-sale accounting and changes tovialue could result in an increase or decreaseetgiqusly recognized losses.

On April 7, 2010, we completed the sale of our fernoperations in Ukraine to Harley Trading Limitedd,company beneficially owned by Igor KolomoiskyCME Ltd.

shareholder and a former member of our Board oéddirs, for total consideration of US$ 308.0 millioThe results of our former Ukraine operations htherefore bee
accounted for as discontinued operations for albps presented.
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Summarized operating results for the year endingeBber 31, 2010 for the Ukraine disposal groupaar®llows:

For The Year Ending December 31, 201

Revenues $ 16,88t¢
Cost of revenues (19,479
Selling, general and administrative expenses (2,229
Operating loss (4,80¢)
Foreign exchange gain 891
Other income 28
Loss before tax (3,897)
Gain on sale 217,61
Provision for income tax (30
Income from discontinued operations $ 213,69

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Adiirgiexpense incurred for the years ending Decethe2012 , 2011 and 2010 totaled US$ 10.5 milji&t8$ 7.6 millionanc
US$ 8.6 million , respectively.

Earnings Per Share

Basic net income per share is computed using thghtezlaverage number of common shares outstanding dthéengeriod. Diluted net income per share is computeng th
weighted-average number of common and dilutiverg@ecommon shares outstanding during the perécutated using the treasury stock method.

Business Combinations

When we acquire a business, we allocate the pueghiase to the various components of the acquisitiased upon the fair value of each component. @ilagpresents tt
excess of the purchase price over the fair valugebfangible and intangible assets acquired insinless combination. A gain may be recognizeddcettient the purchase pric
less than the fair value of net tangible and intalegassets acquired. Transaction costs relatdtetacquisition of a business are expensed asréttur

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Accounting Pronouncements Adop

On January 1, 2012, we adopted guidance issuathi;n 2011, which gives entities the option to preses total of comprehensive income, the componehtget income, and tl
components of other comprehensive income either single continuous statement of comprehensiveniecor in two separate but consecutive statememtoth choices, ¢
entity is required to present each component ofreetme along with total net income, each compooémther comprehensive income along with a tasalother comprehensi
income, and a total amount for comprehensive incdde consolidated financial statements alreadgeted the components of net income and other @rapsive income
two separate but consecutive statements. In Deaefiel, additional guidance was released deferttiegrequirement to present reclassifications ouacfumulated oth
comprehensive income.

On January 1, 2012, we adopted guidance issuedpte@ber 2011 to simplify how entities test gootfeil impairment by providing an option to firstsess qualitative factors
determine whether the existence of events or cistantes indicates that it is more likely than hat the fair value of a reporting unit is less tltarcarrying amount. If an ent
determines it is not more likely than not that thie value of a reporting unit is less than itsrgang amount, then performing the tvetep impairment test is not necessary.
adoption of this guidance may impact how we performgoodwill testing in future periods, but no¢ thmount of impairment recognized in the finanstatements if goodwill
found to be impaired.

On January 1, 2012, we adopted guidance issuecain2011, which represents clarifications of commanciples and requirements for measuring fair @aind for disclosir
information about fair value measurements in acamoed with U.S. GAAP. It also includes instances nehee particular principle or requirement for measyifair value he
changed. The adoption of this guidance did not leemweterial impact on our financial position, réswif operations or cash flows, but did resultdditional disclosure.

We adopted guidance issued in October 2012 thigewthe impairment assessment for unamortizedddsis to remove the rebuttable presumption thadlitions leading to
write-off of unamortized film costs after the balanceettdate existed as of the balance sheet date.aligiss the guidance on fair value measurementserinhpairment test
unamortized film costs with the guidance on failueameasurements in other instances, includingenmpairment testing of other assets. The amentnerthis guidance we
effective for impairment assessments performedroafter December 15, 2012. The adoption of thisigute did not have a material impact on our firglnoosition, results
operations or cash flows, but may cause the retiogrof impairment of unamortized film costs todeferred into later periods if conditions whichstbefore financial stateme
are issued but subsequent to the measurement date mot have been considered by a market partitisethe measurement date.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements Is¢

Guidance was issued in July 2012, which is intertdesimplify how entities test indefinitésed intangible assets for impairment by providerg option to first assess qualita
factors to determine whether the existence of eventircumstances indicates that it is more liken not that the indefinitiésed asset is impaired. If an entity determinés ito
more likely than not that the indefinite-lived intaible asset is impaired, then performing the siep impairment test is not necessary. The guidaneéfective for annual al
interim impairment tests performed for fiscal yelbeginning after September 15, 2012. The adoptighi® guidance may impact how we perform our impaint testing, but n
the amount of impairment recognized in the finalnsiatements if indefinite-lived intangible assats found to be impaired.

3. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSITIONS

Acquisition of Bontonfiln

On June 30, 2011, we completed the acquisition06t%of the shares of Bontonfilm, a Czech company, fammaffiliate of Bancroft Private Equity, LLP anchet minority
shareholders. The results of Bontonfilm's operatibave been included in the consolidated finarstelements since that date. Bontonfilm is a thestrhome entertainme

broadcast television and digital film rights distrion company in the Czech Republic and the Sldvggublic.

The purchase price was set on a debt-free basisansisted of initial cash consideration of US$0lrillion paid at closing, with approximately US$3nillion of cash in th
business as of June 30, 2011. Additional cash deration of approximately US$ 0.8 million was defgsinto escrow and released to the sellers irebBder 2011.

We performed a fair value exercise to allocatepthehase price to the acquired assets and ligsiland separately identifiable intangible assetst dsine 30, 2011, which v
finalized as of December 31, 2011. The followingléssummarizes the fair values of the assets aajaind liabilities assumed at the date of acqoisiti

Fair Value on Date of Acquisition

Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,011
Property, plant and equipment 384
Program rights 201
Inventory 2,97¢
Other intangible assets subject to amortization 1,99¢
Deferred tax assets, net 862
Other assets, nét 83¢
Goodwill © 1,477

$ 11,75(

Total purchase price

(1) The other intangible assets subject to amditzaonsist of distribution relationships with dtos and are being amortized on a stralgtg-basis over an estima
life of 8.5 years.

(2) Amount includes US$ 4.0 million of acquired ea@bles, which represents management's best éstahthe approximately US$ 7.1 millimontractual cash flov
expected to be collected as of the acquisition.date

(3) No goodwill is deductible for tax purposes.

A change to the acquisition date value of the ifiabte net assets during the measurement perifedtafthe amount of the purchase price allocategbtmiwill. Changes to tl
purchase price allocation are adjusted retrospalgtio the consolidated financial results. The galabove include measurement period adjustmerdedegtin the third quarter
2011 with an increase in goodwill amounting to US8 million , net of a US$ 0.8 milliodecrease in the additional cash consideration decbas of June 30, 2011. ~
measurement period adjustments were recorded hmsédformation obtained subsequent to the acqarsitelated to the closing balance sheet and adéliticonsideratic
calculation available at the acquisition date.

All of the goodwill was allocated to the distribani reporting unit in the MPE operating segmentanigkes primarily as a result of expected synengi#sn that reporting unit.
Acquisition of Pro Digita

On January 31, 2011, we completed the acquisitfoh00.0% of Pro Digital S.R.L. (“Pro Digital”}a company that was controlled and majority ownedAdyian Sarbu, ot
President and Chief Executive Officer and a menabeur Board of Directors, on a debt-free basiscish consideration of EUR 0.7 million (approxinhatéS$ 0.9 millionat the
date of acquisition). Pro Digital is a freedo-broadcaster in Moldova whose broadcasts oRR® TV CHISINAU channel are comprised primarilyrebroadcasts of our PF

TV channel in Romania. In connection with this gaction, we recorded EUR 0.5 million (approximatelg$ 0.7 millionat the date of acquisition) of goodwill, which \
allocated to the Romania reporting unit in the Blazest operating segment.
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Acquisition of the bTV groL

On April 19, 2010, we completed the acquisitiortha bTV group in Bulgaria from News Netherlands BtMough our subsidiary, CME Bulgaria. The acdigsiwas comprise
of (i) 100.0% of BTV Media (formerly Balkan News @oration EAD), which owns a 74.0% interest in Ra@ompany C.J. OOD (“RCJ") and (ii) 100.086 TV Europe B.V.
which owned 100.0%f Triada Communications EOOD ("Triada") (priorite merger into BTV Media in February 2011). At tivee of the acquisition, BTV Media operated
broadcast the BTV, BTV CINEMA and BTV COMEDY telsion channels and RCJ operated several radio is¢aitioBulgaria. As discussed below, we currentiyr@4.0%of
BTV Media. BTV is the leading television channelBulgaria and through this acquisition, we havetiomred to implement our operating model whose ssEdg based ¢
audience leadership and high operating leveragessenultichannel television, internet and content.

Using the proceeds from the sale of our former at@s in Ukraine (as described below), we acquihedbTV group on a debt-free basis for cash cemnatibn of US$409.¢
million . We incurred approximately US$ 4.4 milliafi costs related to this acquisition, which arduded within selling, general and administrativ@penses in the consolida
statement of operations and comprehensive incontbdoyear ended December 31, 2010.

We performed a fair value exercise to allocatepthechase price to the acquired assets and ligsiland separately identifiable intangible asset dgril 19, 2010, which wi
finalized as of December 31, 2010. The followingléssummarizes the fair values of the assets aajaind liabilities assumed at the date of acqoisiti

Fair value on acquisition

Cash and cash equivalents $ 48t
Restricted cash 3,56(
Broadcast license® 178,15¢
Trademark® 74,06¢
Customer relationship® 37,32:
Programming rights 6,38:
Property, plant and equipment 8,57¢
Other assets, nét 14,85
Deferred tax liabilities (29,100
Goodwill ® 115,64:
Total purchase price $ 409,944

(1) License agreements were amortized on a striighbasis over an estimated life of dars as at December 31, 2011. We changed ouragstih the remainir
useful life as of January 1, 2012 (see Note 4 "®@dlbdnd Intangible Assets").

(2) The trademark is deemed to have an indefiiiée |

(3) Customer relationships are being amortized sinadght-line basis over an estimated life of £&rg.

(4) Amount includes US$ 21.0 million of acquirede#®ables which represent the best estimate of)&® 21.0 millioncontractual cash flows expected to be colle
as of the acquisition date.

(5) No goodwill is expected to be deductible for paurposes.

We fully impaired the broadcast license during 2@a@ recorded impairments of the trademark andgilodliring 2012 and 2011 (see Note 4 "Goodwill danthngible Assets").
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The following table presents unaudited pro fornsuits of operations of CME Ltd. for the year en@sttember 31, 2010 as if the acquisition of the ljfdup had occurred as
January 1, 2010. This pro forma financial informatis not indicative of the results of operatiohattthe Company would have attained had the a¢iguisif the bTV grou
occurred as of January 1, 2010, nor is the proddimancial information indicative of the resultsaperations that may occur in the future:

For The Year Ending December 31,

2010
Revenues $ 759,28
Net income 98,94¢
Net income attributable to CME Ltd. 102,34
Net income attributable to CME Ltd. - basic andiitl earnings per share 1.6C
Weighted average common shares - basic and diatetdngs per share 64,02¢

In 2010, the bTV group reported revenues of US8 &llion in the period since acquisition on April 19, 20T@e financial information for the bTV group is refted within th
broadcast segment and the related goodwill assolcieaith the bTV group acquisition has been assigo¢de Bulgaria Broadcast reporting unit.

Restructuring of the Pro.BG busine

On April 19, 2010, we entered into an amended aadepurchase agreement with Top Tone Holdings andkassimir Guergov to restructure the operatiofthe BTV ACTION
(formerly PRO.BG) and RING.BG (formerly RING TV) @hnels (together, the “Pro.BG business”). On Ap2i] 2010, Top Tone Holdings transferred to us @9% interest it
each of Top Tone Media S.A. and Zopal S.A and mset a 6.0% interest in CME Bulgaria from us fosU3.7 million, and pursuant to a deed of termination, we tertathau
existing agreements in respect of the Pro.BG basiméth Top Tone Holdings and Mr. Guergov for cdesation of US$ 18.0 million This resulted in a net cash paymer
approximately US$ 0.3 million to Top Tone Holding®llowing the restructuring of the Pro.BG business owned 94.0% of the bTV group and 100.6Rthe Pro.BG busine:
which we since have combined with the bTV grouprapens.

On April 22, 2010, we also entered into an investiragreement with Top Tone Holdings which inclugedhare option agreement that gives it the righadguire up to €
additional 4.0% of CME Bulgaria (i) for a one-ygzeriod from April 22, 2010 for US$ 2.95 million feach 1.0% interest acquired (up to an aggregateuainof US$11.¢
million ) and (ii) from April 22, 2011 until April 22, 201%t a price to be determined by an independentatiah. We measured the fair value of this calimpbf Top Ton
Holdings using a binomial option pricing model andability for its fair value of US$ 3.0 milliowas recorded at the date of the transaction. Sulkséghanges in fair value .
recognized in the consolidated statements of dpasaand comprehensive income in accordance wit@ A8pic 815 Derivatives and Hedginfpr the first year of the call optic
After the first year, the strike price of the cafition is the fair value of the underlying and,aasesult, the value of the option is zero and mthér changes are reflected in
income statement (see Note 12, “Financial Instrumand Fair Value MeasurementsA)so pursuant to the share option agreement, TagTdoldings has the right to put
entire interest to us and we have the right tofoath Top Tone Holdings its entire interest fromrA@2, 2013, in each case at a price to be detexthby an independent valuati
This option is recognized at fair value of US$ fiidp Tone Holdings has exercised its right to asgadditional equity in CME Bulgaria, however thesing of this transactic
has not yet occurred because the purchaser firgrcstill pending.

We concluded that these transactions should beuatex for together as the acquisition of a nonadlimyg interest in a subsidiary where control isimt@ined under ASC Tof
810. Accordingly, we recognized the excess of #ievialue of the consideration over the adjustni@moncontrolling interest as an adjustment to tmlthl paid-in capital.

The amounts allocated to consideration for the ia@tpn of the 20.0% noncontrolling interest in tReo.BG business in exchange for the 6.:@8acontrolling interest in CM
Bulgaria (with a fair value of US$ 17.7 million e date of the transaction) consisted of a ndt pagment of US$ 0.3 million and US$ 3.0 millifor the fair value of the optic
granted to Top Tone Holdings. The balance of thecantrolling interest recorded at the date of asitjioh was an accumulated loss of approximately WS$ millionwhich
resulted in a US$ 34.7 million reduction to addiibpaid-in capital.

Acquisition of noncontrolling intere

On May 24, 2010, we acquired the remaining appretety 5.0%ownership interest in each of Pro TV S.A. ("Pro TWledia Pro International ("MPI") and Media VisiéhR.L
("MVI") from Adrian Sarbu, thereby increasing ouwvwership interests in each company to 100.0% . ideretion for the noncontrolling interest acquireds US$ 24.7 million
consisting of a cash payment of approximately US$illion and the issuance of 800,000 shares ofalass A common stock (with a fair value of US$518iillion at the date «
acquisition). We concluded that this transactioousth be accounted as the acquisition of a nonclingadnterest in a subsidiary where control is mained under ASC Topic 8:
Accordingly we recognized the excess of the falueaf the consideration over the adjustment tacoatrolling interest as an adjustment to additiguatlin capital. The balan:
of noncontrolling interest recorded at the dataafuisition was accumulated income of US$ 0.7 anillj thereby resulting in a US$ 24.0 million redetto additional paidna
capital.

In connection with this transaction, the put optegreements of July 2004, which gave Mr. Sarburitjiet to sell us his remaining shareholding in i and MPI, wer
terminated.
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Disposal of operations in Ukrair

On April 7, 2010, we completed the sale of our fermperations in Ukraine for total gross proceeds/®$ 308.0 million (see Note 2Stimmary of significant accounti

policies”).

4. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill:

Goodwill by reporting unit as at December 31, 2@h@ December 31, 2011 is summarized as follows:

Broadcast segment:
Bulgaria

Croatia

Czech Republic
Romania

Slovak Republic
Slovenia

Media Pro

Entertainment segment:

Fiction and reality and
entertainment

Production services
Distribution

Total

Broadcast segment:
Bulgaria

Croatia

Czech Republic
Romania

Slovak Republic
Slovenia

Media Pro

Entertainment segment:

Fiction and reality and
entertainment

Production services
Distribution

Total

B(;Ir:rfe, Accumulated Balance, Balance, Accumulated Gross Balance,
December 31, Impairment December 31,  Additions/ Impairment Foreign December  Impairment December 31,
2010 Losses 2010 Adjustments Charge Currency 31,2011 Losses 2011

178,37 (64,044 114,33: — (53,416 (1,987 58,93¢ (117,46 176,39:
11,15: (10,459 697 — — (35) 662 (10,459 11,11¢
917,14! — 917,14! — — (54,68%) 862,45 — 862,45
63,97° — 63,977 707 — (2,606 62,07¢ — 62,07¢
58,42¢ — 58,42t — — (1,850 56,57¢ — 56,57¢
18,92( — 18,92( — — (599 18,32: — 18,32:
19,31: — 19,31 (1,029 — (780) 17,50: — 17,50:
10,31 — 10,31: 1,02¢ (11,029 (312) — (11,029 11,02¢
18,18 — 18,18: 1,47 — (99¢) 18,66¢ — 18,66¢
1,295,80! (74,499 1,221,30: 2,18¢ (64,449 (63,849 1,095,19: (138,947 1,234,13
Gross
Balance, Accumulated Balance, Balance, Accumulated Gross Balance,
December 31, Impairment December 31,  Additions/ Impairment Foreign December  Impairment December 31,
2011 Losses 2011 Adjustments Charge Currency 31, 2012 Losses 2012
$ 176,39: $ (117,46() $ 58,93 $ — $ (10,36¢) $ 1,07¢ $ 4964 $ (127,82¢) $ 177,47
11,11¢ (10,459 662 — — 11 67: (10,459 11,127
862,45 — 862,45 — (287,54%) 37,09¢ 612,01( (287,54%) 899,55!
62,07¢ — 62,07¢ — — (370 61,70¢ — 61,70¢
56,57t — 56,57¢ — — 1,11¢ 57,69! — 57,69¢
18,32: — 18,322 — — 361 18,68: — 18,68:
17,50: — 17,50: — — (18) 17,48« — 17,48«
11,02¢ (11,029 — — — — — (11,029 11,02¢
18,66« — 18,66« — — (23 18,64: — 18,64:
$ 1,234,13' $ (138,94) $ 1,095,19 $ — $ (297,91) $ 39,25¢ $ 836,53 $ (436,85) $ 1,273,39

65




Index

CENTRAL EUROPEAN MEDIA ENTERPRISES LTD.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Tabular amounts in US$ 000’s, except per share da

Broadcast licenses and other intangible assets:

Changes in the net book value of our broadcastdies and other intangible assets as at Decemb2082 and December 31, 2011 is summarized as fellow

Indefinite- Lived Amortized
Broadcas! Broadcas! Customet

License: License: Trademarks Relationships Other Total
Balance, December 31, 2010 $ 53,83¢ $ 309,54! $ 141,67 $ 85,7%¢ $ 479 $ 595,64
Additions — — — — 2,03¢ 2,03¢
Impairment — — (4,304 — — (4,304
Amortization — (18,759 (5,697) (9,200) (1,230) (34,88)
Foreign currency movements (2,036 (10,57¢) (5,03)) (2,250) (402) (20,29Y)
Balance, December 31, 2011 $ 51,80C $ 280,21( % 126,64 $ 7434t $ 519 % 538,19
Reclassifications (51,800 51,80( — — — —
Additions — — — — 3C 3C
Impairment — (180,63 (7,17) (28,06¢) — (215,86°)
Amortization — (37,32 — (8,197) (1,110 (46,627
Foreign currency movements — 551¢ 2,281 1,00¢ 402 9,21(
Balance, December 31, 2012 $ — 3 119,57C % 121,76:  $ 39,090 $ 451¢ $ 284,94:

Until December 31, 2011, our broadcast licenseSroatia, Romania and Slovenia were determined ve radefinite lives and were subject to annual impant reviews. Due
the change in estimates discussed below, thesedealavere reclassified from indefinite-lived to atized on January 1, 2012. The indefiriteed licenses were not impaired a
January 1, 2012. Prior to December 31, 2011, dem$ies in Bulgaria were determined to have an atreconomic useful life of, and were amortizedatraightine basis ove
twenty-four years . Licenses in the Czech Repubéice determined to have an economic useful lifanél were amortized on a straight-line basis dventy years The licens
in the Slovak Republic was determined to have am@uic useful life of, and was amortized on a ghr&line basis over, thirteen years .

We revised our estimate of the remaining usefaldif certain of our Broadcast licenses as of Jgnlia2012, and now amortize the remaining balapces straightine basis ove
the following periods, which are generally the rérray contractual life of the license: twelve yeard8ulgaria, thirteen years in the Czech Repulticee years in Romaniaight
years in the Slovak Republic, and ten yearSlovenia. The license in Croatia was previowstitten down to a nominal value. The impact of tbignge in estimates is a hig
amortization charge of approximately US$ 20.7 wiillrecorded during 2012, or US$ 0.27 and US$ 0e2 basic common share and diluted common share.

Customer relationships are deemed to have an edonseful life of, and are amortized on a strailye-basis over, five years to fifteen years . ‘Bradrks have an indefinite life.

The gross value and accumulated amortization aidwast licenses and other intangible assets watl@ss at December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011

December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Gross value $ 357,18: $ 514,64
Accumulated amortization (194,009 (154,89)
Net book value of amortized intangible assets 163,18( 359,75(
Indefinite-lived broadcast licenses and trademarks 121,76: 178,44!
Total broadcast licenses and other intangible assgtnet $ 28494. $ 538,19
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The estimated amortization expense for our intdagissets with finite lives as of December 31, 2@i3ich includes the change in estimates noted elaon the impairmer
described below, is as follows:

2013 $ 18,96(
2014 18,72«
2015 18,48¢
2016 17,48
2017 17,28’

Impairment of goodwill, indefinite-lived intangible assets and long-lived assets:
Process of reviewing goodwill, indefir-lived intangible assets and long-lived assetsrfgrairment

We review both goodwill and indefinite-lived intabbe assets for impairment in the fourth quarteea¢h year. Goodwill is evaluated at the reportinig level and each indefinite-
lived intangible asset is evaluated individuallpnig-lived assets are evaluated at the asset gewapwhen there is an indication that they mayniyesiired.

Whenever events occur which suggest any asseteipaating unit may be impaired, an evaluation ef goodwill and indefinitéived intangible assets, together with the assec
long-lived assets of each asset group, is perfor@atkide our annual review, there are a numbé&abrs which could trigger an impairment reviemgluding:

. underperformance of operating segments or changes jagtea result:

. changes in the manner of utilization of an a

. severe and sustained declines in the trading pfishares of our Class A common stock that aretiobutable to factors other than the underlyiagpe of our asse’

. negative market conditions or economic trends

. specific events, such as new legislation, new magk&rants, changes in technology or adverse eggiments that we believe could have a negativeagnpn ou
business.

In testing the goodwill of each reporting unit, taér value of the reporting unit is compared te trarrying amount of its net assets, including gathdif the fair value of th:
reporting unit is less than its carrying amoung, flir value of the reporting unit is then measwagdinst the fair value of its underlying assets labilities, excluding goodwiill, 1
estimate an implied fair value of the reportingtsngoodwill. The fair value of each reporting uistdetermined using discounted estimated futusgh dlow models. Ot
expectations of these cash flows are developedglwir long- and shorange business planning processes and incorpceatgasd variables, including, but not limited
discounted cash flows of a typical market partintpéuture market revenue and lotegm growth projections, estimated market sharehfertypical participant and estimated pi
margins based on market size and operation type.c@kh flow model also assumes outlays for capipénditures, future terminal values, an effectiserate assumption an
discount rate based on a number of factors inctudiarket interest rates, a weighted average castpifal analysis of the media industry and inctuddjustments for market risk.

An impairment loss is recognized for any excesthefcarrying amount of the reporting unit's gootiawler the implied fair value. If goodwill and aher asset or asset group
tested for impairment at the same time, the otbseta are tested for impairment before goodwillhéf other asset or asset group is impaired, tgirment loss is recogniz
prior to goodwill being tested for impairment.

Indefinitedived intangible assets are evaluated for impaitbgncomparing the fair value of the asset to #3ying amount. Any excess of the carrying amowatr ¢he fair valu
is recognized as an impairment charge.

Recoverability of assets to be held and used isured by a comparison of the carrying amount cdisset group to our estimate of the undiscounteddutash flows we expe
that asset group will generate. If the carrying anmi®f an asset exceeds our estimate of its undiged future cash flows, an impairment chargedsgaized equal to the amo
by which the carrying amount exceeds the fair valiudne respective asset.

Assessing goodwill, indefinite-lived intangible atssand londived assets for impairment is a complex iterapvecess that requires significant judgment andlirea great de
of detailed quantitative and qualitative businggseific analysis and many individual assumptiomgctv fluctuate with the passage of time. Our edtiémaf the cash flows o
operations will generate in future periods forme tasis for most of the significant assumptionsight in our impairment reviews. Our expectatiohshese cash flows &
developed during our long- and shoaiige business planning processes, which are @estgraddress the uncertainties inherent in thecésting process by capturing a rang
possible views about key trends which govern futash flow growth. Historically, the overall cadbw growth rates achieved by our operations havepnovided a goc
indication of future cash flows. This is largelychase the markets in which we operate are relgtivalv and have experienced high levels of growthdaertising markets beca
rapidly established. Instead, we have observed gty years a strong positive correlation betwaemtacro economic performance of our markets amdite of the televisic
advertising market and ultimately the cash flowsgeaerate. With this in mind, we have placed a nighortance on developing our expectations forftiere development of tl
macro economic environment in general, the adwegtisiarket and our share of it in particular. Whiles has involved an appreciation of historicahtis, we have placed a hig
emphasis on forecasting these market trends, wrashinvolved detailed review of macro-economic dateange of both proprietary and publielyailable estimates for futt
market development, and a process of on-going ttatisun with local management.

Some of the key assumptions underpinning thesedste include the size of the absolute reductidhertelevision advertising market during the eecoizodownturn, the point
which growth will resume and the speed with whigtdrical levels of demand will be achieved. In éleping our forecasts of future cash
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flows, we take into account available externalneates in addition to considering developments ehed our markets, which provide direct evidenceéhef state of the market ¢
future market development. In concluding whethgoadwill impairment charge is necessary, we perférenimpairment test under a range of possibleas@zs In order to che
the reasonableness of the fair values implied lrycash flow estimates we also calculate the vafighares of our Class A common stock implied by @ash flow forecasts a
compare this to actual traded values to understandifference between the two.

The table below shows the key measurements invawedhe valuation methods applied:

Measurement Valuation Method

Recoverability of carrying amount Undiscounted future cash flows (Level 3 inputs*)
Fair value of broadcast licenses Build-out method (Level 3 inputs*)

Fair value of indefinite-lived trademarks Relief from royalty method (Level 3 inputs*)

Fair value of reporting units Discounted cash flow model (Level 3 inputs®)

*As described in Note 12, "Financial Instrumentsd &air Value Measurements"

Each method noted above involves a number of sogmif assumptions over an extended period of tirhielwcould materially change our decision as to tiwreassets a
impaired. The most significant of these assumptiookide: the discount rate applied, the total atisiag market size, achievable levels of marketrehforecast OIBDA at
capital expenditure and the rate of growth intgpéurity, each described in more detail below:

e  Cost of capital: The cost of capital reflects theirn a hypothetical market participant would regdor a longterm investment in an asset and can be viewecbesxs
for the risk of that asset. We calculate the cosapital according to the Capital Asset Pricingddbusing a number of assumptions, the most sagmifiof which is
Country Risk Premium (“CRP”")The CRP reflects the excess risk to an investdnwdsting in markets other than the United States$ generally fluctuates wi
expectations of changes in a country's maoAomic environment. The costs of capital thahese applied to cash flows in all reporting unitsh@ end of 2012 we
lower than those we had used in our annual impaitmeview at the end of 2011, which was driven priity by a reduction in the CRP.

e  Total advertising market: The size of the televistalvertising market effectively places an uppaitlon the advertising revenue we can expect to gaeach countr
Our estimate of the total advertising market iseleped from a number of external sources, in coatlnin with a process of ogeing consultation with loc
management. In our annual impairment review pergatim the fourth quarter, we decreased our shad-raediumterm view of the size of the television adverti:
markets based on current market views regardingthroates in the coming periods before marketswexcm the long-term.

. Market share: This is a function of the audiencarstwve expect our stations to generate, and théuelprice at which we can sell advertising. Gatineate of the tot
advertising market is developed from a number ¢éreal sources, in combination with a process efjoing consultation with local management.

. Forecast OIBDA: The level of cash flow generatedebgh operation is ultimately governed by the exterwhich we manage the relationship between neggran
costs. We forecast the level of operating costsegrence to (a) the historical absolute and redaliévels of costs we have incurred in generatexgmue in eac
reporting unit, (b) the operating strategy of eholiness and (c) specific forecast costs to berieduOur annual impairment review includes assionptto reflec
further cost control we intend to execute.

J Forecast capital expenditure: The size and phasirgapital expenditure, both recurring expendittogeplace retired assets and investments in neyegis, has
significant impact on cash flows. We forecast #el of future capital expenditure based on curstiategies and specific forecast costs to be ieduin line with o
ongoing efforts to protect our operating margihs, absolute levels of capital expenditure foreramsiained broadly constant with the prior year impait reviews.

. Growth rate into perpetuity: This reflects the lewé economic growth in each of our markets frome tast forecasted period into perpetuity and issth of a
estimated real growth rate, which reflects ourdiehat macraconomic growth in our markets will eventually cerye to Western European markets, and long
expectations for inflation. Our estimates of thetes are based on observable market data anchbaghanged since the end of 2011.

Impairment reviews and charges recognized in 2

We anticipated that 2012 would be a challenging f@athe advertising markets in the territoriesvhich we operate, but we expected the rate ofrkeah advertising spending
reduce by the end of the year and particularlyrduthe fourth quarter. There was an overall impnoet in the perceived level of risk associated witresting in the Eurozol
and its periphery, which led to the reduction infFGRas at December 31, 2012 noted above; howeigdithnot translate into a corresponding improvenire advertising spendil
during the fourth quarter of 2012 that we previgiestpected. The fourth quarter is traditionally thest significant quarter for television advertgsiand therefore this period te!
to have a larger influence on developing our laagd short-range forecasts for our businesses.

Our mediumterm outlook included in forecasts used for ounjmes impairment review performed in 2011 antiogzaé recovery in total advertising spending dugig3, whicl
was consistent with then current internal and eweprojections for the television advertising neskin our territories following overall flat grolwin these advertising mark
during 2011. During 2012 the demand for televisidnertising declined across our markets and a exgadw the fourth quarter of 2012 that we expeeedier in the year did n
occur because advertisers did not honor previoesdipg commitments. As a result, our outlook fdufa periods is less certain and we made signifidawnward revisions
our estimates of the cash flows that our operatighigienerate in future periods.

68




Index

CENTRAL EUROPEAN MEDIA ENTERPRISES LTD.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Tabular amounts in US$ 000’s, except per share da

This decrease in estimated future cash flows dutiegmpairment review performed during the fougtrarter of 2012 more than offset the impact ofdberease in the cost
capital, and resulted in estimated fair valuesfrh reporting unit that were significantly lesarttthose calculated during the previous impairmeview in 2011.

Our current mediunterm outlook included in forecasts used for theampent review performed during the fourth quadef012 expects continuing challenges in our ma
during 2013. This difference from the impairmentieev performed in 2011 related to the timing ofaeery causes current projections for the size efdativertising market ov
the longterm in certain territories to be less than theiealcalculated under significant adverse changesl{em 7, "Critical Accounting Policies and Esties) when evaluatit
our significant accounting estimates in the prieaty and resulted in a significant decrease irestienated fair values of each reporting unit in2@hen compared to the amot
estimated in 2011.

Upon conclusion of this review, we determined thaharge was required to impair certain Idinge assets, broadcast licenses, customer reddtips, trademarks and goodwil
certain reporting units, as presented below. Thetedrir value of each reporting unit where gooltiwias not impaired as of December 31, 2012 wastsmitially in excess of i
equity carrying amount, after considering the immpaints of intangible assets recorded, with the gtiae of the MPE distribution reporting unit whetee equity fair value wi
4.0% more than its equity carrying amount. In connectigth our 2012 goodwill impairment analysis, we Bawoncluded that the total estimated fair valuesidsr purposes
the test are reasonable by comparing the markégtaation of the Company to the results of thecdunted cash flows analysis of our reporting uasadjusted for unalloca
corporate assets and liabilities.

We recognized impairment charges in the followigyarting units in respect of goodwill, tangible anthngible assets during the year ended Decenthet( 2:

Customer
Long-lived asset Trademark relationship Broadcast licens Goodwill Total
Broadcast - Bulgaria $ — $ 7,171 $ — $ 147,82 $ 10,36¢ $ 165,35¢
Broadcast - Czech Republic 6,84¢ — — — 287,54t 294,39:
Broadcast - Romania — — — 26,90° — 26,90°
Broadcast - Slovak Republic 1,86¢€ — 28,06¢ 5,901 — 35,83t
Total $ 8,71: $ 7171 $ 28,06t $ 180,63( $ 297,91 $ 522,49

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

We concluded that the trademark recorded on theisitiqn of the bTV group was further impaired aigri2012 and recorded a charge of US$ 7.2 miliowrite it down to it
estimated fair value. We also determined that tadicast license in Bulgaria was no longer recdlerand fully impaired the asset. After adjustihg reporting unit's carryil
amount for the impairment of indefinite-lived intable assets, we determined that the carrying amfawngoodwill exceeded its implied fair value byS#® 10.4 millionanc
recorded this amount as an impairment of goodik. determined that the carrying amount of the ag®etp in Bulgaria was recoverable by referencia¢oexpected cash flo
to be generated, and therefore no impairment wasded for long-lived assets.

Similarly, we determined that the asset groupsin@zech Republic were recoverable by referendeet@xpected cash flows to be generated, and tirerab impairment wi
recorded for long-lived or intangible assets, ex@pnoted below. However, we determined that #veymg amount of goodwill exceeded its impliedr faalue by US$87.£
million and recorded this amount as an impairmémgoodwill.

Lastly, we determined that the customer relatignghtiangible asset in the Slovak Republic, as aslthe broadcast licenses in both the Slovak Repabtl Romania, were r
recoverable, and fully impaired these assets. Aftgusting the carrying amount of each of thesenteqm units for the impairment of finitived intangible assets, the result
carrying amounts were substantially in excess @if tistimated fair values, and therefore we deteeththat goodwill was not impaired.

Longlived Assets

We also recorded a total of US$ 8.7 milli@himpairment losses related to a constructionqutogind land for development in the Czech Repuabiit Slovak Republic, respective
Our plans to complete these developments werenohtded in our latest lontgrm forecasts and the carrying amounts were thierefetermined not to be recoverable. As a ri
the carrying amounts were impaired to their faiugausing significant Level 2 inputs as describedNote 12, "Financial Instruments and Fair Valueaseements”, estimated
replacement cost.

Impairment reviews and charges recognized in 2

During the third quarter of 2011, there was a digamt decrease in the trading price of shareswf@ass A common stock, but internal and extegstimates of the T
advertising markets in which we operate were ferriost part unchanged. As there were no downwaisioas to our internal cash flow projections, anat results for the nir
months ended September 30, 2011 had improved frencarresponding period of the prior year, we deieed it was unlikely that the results of an impant review, i
performed at that time, would reach a conclusidfexdint to the last annual impairment review perfed in 2010.

When performing our annual impairment reviews aBetember 31, 2011, our forecast of the macro en@environment reflected uncertainty surrounding Eurozone and
periphery, in line with the view of the market. Wpconclusion of this review, we determined thaharge was required to impair goodwill in the prdihrec services reporting ul
and goodwill and intangible assets in the BulgBriaadcast reporting unit. In all other cases, tkterg to which the respective assets tested pdhseichpairment test decrea:
since they were previously tested for impairmenthmfourth quarter of 2010, however, the equityfalue was still substantially in excess of tiggigy carrying amount.
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We recognized impairment charges in the followiegarting units in respect of goodwill and indefinlived intangible assets in the year ended DeceB8he2011:

Trademark Goodwill Total
MPE - Production Services $ — % 11,02¢ $ 11,02¢
Broadcast - Bulgaria 4,30¢ 53,41¢ 57,72(
Total $ 4,30¢ $ 64,44: $ 68,74¢

We revised our estimates of future cash flows ingroduction services reporting unit during theafiquarter of 2011 primarily to reflect an expeictatof challenges in growir
third party revenues for this reporting unit. Asesult of these changes, we concluded that thgingramount exceeded the fair value of the repgrtinit and measured -
impairment. We concluded the implied fair valueggobdwill was zero and recorded an impairment tdeaoif the balance as of December 31, 2011.

We revised our estimates of future cash flows inRulgaria Broadcast operations during the finadnter of 2011 to reflect our revised expectatiohsnzertainty in the Eurozo
periphery. Bulgaria has been continually impactgdhe global economic crisis, which has been rédlén the returns expected by investors resufiiog the increased actt
and perceived risk of investing in Bulgaria contimguto be higher than their historical norms. Wedloded that the trademark recorded in connectiitin the acquisition of t
bTV group was impaired and recorded a charge of 4IS$nillion to write it down to its estimated faialue. After adjusting the reporting unit's cangyiamount for the indefinite-
lived intangible asset impairment, we determineat the carrying amount for goodwill exceeded iis ¥alue by US$ 53.4 milliorand recorded this amount as an impairme
goodwill. We determined that the carrying amounttltd asset group in Bulgaria was recoverable bgreete to the expected cash flows to be generatettherefore r
impairment was recorded for long-lived assets tarigible assets subject to amortization.

Impairment reviews and charges recognized in z

We performed our annual impairment test in thetfoguarter of 2010 and determined that none ofreporting units were at risk of impairment. As aéd@mber 31, 2010, t
equity fair value of all our reporting units exceddheir carrying amount by more than 10.0% .

In the fourth quarter of 2010, we decided to cegmrating InfoPro, a radio channel in Romania aardl @f our Romania Broadcast segment, and recadeahpairment charge
US$ 0.4 million to write off the carrying amounttbe InfoPro trademark after determining that iswat recoverable.
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5. LONG-TERM DEBT AND OTHER FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS

Summary
December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Senior debt $ 1,213,42. % 1,243,20
Total credit facilities and capital leases 7,36¢ 81,16:
Total long-term debt and other financing arrangemens 1,220,79. 1,324,36!
Less current maturities (21,919 (1,059
Total non-current long-term debt and other financing arrangements $ 1,198,87. $ 1,323,31
Senior Debt
Our senior debt comprised the following as at Ddwem31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 :
Carrying Amount Fair Value
December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31
201z 2011 201z 2011
USD 20.6 million 2013 Convertible Notes $ 20,44: $ 121,23( $ 20,55 $ 117,92t
EUR nil 2014 Floating Rate Notes — 191,49° — 141,70t
USD 261.0 million 2015 Convertible Notes 231,81: 223,34: 238,05: 163,27t
EUR 478.6 million 2016 Fixed Rate Notes 637,40¢ 487,17¢ 666,38! 373,21}
EUR 240.0 million 2017 Fixed Rate Notes 323,76 219,96: 346,20( 206,76"
$ 1,213,42:. % 1,243,200 $ 1,271,18 % 1,002,891

Improvement of Maturity Profile

On August 16, 2012, CET 21 spol. s.r.o. ("CET 2a")holly-owned subsidiary of CME Ltd., issued awid EUR 70.0 million (approximately US$ 92.4 naili) of its9.0%
Senior Secured Notes due 2017 at an issue prit@825% for proceeds of approximately EUR 73.8iaril{approximately US$ 97.4 million ) and approxteig EUR1.8 million
(approximately US$ 2.4 million ) of accrued intérssm May 1, 2012, net of costs of approximatelyHE2.0 million (approximately US$ 2.6 million These notes were isst
under an indenture dated October 21, 2010 pursoavitich CET 21 issued EUR 170.0 million aggregatacipal amount of its 9.0%enior Secured Notes due 2017 (collecti
the “2017 Fixed Rate Notest)n October 21, 2010. The 2017 Fixed Rate Notedreated as a single class for all purposes undemitenture governing the 2017 Fixed |
Notes. CET 21 used the net proceeds from the 28&8rg to fully repay outstanding amounts unded aancel its fiv-year CZK 1.5 billion (approximately US$ 73.0 noltion
the date of repayment) revolving credit facilitregment (the "Secured Revolving Credit Facility").

On September 7, 2012, we completed the issuanceasd@adf EUR 104.0 million (approximately US$ 13milion ) of 11.625% Senior Notes due 2016 atssueé price 0103.0%
for proceeds of approximately EUR 104.8 millionffagximately US$ 138.3 million ) and approximatelyyi 5.8 million (approximately US$ 7.6 millionof accrued interest frc
March 15, 2012, net of costs of approximately EURMIllion (approximately US$ 3.0 milliopn These notes were issued under an indenture Satetgmber 17, 2009 pursuar
which we previously issued EUR 200.0 million aggregprincipal amount of 11.625% Senior Notes du62th September 17, 2009 and EUR 240.0 miléiggregate princip
amount of 11.625% Senior Notes due 2016 on Septe2He2009 (collectively, the “2016 Fixed Rate N&jje The 2016 Fixed Rate Notes are treated as a sitegs for al
purposes under the indenture governing the 201€dARate Notes. We used the net proceeds from th2 @tering to (i) irrevocably deposit US$ 21.0 lioih in cash in escro
for the repayment in full at maturity on March 2813 of the outstanding 3.5% Senior ConvertibleeNatue 2013 (the “2013 Convertible Notegl)s accrued interest and
optionally redeem and cancel the remaining EUR &7ilbon (approximately US$ 115.4 milliohaggregate principal amount outstanding of thei®dfoating Rate Notes d
2014 (the "2014 Floating Rate Notes" and colletyivéth 2016 Fixed Rate Notes and 2017 Fixed Ratéeh| the "Senior Notes") plus accrued interesiiéoredemption date,
further described below.

Concurrent with the sale of the 2016 Fixed RateeSlain September 7, 2012, we issued an irrevocetiamption notice for redemption on October 7, 26fithe remaining EU
87.5 million (approximately US$ 115.4 milligreggregate principal amount of 2014 Floating Rdtées outstanding. The 2014 Floating Rate Noteg neteemable at our opt
upon payment of the redemption price of 100.0%hef pirincipal amount. On September 7, 2012, we dggbEUR 88.4 million (approximately US$ 116.6 noiti ) with the
trustee for the 2014 Floating Rate Notes, whiclraggnted the redemption price plus all interesaplgyto the settlement date. The outstanding 20d4tiRg Rate Notes we
redeemed on October 7, 2012. As a result, we réoedrhe extinguishment of the remaining liability October 7, 2012, amounting to a loss of apprateéiy US$0.6 million
related to the write-off of unamortized debt isste@nosts.

Additionally, on September 7, 2012, we made arvacable deposit in escrow of US$ 21.0 millisith the trustee for the 2013 Convertible Notesiclvhrepresents the aggrec

principal amount plus all interest that will be pale when the 2013 Convertible Notes mature on Maf; 2013. Even though the deposit is irrevogable 2013Convertible
Notes remain outstanding until maturity, and therefve will not recognize the extinguishment of éissociated liability until March 15, 201
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The carrying amount of our senior debt outstandiiter considering the irrevocable cash depositls thi¢ trustee of the 2013 Convertible Notes i$a#h in the table below:

December 31, 201

Carrying amount of senior debt $ 1,213,42
In-substance defeasance of 2013 Convertible Notes (20,447
Carrying amount of remaining senior debt outstagdin $ 1,192,98
Tender Offers

On April 30, 2012, we announced a tender offer (@13 Tender Offer") to purchase for cash up t&U89.7 millionin aggregate principal amount of our outstanding3
Convertible Notes as well as a tender offer (therbETender Offer") to purchase for cash the Eunoivedent of up to US$ 170.0 milliom aggregate principal amount of |
outstanding 2014 Floating Rate Notes and 2016 Arage Notes.

2013 Tender Offer

On May 31, 2012, we completed the purchase of UE$01million in aggregate principal of 2013 Conildet Notes for cash consideration of US$ 109.0iamilplus accrue
interest using proceeds drawn under the Term Laailifies Credit Agreement dated April 30, 2012e(tfW Credit Agreement”with Time Warner Inc. ("Time Warner"). T
cash payments were allocated between an amoussgpect of the value of the liability that was egtirshed and an amount in respect of the reacaprisiti the equity component.

The amount allocated to the extinguishment of idi&lity component was equal to the fair valuetattcomponent immediately prior to extinguishmeurttich

was determined based on the future cash flows a$sdavith the repurchased portion of the 2013 @dtitde Notes discounted using the rate of returimgestor

would have required on our non-convertible debhwiher terms substantially similar to the 2013 w&otible Notes. The most critical input used toedetine

the fair value of the liability component of thel&Convertible Notes was the discount rate usedlitulating the present value of the future caswdlassociated

with the 2013 Convertible Notes. We used a comhinaif observed prices paid for similar debt ancbiporated a USS$ risk free rate for debt with ailsimremaining life to th
2013 Convertible Notes to determine an overallalist rate. The remaining consideration was receghé#s a reacquisition of the equity component.

The difference between the consideration alloctddte liability component and the net carrying amtoof the liability and unamortized debt issuanosts was recorded as a
on extinguishment of debt within interest expemséhe consolidated statements of operations arel abmprehensive income. The amounts we recordetthdotransaction a
presented in the table below.

Euro Tender Offe
On June 14, 2012, we completed the purchase of W& million (approximately US$ 75.8 millicat the date of repurchase) aggregate principal atwfu2014 Floating Ra

Notes for EUR56.7 million (approximately US$ 71.1 millicat the date of repurchase) plus accrued interésg psoceeds drawn under the TW Credit Agreemené dmount
we recorded for the transaction are presenteckitathie below. None of the 2016 Fixed Rate Notaswlere tendered for repurchase were accepted.by us

(Loss) / Gain on Extinguishment

Tender offer 2013 Convertible Nott 2014 Floating Rate Not Total
(Loss) / gain on extinguishment $ (3,769 $ 3,565 $ (29¢)
Unamortized debt costs included in (loss) / gairextinguishment 37C 527 897
Adjustment to additional paid-in capital $ 86¢ $ — $ 86¢

Convertible Notes
2013 Convertible Notes

On March 10, 2008, we issued US$ 475.0 milldér2013 Convertible Notes, which mature on March2@L3. As discussed above, on September 7, 201Ragde an irrevocak
deposit in escrow of US$ 21.0 millianith the trustee for the 2013 Convertible Notesiclhrepresents the aggregate principal amountgilsccrued interest that will be paye
when the 2013 Convertible Notes mature in March320d May 2012 we repurchased US$ 109.0 miliiorprincipal amount of our 2013 Convertible Notégar plus accrue
interest. During 2011, we completed privately negetl exchanges totaling US$ 261.0 million in aggte principal amount of our 2013 Convertible Nd@sUS$261.0 millior
in aggregate principal amount of our 5.0% Senionv@atible Notes due 2015 (the “2015 Convertibledd$dtand collectively with the 2013 Convertible Ngjtéhe ‘Convertible
Note<"). The exchanging holders of the 2013 Convertites also received cash consideration of apprdeim&S$ 35.4 million , including accrued interestUS$ 3.3 million.
We also repurchased US$ 49.5 million aggregatecipah amount of our 2013 Convertible Notes for US$4 million including accrued interest in Septemd@11, and US84.¢
million aggregate principal amount for US$ 30.7limil plus accrued interest in October 2010.
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The fair value of the 2013 Convertible Notes aBatember 31, 2012 and December 31, 2044 calculated by multiplying the outstanding dapthe traded market price bece
we considered the embedded conversion option te hawalue since the market price of our sharesswedar below the conversion price. This measuréroeestimated fa
value uses Level 2 inputs as described in NotéHiancial Instruments and Fair Value Measureme#® have capped call options corresponding tatireber of shares tf
would be issued upon conversion of the 2013 Coiblerotes, but we believe the likelihood of suatbaversion to be remote.

We recorded adjustments to equity during 2012 itgaUS$ 21.1 millionin respect of the portion of the capped call ogtithat were no longer exercisable following
repurchase of a portion of 2013 Convertible Notelslay 2012.

We separately account for the liability and eqaitynponents of the 2013 Convertible Notes. The elaba conversion option is not accounted for asiaatere.

Principal Amount of Unamortized Net Carrying

Liability Component Discount Amount Equity Component
BALANCE December 31, 2011 $ 129,66( $ (8430) $ 121,23(  $ 102,36
Extinguishment of debt (109,019 4,537 (104,479 (86¢)
Amortization of debt issuance discount = 3,68¢ 3,68¢ —
BALANCE December 31, 2012 $ 20,647 $ (208) $ 20,44: % 101,50:

The remaining issuance discount is being amortizexd the life of the 2013 Convertible Notes, whichture on March 15, 2013, using the effective egemethod. The effecti
interest rate on the liability component for altipds presented was 10.3% .

Certain other derivative instruments have beentifileth as being embedded in the 2013 Convertibléehldbut as they are considered to be clearly bsetly related to the 20
Convertible Notes they are not accounted for seplgra

2015 Convertible Notes

During 2011, we completed privately negotiated excfes totaling US$ 261.0 million in aggregate ppacamount of our 2013 Convertible Notes for USSH.® million in
aggregate principal amount of our 2015 Converfiidées. The 2015 Convertible Notes mature on Nowerb, 2015.

Interest is payable semi-annually in arrears o &ay 15 and November 15. The fair value of thbiliy component of the 2015 Convertible Notes aBacember 31, 201®as
calculated as the present value of the future fasis associated with the liability component digoted using the rate of return an investor wouldehaequired on our non-
convertible debt with other terms substantially iEimto the 2015 Convertible Notes. This measurdnoérestimated fair value uses Level 2 inputs ascdeed in Note 1.
"Financial Instruments and Fair Value Measurements"

The 2015 Convertible Notes are secured senior atiigs and rank pari passu with all existing artdriei senior indebtedness and are effectively suhated to all existing at
future indebtedness of our subsidiaries. The atsooutstanding are guaranteed by our wholly ownsxbidiaries CME Media Enterprises N.V. (‘CME NVdhd CME Medi
Enterprises B.V. ("CME BV") and are secured byedgk of shares of those companies.

Prior to August 15, 2015, the 2015 Convertible Natee convertible following certain events and frivait date, at any time, based on an initial cagivarrate of 2Ghares of ot
Class A common stock per US$ 1,000 principal amofi@015 Convertible Notes (which is equivalengatoinitial conversion price of US$ 50.p@r share). The conversion rat
subject to adjustment if we make certain distritmsi to the holders of shares of our Class A comstock, undergo certain corporate transactionsfondamental change, anc
other circumstances specified in the 2015 Convertintes. From time to time up to and including Asgl5, 2015, we will have the right to elect &diver (i) shares of our Cle
A common stock, (ii) cash, or (iii) cash and, ifpfipable, shares of our Class A common stock upmversion of the 2015 Convertible Notes. At présere have elected
deliver cash and, if applicable, shares of our €lRsommon stock. As at December 31, 201t%e 2015 Convertible Notes may not be convertacaddition, the holders of t
2015 Convertible Notes have the right to put th&52Qonvertible Notes to us for cash equal to thgregate principal amount of the 2015 Convertibleéedglus accrued k
unpaid interest thereon following the occurrenceeatain specified fundamental changes (includirp@nge of control (which includes the acquisitigna person or group (
such term is defined in Section 13(d)(3) of theuBiéies Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Bmgk Act")) of beneficial ownership of more thar®66f the outstandir
shares of our Class A common stock), certain mergesolvency and a delisting).

We separately account for the liability and eqaitynponents of the 2015 Convertible Notes. The eliaoe conversion option is not accounted for asizatere.

Principal Amount of Unamortized Net Carrying

Liability Component Discount Amount Equity Component
BALANCE December 31, 2011 $ 261,03: $ (37,69) $ 22334: $ 11,90°
Amortization of debt issuance discount — 8,47] 8,471 —
BALANCE December 31, 2012 $ 261,03: $ (29,22) $ 231,81 $ 11,90°
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The issuance discount is being amortized overitbet the 2015 Convertible Notes using the effexiinterest method. The effective interest ratehenliability component wi
10.0% .

Certain other derivative instruments have beentifieth as being embedded in the 2015 ConvertibléeBlobut as they are considered to be clearly knsely related to the 20
Convertible Notes they are not accounted for seégigra

Floating Rate Notes

On May 16, 2007, we issued EUR 150.0 million of £2Floating Rate Notes which bear interest at tker®nth Euro Inter Bank Offered Rate (‘EURIBOR"upl1.625%the
applicable rate at September 30, 2012 was 2.6086 Hiscussed above, on October 7, 2012 we redeémedmaining EUR 87.5 million (approximately US#514 million)
aggregate principal amount of 2014 Floating Rateedloutstanding. In June 2012 we repurchased EURNGillion (approximately US$ 75.8 millioat the date of repurchase
principal amount of our 2014 Floating Rate NotesEWR 56.7 million (approximately US$ 71.1 milliat the date of repurchase) plus accrued intere@010, we repurchas
EUR 2.0 million (approximately US$ 2.8 million &tet date of repurchase) aggregate principal amduwnird??014 Floating Rate Notes for EUR 1.6 milli@pproximately US®.3
million at date of repurchase) plus accrued interes

The fair value of the 2014 Floating Rate Notestd3exember 31, 201das equal to the outstanding debt multiplied bytthded market price. This measurement of estiniaie
value uses Level 2 inputs as described in NotéHi@ancial Instruments and Fair Value Measurements"

Fixed Rate Notes
2016 Fixed Rate Notes

On September 17, 2009, we issued EUR 200.0 mitifo2016 Fixed Rate Notes at an issue price of 9®@26and on September 29, 2009, we issued EUR 2llion of 201¢€
Fixed Rate Notes at an issue price of 102.75%digcussed above, on September 7, 2012 we issuadditional EUR 104.0 milliomf 2016 Fixed Rate Notes at an issue prit
103.0% . The 2016 Fixed Rate Notes mature on Séyetertb, 2016. In 2010, we repurchased a total WR E8.4 million (approximately US$ 67.1 millicst the date «
repurchase) aggregate principal amount of our Z0%éd Rate Notes for EUR 49.3 million (approximgtelS$ 68.5 millionat the date of repurchase) plus accrued intete
2011, we repurchased an additional EUR 17.0 millapproximately US$ 24.0 millioat the date of repurchase) aggregate principal atrafuour 2016 Fixed Rate Notes for E
18.6 million (approximately US$ 26.3 million at tHate of repurchase) plus accrued interest.

Interest on the 2016 Fixed Rate Notes is payabt@-aanually in arrears on each March 15 and Septerh. The fair value of the 2016 Fixed Rate NatestDecember 3:
2012 and December 31, 20%hs calculated by multiplying the outstanding deptthe traded market price. This measurement afeagtd fair value uses Level 2 inputs
described in Note 12, "Financial Instruments anid ¥alue Measurements".

The 2016 Fixed Rate Notes are secured senior dibligaand rank pari passu with all existing andifeitsenior indebtedness and are effectively subatelil to all existing al
future indebtedness of our subsidiaries. The atsocautstanding are guaranteed by CME NV and CMEaBY are secured by a pledge of shares of thosalsutes as well as
assignment of certain contractual rights. The seahour 2016 Fixed Rate Notes restrict the mammevhich our business is conducted, including theuirence of addition
indebtedness, the making of investments, the patywofedividends or the making of other distributipesitering into certain affiliate transactions ahe sale of assets (see
Note 21,“Indenture Covenants”).

In the event that (A) there is a change in cortiyolvhich (i) any party other than certain of ouegent shareholders becomes the beneficial owrmap# than 35.0%f our tota
voting power; (ii) we agree to sell substantialllycd our operating assets; or (iii) there is amg@ in the composition of a majority of our Boafdirectors; and (B) on the 60th
day following any such change of control the ratifighe 2016 Fixed Rate Notes is either withdrawrnl@vngraded from the rating in effect prior to #tmnouncement of su
change of control, we can be required to repurcties@016 Fixed Rate Notes at a purchase pricash equal to 101.0%f the principal amount of the 2016 Fixed Rate Nqtki:
accrued and unpaid interest to the date of purchase

The 2016 Fixed Rate Notes are redeemable at oianojpt whole or in part, at the redemption prisesforth below:

Fixed Rate Note

From Redemption Price

September 15, 2013 to September 14, 2014 105.81%
September 15, 2014 to September 14, 2015 102.90¢%
September 15, 2015 and thereafter 100.00(%

Certain derivative instruments, including redemptiall options and change of control and assebdipn put options, have been identified as beimipedded in the 2016 Fix
Rate Notes but as they are considered clearly Esely related to the 2016 Fixed Rate Notes, threynat accounted for separately. We have inclutlechet issuance premil
within the carrying amount of the 2016 Fixed Rat#té$ and are amortizing it through interest expesss®y the effective interest method.
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2017 Fixed Rate Notes

On October 21, 2010, our wholly-owned subsidiarf,TQ1 issued EUR 170.0 million (approximately USE!3 million) of 2017 Fixed Rate Notes. As discussed abov
August 16, 2012, CET 21 issued an additional EUR Flllion (approximately US$ 92.4 million ) of 20Fixed Rate Notes at an issue price of 108.25%e 2017 Fixed Re
Notes mature on November 1, 20

Interest is payable semi-annually in arrears orh éday 1 and November 1. The fair value of the 26ix&ed Rate Notes as at December 31, 2012 and Dwere3i, 201was
calculated by multiplying the outstanding debt be traded market price. This measurement of esintir value uses Level 2 inputs as described areN2, "Financit
Instruments and Fair Value Measurements".

The 2017 Fixed Rate Notes are secured senior ¢biigaof CET 21. The 2017 Fixed Rate Notes rankmssu with all existing and future senior indelbtess of CET 21 and «
effectively subordinated to all existing and futunelebtedness of our other subsidiaries. The atsooutstanding are guaranteed by CME Ltd. and hywduwlly-ownec
subsidiaries CME NV, CME BV, CME Investments B.ZME Slovak Holdings B.V. (“CME SH”) and MARKIZA-SL@AKIA, spol. s r.0. (“Markiza”)and are secured by
pledge of the shares of CME NV, CME BV, CET 21, CI8H, and Media Pro Pictures s.r.o., as well assaigament of certain contractual rights. The teofthe 2017 Fixe
Rate Notes restrict the manner in which the Comisaalyd CET 218 business is conducted, including the incurrericadditional indebtedness, the making of investmetit
payment of dividends or the making of other disttitins, entering into certain affiliate transacti@nd the sale of assets (see also Note 21, “lmade@bvenants”).

In the event that (A) there is a change in cortsolvhich (i) any party other than certain of ouegent shareholders becomes the beneficial owrmaocé than 35%f our tota
voting power; (ii) we agree to sell substantialllycd our operating assets; or (i) there is amg@ in the composition of a majority of our Boafdirectors; and (B) on the 60th
day following any such change of control the ratiighe 2017 Fixed Rate Notes is either withdrawrl@vngraded from the rating in effect prior to #m&nouncement of su
change of control, we can be required to repurcties@017 Fixed Rate Notes at a purchase pricash equal to 101.0%f the principal amount of the 2017 Fixed Rate Nqik:
accrued and unpaid interest to the date of purchase

The 2017 Fixed Rate Notes are redeemable at oianojrt whole or in part, at the redemption prisesforth below:

Fixed Rate Note

From Redemption Price

November 1, 2014 to October 31, 2015 104.5%
November 1, 2015 to October 31, 2016 102.2%%
November 1, 2016 and thereafter 100.0(%

Prior to November 1, 2013, up to 35.0% of the ordjiprincipal amount of the 2017 Fixed Rate Notms lse redeemed at a price of 109.6Bthe principal amount, plus accrt
and unpaid interest if certain conditions are met.

Certain derivative instruments, including redemptéall options and change of control and assebdipn put options, have been identified as beimdpedded in the 2017 Fix
Rate Notes but as they are considered clearly lasdlg related to the 2017 Fixed Rate Notes, theyat accounted for separately.
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Credit Facilities and Capital Lease Obligations

Credit facilities and capital lease obligations poised the following at December 31, 2012 and Ddwar31, 2011 :

December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Credit facilities (@ —(e) $ 328. $ 77,46¢
Capital leases 4,08¢ 3,69¢
Total credit facilities and capital leases 7,36¢ 81,16:
Less current maturities (1,47¢) (1,059
Total non-current credit facilities and capital leases $ 589: $ 80,10«

(a) In connection with the cash tenders announce8lil 30, 2012, we entered into the TW Credit &giment with Time Warner. Under the TW Credit AgreemTime Warne
agreed to loan to the Company up to an aggregateigal amount of US$ 300.0 million in three trasshthe “TW Loans”)with the amounts we could draw upon for each tre
corresponding to the amount of our 2013 Convertii¢es, 2014 Floating Rate Notes or 2016 Fixed Rities, as applicable, accepted for purchase by tle 2013 Tend
Offer and the Euro Tender Offer. We drew US$ 108illon under the credit facility on May 30, 2012 to finartbe repurchase of 2013 Convertible Notes, ana dreadditione
US$ 71.1 million on June 13, 2012 to finance thmrehase of 2014 Floating Rate Notes. We issuestud Class A common stock to Time Warner Mediédiigs B.V. (‘TW
Investor”) and RSL Capital LLC, an affiliate of Rald Lauder, on June 15, 2012 and the proceedsapgleed to repay the outstanding principal amodinid®$ 89.3 millionanc
accrued interest of US$ 38 thousand on the TW Lo@nsJune 27, 2012, we exercised our option tcspates to TW Investor in order to repay the remgitdS$90.8 millior
amount of TW Loans outstanding and this transaatiosed on July 3, 2012 (see Note 12, "Financistriiments and Fair Value Measurement” and NotéEg)ity").

(b) We have a cash pooling arrangement with Bankdde Gans (“BMG”), a subsidiary of ING Bank N.VING”), which enables us to receive credit across the girougspec
of cash balances which our subsidiaries deposit BMIG. Cash deposited by our subsidiaries with BM@ledged as security against the drawings ofrathbsidiaries up to tl
amount deposited.

As at December 31, 2012 , we had deposits of US$ Bdlion in and drawings of US$ 0.5 milliaon the BMG cash pool. Interest is earned on depasithe relevant mon
market rate and interest is payable on all drawatghe relevant money market rate plus 2.0% .tA3egember 31, 2011 , we had deposits of US$ 31l@min and drawings ¢
US$ nil on the BMG cash pool.

(c) On October 21, 2010, CET 21 entered into a fjsgar CZK 1.5 billion (approximately US$ 78.7 nat based on December 31, 2012 rates) Secured Revdlvejt Facility
CET 21 repaid amounts outstanding under and cahtieéeSecured Revolving Facility on August 16, 2@&wings on the Secured Revolving Credit Factityounted to CZ
1.5 billion (approximately US$ 78.7 million based December 31, 2012 rates) as at December 31, Rielest under the facility was calculated atte per annum of 5%bove
Prague Interbank Offered Rate ("PRIBOR") for tHevant interest period (the applicable rate at Béwer 31, 2011 was 5.97% ).

(d) As at December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2@fidre were no drawings outstanding under a CZK®8tlllion (approximately US$ 43.6 millioh factoring framewor
agreement with Factoring Ceska Sporitelna (“FC®&hder this facility up to CZK 830.0 million (apptimately US$ 43.6 million ) may be factored on eaerse or nomecours
basis. The facility bears interest at one-monthBER plus 2.5% for the period that actively assijaecounts receivable are outstanding.

(e) At December 31, 2012 , Media Pro Entertainniet an aggregate principal amount of RON 11.9 enil{lapproximately US$ 3.5 million ) ( December 3011 , RON10.€
million , approximately US$ 3.1 milliobased on December 31, 2012 rates) of loans outstamdth the Central National al Cinematografei 'C"), a Romanian governmer
organization which provides financing for qualifgifilmmaking projects. Upon acceptance of a paldicproject, the CNC awards an agreed level of ifugdb each project in tl
form of an interesfree loan. Loans from the CNC are typically advahfar a period of ten years and are repaid thrabhgtproceeds from the distribution of the film camtt A
December 31, 2012 , we had 16 loans outstandirfy tive CNC with maturity dates ranging from 2012620. The carrying amounts at December 31, 2012Dmuémber 3:
2011 are net of a fair value adjustment of US$illlon and US$ 1.0 million , respectively, arising acquisition.
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Total Group

At December 31, 2012 , the maturity of our sengtcand credit facilities was as follows:

2013 $ 64¢
2014 201
2015 261,28:
2016 631,46!
2017 316,65!
2018 and thereafter 3,14
Total senior debt and credit facilities 1,213,39
In-substance defeasance of 2013 Convertible Notes 20,64°
Net discount (27,339
Carrying amount of senior debt and credit facilities $ 1,216,70:

Capital Lease Commitments

We lease certain of our office and broadcast taslias well as machinery and equipment under warieasing arrangements. The future minimum leagmpnts, by year and
the aggregate, under capital leases with initi@baraining non-cancellable lease terms in excess®fyear, consisted of the following at Decemider2®12 :

2013 $ 1,21t
2014 867
2015 722
2016 48t
2017 377
2018 and thereafter 82(
Total undiscounted payments 4,48
Less: amount representing interest (39€)
Present value of net minimum lease payments $ 4,08¢
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6. PROGRAM RIGHTS

Program rights comprised the following at Decen8ier2012 and December 31, 2011 :

Program rights:

December 31, 201

December 31, 201

Acquired program rights, net of amortization $ 295,05. $ 266,88:
Less: current portion of acquired program rights (120,02) (101,74)
Total non-current acquired program rights 175,02¢ 165,14:
Produced program rights — Feature Films:

Released, net of amortization 4,601 3,191

Completed and not released 1,40¢ 77¢€

In production 2,297 70¢

Development and pre-production 552 27¢
Produced program rights — Television Programs:

Released, net of amortization 80,83( 70,38:

Completed and not released 23,15¢ 9,13¢

In production 11,29 12,45’

Development and pre-production 4,54: 4,13t
Total produced program rights 128,68( 101,07-
Total non-current acquired program rights and produced program rights $ 303,70 $ 266,21

During 2011, we concluded a comprehensive exanoimaif the appropriateness of our program right&cpollhis review included a study of the relativ@ue generated by
runs of a license in past periods. We concludetittieexisting allocation for films and series wéth estimated two runs of 65% on showing the firatand 35%on showing th
second run was still appropriate. However, pastopmance showed that content with an estimatedethues generated more relative value on the thirdthan our previot
estimate. Consequently, from July 1, 2011 thesestivere amortized 50% on showing the first rurfo2s showing the second run and 28f6showing the third run. Had
continued to amortize content with an estimatedehuns by 60% on the first run, 30% on the secondand 10%on the third run using our previous estimate duthwegfirst si>
months of 2012, the program rights amortizationrghdor 2012 would have been approximately US$nglBon higher, or US$ 0.05 and US$ 0.pBr basic common share
diluted common share, respectively.

7. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable comprised the following at Deleer 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 :

December 31, 201

December 31, 201

Unrelated customers $ 199,49: $ 204,74
Less: allowance for bad debts and credit notes (16,789 (13,55Y)
Related parties 1,91¢ 1,02(
Less: allowance for bad debts and credit notes (13%) (55)
Total accounts receivable $ 184,49  $ 192,15°

Bad debt expense for the year ended December 32,8t 2011 was US$ 3.8 million and US$ 3.3 millioespectively. We had net bad debt recoveri@$sS$ 0.2 millionfor the

year ended December 31, 2010.

At December 31, 2012 , there were CZK 132.4 millj@pproximately US$ 6.9 million ) ( December 31,120 CZK 545.8 million , approximately US$ 28.6 fioih based o
December 31, 2012 rates), of receivables subjabietéactoring framework agreement (see Note 5nf-Germ Debt and Other Financing Arrangements”).
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8. OTHER ASSETS

Other current and non-current assets comprisefbliosving at December 31, 2012 and December 311201

December 31, 201

December 31, 201

Current:

Prepaid acquired programming $ 21,12:  $ 23,47¢
Other prepaid expenses 7,99¢ 9,42:
Deferred tax 2,204 3,89¢
Capitalized debt costs 4,741 5,02¢
VAT recoverable 4,36¢ 6,851
Inventory 6,19/ 5,22¢
Income taxes recoverable 1,42¢ 2,63:
Restricted cash 23,35( 381
Other 2,23¢ 1,09:
Total other current assets $ 73,64. $ 58,00t
December 31, 201 December 31, 201

Non-current:
Capitalized debt costs $ 16,887 $ 19,35(
Deferred tax 5,563¢ 4,23
Other 1,84t 2,92¢
Total other non-current assets $ 24,270 $ 26,50¢

Capitalized debt costs primarily comprise the castsirred in connection with the issuance of ouni@eNotes and Convertible Notes (see Note 5, “l-degn Debt and Oth
Financing Arrangements”), and are being amortiaegt the term of the Senior Notes and ConvertibléeBlaising either the straiglite method, which approximates the effec
interest method, or the effective interest method.

The restricted cash balance at December 31, 2@liied US$ 21.0 milliomleposited in escrow with the trustee of the 2018v@dible Notes representing the aggregate prit
and interest payable when the 2013 Convertible Nwt@ture in March 2013.
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9. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment comprised the folhgwat December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 :

December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Land and buildings $ 164,390 $ 160,18:
Machinery, fixtures and equipment 215,77t 197,04
Other equipment 38,09: 31,97(
Software licenses 49,46¢ 39,99:
Construction in progress 14,95« 17,89
Total cost 482,68 447,08
Less: Accumulated depreciation (275,970 (229,72()
Total net book value $ 206,70t $ 217,36°
Assets held under capital leases (included in théave)
Land and buildings $ 6,042 $ 4,50¢
Machinery, fixtures and equipment 3,792 3,14¢
Total cost 9,83¢ 7,65¢
Less: Accumulated depreciation (3,079 (2,720
Net book value $ 6,751 $ 4,93¢

The movement in the net book value of propertyntadand equipment during the years ended Decemh&03P and 2011 is comprised of:

For The Years Ending December 31,

201z 2011
Opening balance $ 217,36° $ 250,90:
Cash additions 32,73: 34,19:
Disposals (25) (1,659
Impairment (8,712 —
Depreciation (44,499 (56,587)
Foreign currency movements 3,271 (6,007)
Other movements 6,56¢ (3,48)
Ending balance $ 206,70t $ 217,36

Depreciation expense for the years ending DeceBhe2012 , 2011 and 2010 was US$ 44.5 million , B6$ million and US$ 58.1 millionrespectively. See Note 4, "Good
and Intangible Assets" for discussion of the impaint recorded during the year ended December 32, 20
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10. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities compribedfollowing at December 31, 2012 and DecembefG11 :

December 31, 201

December 31, 201

Accounts payable $
Related party accounts payable

Programming liabilities

Related party programming liabilities

Duties and other taxes payable

Accrued staff costs

Accrued interest payable

Income taxes payable

Accrued services and other supplies

Accrued legal contingencies and professional fees
Authors’ rights

Other accrued liabilities

Total accounts payable and accrued liabilities $

55,42 47,67t
827 1,95¢
56,56( 32,53
52,86 68,57
11,91 13,46:
16,50¢ 24,53;
28,25t 24,10¢
5,08¢ 1,37¢
18,28: 9,061
4,807 3,40¢
3,391 6,361
1,76¢ 6,99
255,68 240,04

11. OTHER LIABILITIES

Other current and non-current liabilities comprisieel following at December 31, 201and December 31, 2011 :

December 31, 201

December 31, 201

Current:

Deferred revenue $ 11,86: 10,97:
Deferred tax 1,36¢ 1,09¢
Derivative liabilities 144 2,37t
Other 39z 23
Total other current liabilities $ 13,76¢ 14,46¢

December 31, 201

December 31, 201

Non-current:

Deferred tax $ 52,06¢ 74,67.
Related party programming liabilities 761 9,36:
Derivative liabilities — 697
Other 382 21z
Total other non-current liabilities $ 53,21: 84,94.
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12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREME NTS
ASC 820, “Fair Value Measurements and Discloswgstablishes a hierarchy that prioritizes the inputhiose valuation techniques used to measurgdaie. The hierarchy giv
the highest priority to unadjusted quoted pricesdtive markets for identical assets or liabilit{es=vel 1 measurements) and the lowest priorityiobservable inputs (leve

measurements). The three levels of the fair vaieiafchy are:

Basis of Fair Value Measurement

Level 1 Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets thahecessible at the measurement date for identinegstricted instrumen
Level 2 Quoted prices in markets that are not considerée t@ctive or financial instruments for which agjrsficant inputs are observable, either directiyralirectly
Level 3 Prices or valuations that require inputs that arté Bignificant to the fair value measurement amabiservable

A financial instrument’s level within the fair vadihierarchy is based on the lowest level of anytitipat is significant to the fair value measuremen

We evaluate the position of each financial instrohmaeasured at fair value in the hierarchy indieilubased on the valuation methodology we apphe €arrying amount

financial instruments, including cash and cashejents, accounts receivable, and accounts pagabl@ccrued liabilities, approximate their fairuetiue to the shoterm natur
of these items. The fair value of our Senior D@btdefined therein) is included in Note 5, “Longrfi Debt and Other Financing Arrangements”.

At December 31, 2012we had the following interest rate swap agreernanied at fair value using significant level pits. The previously outstanding option and curyesveaf
agreements (see "Share Subscription Agreement amgh&hy Option" and "Currency Risk" sections belowgye recorded at fair value using significant Ie¥@hputs and the ci
option issued in connection with the restructuidigur Bulgarian operations in 2010 (see “Othect®ms below), was carried at fair value using digant level 3 inputs.

The change in fair value of derivatives compridelfbllowing for the years ended December 31, 20211 and 2010:

For The Years Ending December 31,

2012 2011 201C
Share subscription agreement $ 22,83t $ — $ =
Company option 24,95: — —
Interest rate swap 57 32¢ (1,04))
Currency swap 66& 6,77¢ (585)
Call option = 18C 2,79(
Change in fair value of derivatives $ 49,020 $ 7,281 $ 1,164

Share Subscription Agreements and Company Option

On April 30, 2012, in addition to and in contemjmatof the TW Credit Agreement described in NotéL®ng-Term Debt and Other Financing Arrangements”, werendtinto
Subscription and Equity Commitment Agreement (tBguity Commitment Agreement”) with TW Investor whby we agreed to issue to TW Investor at a pricd$$ 7.51pel
share (the “Purchase Price”), the number of shafr€ass A common stock such that TW Investor wawlah a number of shares of Class A common stockleqa 40%nteres
in the Company on a diluted basis (and at leastm8llion shares) (the “TW Subscription Shares”).eTRurchase Price was equal to the Company's volerghted averag
closing share price on the NASDAQ Global Selectkéafor the 20 trading days immediately precedimgdigning of the Equity Commitment Agreement.

This forward sale of the TW Subscription Shares w@ssidered to be a derivative instrument due éoviriability in the number of shares to be issueder the terms of tl
agreement. As a result, a derivative liability ppeoximately US$ 3.8 millionvas recorded on April 30, 2012, representing thensic value of this forward sale on that datee
Equity Commitment Agreement was considered tordeell to, although separable from, the TW Crediteggnent. Therefore, the charge arising from recmgnéf the derivativ
liability was amortized over the remaining life the TW Credit Agreement as a debt issuance cosiniihterest expense in the consolidated statemwfeaperations and otk
comprehensive income. The TW Credit Agreement \ifastésely terminated upon the June 27, 2012 exseroff the option discussed further below, so theafeing unamortize
charge arising from the initial recognition of ttherivative was recognized during the three montited June 30, 2012.

The 9.9 millionTW Subscription Shares were issued on June 15,, 201 as a result, the derivative instrument wéttedeas of that date. The change in the fair vaifithe
derivative instrument, as measured immediatelyrgoassuance of the shares, resulted in a net gfaihS$ 22.8 million, which was recorded in the consolidated staterot
operations and other comprehensive income andeircthsolidated balance sheet in other currentsasBeis instrument was allocated to level 2 witthie fair value hierarct
because the critical input in its valuation wadlilgeobservable.

Under a separate agreement, RSL Capital LLC suigstfor 2.0 million shares of Class A Common Stotthe Company at a fixed price per share of US% 7resulting in

aggregate proceeds of US$ 15.0 million . As theseution amount was fixed and no variability eadstthis amount was recorded as equity upon thefearof funds on June 15,
2012.
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In addition, under the Equity Commitment Agreemé&W/ Investor granted to the Company an option (@@mpanyOption") to cause TW Investor to purchase, andbmpan'
granted to TW Investor an option to purchase, @fthrchase Price, the number of shares of Classmnon stock (the “Option Shareshat would generate proceeds to repa
then outstanding principal amount under the TW Ispanibject to certain limitations, including restions that TW Investor and its affiliates may aotjuire any shares that cc
result in their beneficial ownership in effect eedng 49.9% of the total outstanding voting se@sibf the Company on the date of exercise.

The instrument for the Option Shares met the d&imiof a derivative due to the variability in thember of shares that would be issued under tiestef the option and w
considered embedded within the TW Credit AgreemEne initial recognition of this derivative at arfaalue of approximately US$ 5.0 millioon the date of the first drawi
resulted in a corresponding premium on the TW Lbalance, and was amortized within interest expémsbe consolidated statement of operations andratbmprehensi
income over the remaining life of the TW Loans.

Subsequent changes in the fair value of this divevavere recorded in the consolidated statemewipefations and other comprehensive income anldeiconsolidated balar
sheet in other current assets. The fair valueisfdérivative was estimated using the Black-Schofg®npricing model. The main inputs used in the valuatitodel included tt
price of a share of our Class A common stock, fte®n strike price, the current rigkee interest rate and the known contractual texhiBe instrument. Volatility was also usec
an input into the model and was determined usingagement's estimates and equity volatilities of parable companies. This financial instrument whcated to level 2 of tt
fair value hierarchy because the critical inputs its valuation were readily observable.

We exercised the Company Option on June 27, 204@,tlee transaction settled on July 3, 2012. Du¢éhéoexercise, the US$ 5.0 milliggremium arising from the initi
recognition of the derivative was recognized ireiest expense during the three months ended Jyrgd3D. The fair value of the option on July 3, 200as US$ 30.0 million
There will be no further impact on earnings frons thstrument.

Interest Rate Ris

On February 9, 2010, we entered into an interdstswap agreement with UniCredit Bank Czech Repuhlis. (“UniCredit”) and Ceska Sporitelna, a.£FAS"), expiring ir
April 2013, to reduce the impact of changing insénates on our previously outstanding floating rdebt that was denominated in CZK. The interats swap is a financ
instrument that is used to minimize interest ratk and is considered an economic hedge. The Bitesiee swap has not been designated as a hedgingment so changes in
fair value of the derivative are recorded in thesmlidated statements of operations and other celmepssive income and in the consolidated balancet sheother currel
liabilities.

We value the interest rate swap agreement usirgguation model which calculates the fair value foa basis of the net present value of the estinfatede cash flows. The mc
significant input used in the valuation model is #xpected PRIBORased yield curve. This instrument is allocatetttel 2 of the fair value hierarchy because thacatiinput:
to this model, including current interest ratetgvant yield curves and the known contractual teofrtbe instrument, are readily observable.

The fair value of the interest rate swap as at bee 31, 2012 , was a US$ 0.1 million liability, ieln represented a net decrease of US$ 0.6 milliem fthe US$0.7 million
liability as at December 31, 2011 , and was recaghias a derivative gain in the consolidated sttérof operations and other comprehensive incomeuating to US$0.€
million .

Currency Risk

On April 27, 2006, we entered into currency swapaments with two counterparties whereby we swajgpiexed annual coupon interest rate (of 9.p&# notional principal
CZK 10.7 billion (approximately US$ 561.5 millionpayable on each July 15, October 15, Januararid April 15, for a fixed annual coupon intereseréf 9.0%) on notione
principal of EUR 375.9 million (approximately US$6L0 million ) receivable on each July 15, OctobgrJanuary 15, and April 15 up to the terminatate of April 15, 2012.

These currency swap agreements reduced our expsanevements in foreign exchange rates on pathefCZK-denominated cash flows generated by our Czech He
operations, which corresponded to a significanpprtion of the Euro-denominated interest payment®ar Senior Notes (see Note 5, “Lomgrm Debt and Other Financi
Arrangements”) These financial instruments were used to minimizeency risk and were considered an economic hetiflereign exchange rates. These instruments wai
designated as hedging instruments, and so changeir fair value were recorded in the consolidaséatements of operations and other compreheimséeene and in tr
consolidated balance sheet in other current ligdsli

We valued these currency swap agreements usingdastiystandard currency swap pricing model which caledlahe fair value on the basis of the net presahtevof thi
estimated future cash flows receivable or payabiese instruments were allocated to level 2 off#firevalue hierarchy because the critical inputghis model, including tt
relevant yield curves and the known contractuahteof the instrument, were readily observable.

The fair value of the liability on April 15, 201Bnmediately prior to the final payments being madd received was US$ 1.7 million ,which represeateét decrease of US$/
million from the US$ 2.4 million liability as at @ember 31, 2011 This change was recognized as a derivative gaithé consolidated statement of operations andr
comprehensive income amounting to US$ 0.7 millidhere will be no further impact on earnings frdms instrument.

Other

We issued a call option to Top Tone Holdings in@@1connection with the restructuring of our Buiga Broadcast operations. We used a binomial opiricing model to valt
the call option liability at US$ 3.0 millioas at April 19, 2010, the date we acquired the lgifsup. The option was allocated to level 3 of tae ¥alue hierarchy due to 1

significance of the unobservable inputs used irnvetieation model.

The fair value of the call option as at December28il2 and December 31, 2011 was US®edause the option strike price is the fair valuthe equity in CME Bulgaria. The
will be no further changes in the carrying amotfrthe option liability.
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Top Tone Holdings exercised the call option, whigh increase its noncontrolling interest in CME IBaria. The closing of this transaction has not geturred because 1
purchaser financing is still pending.

13. EQUITY
Preferred Stoc!
5,000,000 shares of Preferred Stock were authoegged December 31, 2012 and December 31, 201fe Were issued and outstanding as at Decembe031,.2

On June 27, 2012, we exercised our option undeE¢uity Commitment Agreement to sell shares of@oenpany to TW Investor. That transaction subsedysettled on July :
2012, at which point we issued 874,819 shares pftass A common stock and one share of SeriesnAertible preferred stock of the Company, par vai&$ 0.08per shar
(the “Preferred Share”), at a price per share as€IA common stock (including those underlyingRheferred Share) of US$ 7.510 TW Investor for aggregate consideratio
approximately US$ 90.8 millionThe consideration was utilized to repay the reimailoan outstanding under the TW Credit Agreem&he difference between the fair valus
the consideration, calculated based on the clagtiage price of our Class A shares of common stadke date of extinguishment, and the outstandiimgipal amount of the T\
Loan was offset by the derivative asset relatetiedOption Shares (see Note 12, "Financial Instnisnend Fair Value Measurements").

The Preferred Share, which is convertible into 11,249shares of Class A common stock, was issued pursodhe Equity Commitment Agreement, which provittest if the
issuance of shares of Class A common stock to TWgstior upon the exercise of the Company Option,mdggregated with the outstanding shares of Classmmon stock ¢
any group (as such term is defined in Section J{3)df the Exchange Act) that includes TW Invesiad its affiliates would have resulted in TW Ineeseneficially ownin
more than 49.9%f the outstanding number of shares of Class A comstock, the Company agreed to issue to TW Inveb® Preferred Share, which is convertible inte
number of shares of Class A common stock that TWédtor was not able to acquire because of thigdimn.

The Preferred Share is automatically convertible shares of Class A common stock on the dateigt&itdays after the date on which the ownership of auistanding shares
Class A common stock by a group that includes TWstor would not be greater than 49.9%hich is expected to occur following the termioatof the Irrevocable Voting De
and Corporate Representative Appointment among fAivestor, RSL Savannah, LLC, Ronald S. Lauder ardbmpany, dated May 18, 2009 (the "Voting Agredif)eithe
Preferred Share is entitled to one vote per eaaheshf Class A common stock into which it is comée and has such other rights, powers and prefee including potenti
adjustments to the number of Class A common stodetissued, as are set forth in the Certificateesfignation of the Preferred Share.

As a result of these investments, TW Investor o#16% of the outstanding shares of Class A comrtmoksind has a 49.9%¢onomic interest in the Company. The shares i
to TW Investor are subject to the Voting Agreemarttich terminates on May 18, 2013.

Class A and B Common Stock

200,000,000 and 100,000,000 shares of Class A constazk were authorized as at December 31, 201Daedmber 31, 2011 , respectively, and 15,000sb@0es of Class
common stock were authorized as at December 312 a6d December 31, 201IThe rights of the holders of Class A common staokl Class B common stock are iden
except for voting rights. The shares of Class A wmm stock are entitled to one vote per share amghhres of Class B common stock are entitledntedtes per share. Share:
Class B common stock are convertible into shareSlass A common stock on a one -for- drasis for no additional consideration. Holders axéteclass of shares are entitle
receive dividends and upon liquidation or dissolutare entitled to receive all assets availablelfstribution to shareholders. Under our Bgess, the holders of each class hav
preemptive or other subscription rights and theeena redemption or sinking fund provisions witipect to such shares.

On June 15, 2012, we issued 2,000,000 shares s§ @l@ommon stock to RSL Capital LLC and 9,901, 86éres of Class A common stock to TW Investor, eaehprice of US
7.51 per share, for aggregate proceeds to the GompfaUS$ 89.4 million. The proceeds of these share subscriptions wereedpo the outstanding TW Loans (see Noi
"Long-Term Debt and Other Financing Arrangement&)discussed above, we issued additional shar€sst A common stock to TW Investor on July 3,201

Also on June 15, 2012, Time Warner and Ronald Liadeverted their shares of Class B common stottkam equivalent number of shares of Class A comstook for n
additional consideration. Following this conversithrere are no shares of Class B common stockamutisty.

There were 77.2 million shares of Class A commonlksbutstanding at December 31, 2012 .
Warrants to purchase up to 600,000 and 250,00@sltdrClass A common stock for a six -year peradhinating December 2015 at a price of US$ 2p&i5share, are held
Alerria Management Company S.A. and Metrodome Bré&pectively, each of which is controlled by AdrBarbu, our President and Chief Executive Offéoet a member of o

Board of Directors.

On May 24, 2010, we issued 800,000 shares of aassCA common stock in connection with our acquaisitf the remaining ownership interests of apprataty 5.0%n each ¢
Pro TV, MPI and MV from Adrian Sarbu (see Note Bctjuisitions and Dispositions”).
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14. INCOME TAXES

As our investments are predominantly owned by Dimlding companies, the components of the provifdorincome taxes and of the income from continudpgrations befo
provision for income taxes have been analyzed @ivtieeir Netherlands and ndtetherlands components. Similarly the Dutch corfgonacome tax rates have been used il
reconciliation of income taxes.

Loss from continuing operations before income ta

The Netherlands and non-Netherlands componentssfifftom continuing operations before income taxes

For The Years Ending December 31,

2012 2011 201(
Domestic $ (21,629 $ 6470 $ (77,26)
Foreign (538,909 (169,289 (34,63)
Total $ (560,53) $ (175,75) $ (111,899

Included in domestic income during 2012, 2011 a@#i02is intercompany dividend income of US$ 50.0iaml, US$ 63.7 million and US$ 11.2 millignrespectively, with &
equivalent expense included within foreign incoifieese dividends are neither taxable in The Nethdglaor deductible in the foreign entity.

Total tax charge for the years ended December(Bil2,2011 and 2010 was allocated as follows:

For The Years Ending December 31,

201z 2011 201(C
Income tax (credit) / expense from continuing opers $ (14,139 $ 385( $ 5,02¢
Income tax expense from discontinued operations — — 3C
Total tax (credit) / expense $ (14,139 $ 385( $ 5,05t

Income Tax Provisior

The Netherlands and non-Netherlands componentegirovision for income taxes from continuing ofierss consist of:

For The Years Ending December 31,

201z 2011 201(C
Current income tax expense:
Domestic $ 751 $ 321 % 54¢
Foreign 8,84: 10,37" 12,31(
9,59¢ 10,69¢ 12,85¢
Deferred tax benefit:
Domestic 1,96: (5) —
Foreign (25,707 (6,847 (7,839
(23,739 (6,84%) (7,839
Provision for income taxes $ (14,139 $ 3850 $ 5,02¢

In 2012, the net tax provision reflects valuatiipveances in respect of the tax benefit of tax ésss
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Reconciliation of Effective Income Tax R
The following is a reconciliation of income taxes|culated at statutory Netherlands rates, torikerne tax provision included in the accompanyingsotidated statements

operations and comprehensive income for the yeateceDecember 31, 2012 , 2011 and 2010 :

For The Years Ending December 31,

2012 2011 201
Income taxes at Netherlands rates (2012 and 20%%; 2010 - 25.5%) (140,24) $ (4392) $ (28,52))
Jurisdictional differences in tax rates 30,43¢ 22,09: 41€
Tax effect of goodwill impairment 55,67: 7,10t —
Unrecognized tax benefits 11,08¢ 4,49( 2,44¢
Losses expired 5,591 2,344 672
Tax charge from internal restructuring — 9,22¢ —
Change in valuation allowance 16,04¢ 2,631 30,427
Other 7,161 (120) (413)
(Credit) / provision for income taxes (14,139 $ 3850 $ 5,02¢

The jurisdictional rate difference in 2012 and 2@ddinly arises as a result of the difference betwke Bulgarian and The Netherlands' tax rates.

Components of Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities

The following table shows the significant compomsentluded in deferred income taxes as at DeceBihe2012 and 2011 :

December 31, 201

December 31, 201

Assets:

Tax benefit of loss carry-forwards and other taedis $ 108,84: $ 96,69:
Programming rights 3,61¢ 8,161
Property, plant and equipment 7,48¢ 2,551
Accrued expenses 4,814 5,48¢
Other 5,82( 11,03¢
Gross deferred tax assets 130,58: 123,93.
Valuation allowance (108,97) (92,739
Net deferred tax assets 21,61: 31,19«
Liabilities:

Broadcast licenses, trademarks and customer neddijos $ (41,437 $ (71,459
Property, plant and equipment (3,619 (8,577
Programming rights (15,43%) (20,37()
Temporary difference due to timing (6,819 (8,43
Total deferred tax liabilities (67,307) (98,83Y)
Net deferred income tax liability $ (45,69) $ (67,64

86




Index

CENTRAL EUROPEAN MEDIA ENTERPRISES LTD.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Tabular amounts in US$ 000’s, except per share da

Deferred tax is recognized on the consolidatednical@heet as follows:

December 31, 201

December 31, 201

Net current deferred tax assets $ 2,20 % 3,89
Net non-current deferred tax assets 5,53¢ 4,23:
7,743 8,12¢

Net current deferred tax liabilities (1,36€) (1,099
Net non-current deferred tax liabilities (52,06%) (74,677)
(53,439 (75,766

Net deferred income tax liability $ (45,69) $ (67,647)

We provided a valuation allowance against potentiérred tax assets of US$ 109.0 million and US$ ®nillion as at December 31, 2012 and 2Qtdspectively, since it h
been determined by management, based on the veighitavailable evidence, that it is more likehah not that the benefits associated with thessassll not be realized.

During 2012 , we had the following movements orugtibn allowances:

Balance at December 31, 2011 $ 92,73¢
Created during the period 25,62
Utilized (9,579)
Foreign exchange 184
Balance at December 31,2012 $ 108,97
As of December 31, 2012 we have operating losy-darwards that will expire in the following perisd
Year: 201z 2014 201¢ 201¢ 201728 Indefinite

Austria $ —  $ —  $ —  $ — $ — % 9,341
Bulgaria 1¢ 65 217 1,44¢ 9,20( —
Croatia 13,26( 11,37( 7,63¢ 3,44¢ 1,42¢ —
Czech Republic 4 — — 25€ 1,894 —
Hungary — — — — — 21¢
Moldova 5E 2 25(C — — —
The Netherlands 5,411 10,74 3,94( 8,47: 255,45! —
Romania 8,04¢ — — 3,14« 118,92¢ —
Slovak Republic — — — — 16,25: —
Slovenia — — — — — 11,46(
United Kingdom — — — — — 2,76¢
United States — — — — 5,131 —
Total $ 26798 $ 2218 $ 1204: $ 16,76¢ $ 40828( $ 23,78t

The losses are subject to examination by the tthoaties and to restriction on their utilizatidn. particular, the losses can only be utilized agiaprofits arising in the legal ent
in which they arose.
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We have provided valuation allowances against mibte above loss carry-forwards. However, valuatiiowances have not been provided against paheolbss carrferwards
in Romania and the Slovak Republic on the basfatafe reversals of existing taxable temporaryadéhces. The tax benefits associated with thedasse United Kingdom al
the United States are only recognized in the fir@statements as they are utilized.

We have not provided income taxes or withholdingesaon US$ 221.1 million (2011: US$ 494.0 millipaf cumulative undistributed earnings of our sdizsies and affiliates .

these earnings are either permanently reinvesttiteicompanies concerned or can be recoverefidaxit is not practicable to estimate the amairttixes that might be paya
on the distribution of these earnings.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amoefriinrecognized tax benefits is as follows:

Balance at December 31, 2009 $ 16,63¢
Increases for tax positions taken during a prioioge (42¢)
Increases for tax positions taken during the ctipeniod 2,87:
Settlements with tax authorities (252)
Other (170)
Balance at December 31, 2010 18,65¢
Increases for tax positions taken during a prisioge 8¢
Increases for tax positions taken during the ctiperiod 4,40z
Settlements with tax authorities —
Other (18
Balance at December 31, 2011 23,13(
Increases for tax positions taken during a prioioge 8,28t
Increases for tax positions taken during the ctipeniod 2,85(
Decreases resulting from the expiry of the stat@itamitations (44)
Settlements with tax authorities (34,107
Other —
Balance at December 31, 2012 $ 112

During 2012, we agreed with the Dutch tax authesitis to the amount of tax losses available t€tmepany's main Netherlands holding company. Asalt,ldJS$ 34.0 milliorof
the provision for unrecognized tax benefits wadiagmgainst the deferred tax asset attributabteeee tax losses.

Our subsidiaries file income tax returns in Thehéetands and various other tax jurisdictions intigdthe United States. As at December 31, 20aRalyzed by major ti
jurisdictions, our subsidiaries are generally noler subject to income tax examinations for yeafsre:

Country Year
Bulgaria 2009
Croatia 2008
Czech Republic 2008
The Netherlands 2009
Romania 2008
Slovak Republic 2007
Slovenia 2006
United Kingdom 2011
United States 2009

We recognize, when applicable, both accrued inteaed penalties related to unrecognized benefithdome tax expense in the accompanying consotidstatements
operations and comprehensive income.

The liability for accrued interest and penaltiesws$ nil and US$ 0.3 million at December 31, 28t@ 2011 , respectively.
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15. INTEREST EXPENSE

Interest expense comprised the following for thargended December 31, 2012 , 2011 and 2010:

For The Years Ending December 31,

201z 2011 201c

Interest on Senior Notes $ 87,85¢ $ 89,747 $ 75,78t
Interest on Convertible Notes 15,36« 18,03¢ 16,37¢
Interest on capital leases and other financinghgements 4,44 4,167 9,04(
107,67( 111,94t 101,20:

Amortization of capitalized debt issuance costs 14,10: 6,22¢ 5,70¢
Amortization of debt issuance discount and premiuoet, 5,99¢ 17,37¢ 21,29¢
Loss on extinguishment of debt 19¢ 25,90« 5,29¢
20,29¢ 49,50¢ 32,30«

Total interest expense $ 127,96t $ 161,45  $ 133,50!

The loss on extinguishment of debt comprised tHiviing for the years ended December 31, 2012 ,1284d 2010. (see Note 5 "Lofigrm Debt and Other Financi
Arrangements"):

For The Years Ending December 31,

201z 2011 201
2013 Convertible Notes $ 3,761 $ 23,51¢ $ 724
2014 Floating Rate Notes (3,56%) — (48E)
2016 Fixed Rate Notes — 2,38¢ 1,50¢
Credit Facilities = — 3,551
Loss on extinguishment $ 196 $ 25904 $ 5,29¢
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16. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

7,500,000 shares have been authorized for issulamespect of equity awards under our Amended agstd®ed Stock Incentive Plan (“the Platpder the Plan, awards are m
to employees at the discretion of the Compens&mmmittee and to directors pursuant to an annuahaatic grant under the Plan or at the discretfaih@ Board of Directors.

The charge for stock-based compensation in ouratidiated statements of operations was as follows:

For The Years Ending December 31,

201z 2011 201(C
Stock-based compensation charged $ 4,24¢  $ 589 $ 6,831

Stock Options

Grants of options allow the holders to purchaseeshaf Class A common stock at an exercise pritégtwis generally the market price prevailing & thate of the grant, wi
vesting between one and four years after the aveasdgranted. A summary of option activity for thelve months ended December 31, 2012 is preséeted:

Weighted Average

Weighted Average Remaining

Exercise Price pe Contractual Term  Aggregate Intrinsic

Shares Share (years) Value

Outstanding at January 1, 2012 2,901,68 $ 32.8¢ 449 $ 71
Exercised (16,000 2.0€
Forfeited (636,06%) 35.61
Expired (30,000 $ 90.5¢

Outstanding at December 31, 2012 2,219,620 $ 31.5] 4.06 $ =

Vested or expected to vest 2,145,54. 31.8C 3.99 —

Exercisable at December 31, 2012 1,631,500 $ 34.2¢ 343 $ —

When options are vested, holders may exercise #tieany time up to the maximum contractual lifele tnstrument which is specified in the option agnent. At December &
2012, the maximum life of options that had beeneadsunder the Plan was ten yeadpon providing the appropriate written notificatj holders pay the exercise price and res
shares. Shares delivered under the Plan are nesugd shares. We received US$ 0.03 million , Ug$rlilion and US$ 0.6 millionn cash from the awards that were exercis
2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, which had amait value of US$ 0.1 million , US$ 0.3 milliomé US$ 0.2 million, respectively. The income tax benefits realizeztebi
was US$ nil in 2012, 2011 and 2010.

The fair value of stock options is estimated ongtent date using the Black-Scholes option-prieimaglel and recognized ratably over the requisiteiseperiod.

The aggregate intrinsic value (the difference betwthe stock price on the last day of trading effturth quarter of 2012 and the exercise pricesiptiad by the number of in-
the-money options) represents the total intrinsilue that would have been received by the optiddene had they exercised all in-the-money optichataDecember 31, 2012
This amount changes based on the fair value otoomon stock. As at December 31, 2012 , there w&$ 419 millionof total unrecognized compensation expense reta
options.

At the annual general meeting of CME Ltd. on JuBe 2012, the shareholders approved an employeeroptichange program whereby up to 1.7 millaptions may b
exchanged for up to 0.8 millidRSUs. While we have yet to set the terms of ani sxchange and can not be assured of the numbetiofs likely to be tendered, if we comp
the exchange program we expect the number of olisig options to decrease significantly.

There were no options granted during during 2012 Weighted average assumptions used in the Blele&l&s model for grants made in the years endirgg®eer 31, 201anc
2010 were as follows:

For The Years Ending December 31,

2011 201(C
Risk -free interest rate 1.67% 2.02%
Expected term (years) 4.8z 4.9C
Expected volatility 57.9(% 57.2¢%
Dividend yield 0% 0%
Weighted-average fair value $ 10.9¢ % 12.6¢
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The following table summarizes information aboot&toption activity during 2012 , 2011 , and 2010 :

2012 2011 2010

Weighted Average Weighted Average Weighted Average
Exercise Price Exercise Price Exercise Price
Shares (US$/share Shares (US$/share Shares (US$/share

Outstanding at beginning of
year 2,901,68: 32.86 2,539,06. $ 35.4¢ 2,000,750 $ 39.5¢
Awards granted — — 555,00( 22.3¢ 720,00( 25.5¢
Awards exercised (16,000) 2.06 (23,62Y) 10.2: (32,31 18.31
Awards forfeited (636,062 35.61 (168,75() 40.17 (149,37 47.2¢
Awards expired (30,000) 90.54 — = — _
Outstanding at end of year 2,219,62¢ 31.51 2,901,68 $ 32.8¢ 2,539,06. $ 35.4¢

The following table summarizes information abowot&toptions outstanding at December 31, 2012 :

Options outstanding

Average remaining

contractual life  Aggregate intrinsic Weighted averag:
Range of exercise prices Share (years) value (US$  exercise price (USY
$0.01 - 20.00 322,00( 187 $ — % 16.71
$20.01 - 40.00 1,562,87: 4.75 — 23.8¢
$40.01 - 60.00 123,25( 2.97 — 53.0¢
$60.01 - 80.00 72,00( 3.91 — 71.2(
$ 80.01 - 100.00 — 0 — —
$100.01 - 120.00 139,50( 2.39 — 111.7°
Total 2,219,62! 406 $ — 3 31.51

The following table summarizes information abowotktoptions exercisable at December 31, 2012 :

Options exercisable

Average remaining

contractual life  Aggregate intrinsic Weighted averag
Range of exercise prices Share: (years) value (US$  exercise price (US{
$0.01 - 20.00 322,00 187 $ — 3 16.7%
$20.01 - 40.00 974,75C 412 — 23.8¢
$40.01 - 60.00 123,25C 2.97 — 53.0¢
$60.01 - 80.00 72,000 3.91 — 71.2(
$80.01 - 100.00 — 0 — —
$100.01 - 120.00 139,50C 2.39 — 111.77
Total 1,631,50( 343 $ — 3 34.2¢

Restricted Stock Uni

Pursuant to the Plan, we may grant RSUs to our@rapk and noemployee directors. Each RSU represents a rigigdeive one share of Class A common stock of thepzm
for each RSU that vests in accordance with thengsthedule, generally between one to fgears from the date of grant. Upon vesting, shaf€ME Class A common stock
issued from authorized but unissued shares. HolfeRSU awards are not entitled to receive casideind equivalents. The grant date fair value of R®Jcalculated as t
closing price of our class A common shares on #te df grant.
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The following table summarizes information aboutested RSUs as at December 31, 2012 :

Weighted-

Number of Average

Shares/Unit: Grant Date

Fair Value

Unvested at December 31, 2011 — —
Granted 600,00( 5.61
Vested _ _
Forfeited (16,000 5.5¢
Unvested at December 31, 2012 584,00( 5.61

As at December 31, 2012 , the intrinsic value ofasted RSUs was US$ 3.6 million . Total unrecoghizempensation cost related to unvested RSUsBsamber 31, 201®as
US$ 2.3 million and is expected to be recognizeer aweighted-average period of 1.7 years .

17. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The components of basic and diluted earnings mesdre as follows:

For The Years Ending December 31,

201z 2011 201(C
Net loss from continuing operations attributable toCME Ltd. $ (535,68) $ 174,61) $ (113,52))
Net income from discontinued operations attribieabl CME Ltd. — — 213,69
Net (loss) / income attributable to CME Ltd. $ (535,68) $ (174,61) $ 100,17!
Weighted average outstanding shares of common stoekasic® 76,91¢ 64,38¢ 64,02¢
Dilutive effect of employee stock options and RSUs — — —
Weighted average outstanding shares of common stoekliluted 76,91¢ 64,38¢ 64,02¢
Net loss per share:
Basic $ 6.9 $ 270 $ 1.57
Diluted $ (6.9 $ 27) $ 1.57

(1) For the purpose of computing basic earningsspere, the 11,211,44%ares of Class A common stock underlying the PedfeShare are included in the weighted ave
outstanding shares of common stodiasic, primarily because the holder of the Prete@hare is entitled to receive any dividends payaihen dividends are declared by
Board of Directors with respect to any shares efabmmon stock.

At December 31, 2012 , 3,087,087 ( December 311 2,763,481 stock options and warrants were antidilutivertoome from continuing operations and excluded ftbe

calculation of earnings per share. These may beablutve in the future. Shares of Class A commtock potentially issuable under our Convertible ééomay also becor
dilutive in the future, although they were antitile to income at December 31, 2012 .
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18. SEGMENT DATA

During the year ended December 31, 2012, we managedusiness on a divisional basis, with threportable segments: Broadcast, Media Pro Entemtzih and Ne
Media. These operating segments reflect how CME 4 bperations were managed by segment managersygerating performance within the Company was evatlby senic
management and the structure of our internal filsmeporting. Supplemental geographic informat@mn the performance of our Broadcast segment isiged due to th
significance of our broadcast operations to CME Mdnagement believes this information is usefulgers of the financial statements.

Our Broadcast segment generates revenues prinfesity the sale of advertising and sponsorship andNew Media segment generates revenues from disphaly vide:
advertising, paid premium content and subscriptihg Media Pro Entertainment segment generatesums through the sale of production servicesdegandent filmmaker:
and through the sale of broadcast and distributghts to third parties. Media Pro Entertainmesbalevelops, produces and distributes televisianfim content which is shov
on our television channels. In addition, the disttion activities of Media Pro Entertainment geter@venues from the distribution of rights to fitmntent to third party clien
from the exhibition of films in our theaters andrfr the sale of DVD and Blu-ray discs to wholesaé eetail clients.

We evaluate the performance of our segments basétkbRevenues and OIBDA. OIBDA, which includesgreon rights amortization costs, is determined asaimg income
(loss) before depreciation, amortization of intéfgiassets and impairments of assets. Items thatadrallocated to our segments for purposes dfiatiag their performance a
therefore are not included in their OIBDA, inclusteck-based compensation and certain other items.

Our key performance measure of the efficiency afsmgments is OIBDA margin. OIBDA margin is theoaif OIBDA to net revenues.

We believe OIBDA is useful to investors becausgritvides a more meaningful representation of oufop@ance as it excludes certain items that eitteenot impact our ca
flows or the operating results of our operationd8[DA is also used as a component in determiningagament bonuses. Intersegment revenues and frafiésbeen eliminated
consolidation.

OIBDA may not be comparable to similar measuresntep by other companies.

Below are tables showing our net revenues, OIBDd tatal assets by segment for the years ended Dere3t, 2012 , 2011 and 20fdy consolidated statements of operat
and comprehensive income data and as at Decempb2084 and 2011 for consolidated balance sheet data

For The Years Ending December 31,

Net revenues 201z 2011 201(
Broadcast:

Bulgaria $ 83,027 $ 93,73: $ 61,75
Croatia 54,61¢ 61,50: 51,35(
Czech Republic 241,03 285,86! 265,01t
Romania 134,02¢ 159,38 157,41t
Slovak Republic 88,85! 101,97: 90,39:
Slovenia 63,79 72,51¢ 64,79¢
Total Broadcast 665,35! 774,97 690,72
Media Pro Entertainment 205,06 187,22. 140,79
New Media 18,69( 15,76¢ 11,19¢
Intersegment revenués (117,029 (113,189 (105,58)
Total net revenues $ 772,08 $ 864,78: $ 737,13

(1) Reflects revenues earned by the Media Pro tamenent segment through sales to the Broadcastesgg All other revenues are third party revenues.
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OIBDA

Broadcast:

Bulgaria

Croatia

Czech Republic
Romania

Slovak Republic
Slovenia

Divisional operating costs
Total Broadcast

Media Pro Entertainment
New Media

Central

Elimination

Total OIBDA

Reconciliation to consolidated statements of operains and comprehensive income:

Total OIBDA

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Amortization of intangible assets

Impairment charge
Operating (loss) / income
Interest expense, net

Foreign currency exchange gain / (loss), net

Change in fair value of derivatives

Other income

Credit / (provision) for income taxes

Net loss from continuing operations

For The Years Ending December 31,

201z 2011 201(
13,857 $ 12,897 $ (2,079)
5,89: 4,65¢ 2,36¢
101,67 140,381 122,81
10,15¢ 25,93¢ 25,99
6,53 9,96¢ (1,009)
14,21 19,60: 18,42
(4,60) (2,36)) (2,129
147,72 211,09( 164,41!
15,91 3,99¢ (3,009)
(4,225 (2,55¢) (6,54%)
(27,53) (41,85:) (44,067)
(6,469 (3,675 (3,489
12542; $ 167,00; 107,32

For The Years Ending December 31,

201z 2011 201(
12542 $ 167,00. $ 107,32
(44,49 (56,58:) (58,06:)
(46,62) (34,88:) (25,98)

(522,49 (68,74 (397)

(488,19) 6,79: 22,87

(127,189 (158,709 (131,26)

4,92 (31,129 (5,030
49,02' 7,281 1,16¢
901 1 357
14,13¢ (3,850 (5,025)
(546,39) $ (179,60) $ (116,929
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Total assets”:

Broadcast

New Media

Media Pro Entertainment
Total Operating Segments
Corporate

Elimination

Total

(1) Segment assets exclude any intercompany inesstm

Capital Expenditures:

Broadcast

New Media

Media Pro Entertainment
Total Operating Segments

Corporate

Total

Long-lived assets and net revenues in differenggahical areas are as follows:

Long-lived assets":

Bulgaria
Croatia

Czech Republic
Romania
Slovak Republic
Slovenia

Corporate

Total long-lived assets

(1) Reflects property, plant and equipment.
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December 31, 201

December 31, 201

1,896,89: $ 2,362,14.
8,071 11,20¢
225,85( 221,60:
2,130,81! 2,594,95
103,98: 100,11!
(60,087 (13,29¢)
2,174,71! $ 2,681,76'

For The Years Ending December 31,
201z 2011 201(C
22,59¢ 23,66 32,35!
2,794 1,43: 2,40¢
4,31¢ 6,50( 11,20(
29,71: 31,59¢ 45,95’
3,02( 2,59¢ 3C
32,73: 34,19: 45,98"
December 31, 201 December 31, 201
13,79¢ $ 13,83(
7,267 7,68¢
51,67 54,75¢
84,50¢ 90,27(
21,31t 25,60¢
23,14¢ 23,11t
201,70: 215,26t
5,00¢ 2,102
206,70t $ 217,36




Index

CENTRAL EUROPEAN MEDIA ENTERPRISES LTD.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Tabular amounts in US$ 000’s, except per share da

Net revenues: For The Years Ending December 31,
201z 2011 201(C
Bulgaria 85,32¢ 95,66: 62,24¢
Croatia 59,29¢ 63,67 52,97(
Czech Republic 279,03( 313,94 269,77
Romania 195,60° 216,32: 195,46:
Slovak Republic 96,17+ 105,09: 95,24
Slovenia 68,89t 76,51% 67,67
784,33: 871,21( 743,36¢
Eliminations (12,24¢) (6,42¢) (6,23%)
Total net revenues 772,08t 864,78: 737,13:

We do not rely on any single major customer or grotimajor customers.

From January 1, 2013, the Broadcast, Media Prortaimenent and New Media operating segments have begrganized to streamline central resources amatee six ne'
operating segments: Bulgaria, Croatia, the CzeguBlee, Romania, the Slovak Republic and SloveBigerating our businesses through these geograpiiments will enable
to better execute our strategy of distributing comtent on multiple distribution platforms and d®s in a number of windows in each market. As altiefsom January 1, 2013\
will change our segment reporting to reflect theyilee businesses are now managed and presentedultsrreviewed by the chief operating decision enakhen allocatin
resources and assessing performance.
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19. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Commitments

a) Programming Rights Agreements and Other Comenitsn

At December 31, 2012 , we had total commitmentd®$ 356.8 million ( December 31, 2011 : US$ 361ifian ) in respect of our broadcast and distribution apens for futur

programming, including contracts signed with liceneeriods starting after the balance sheet dateseTlre presented with future minimum operatingelggayments for non-
cancellable operating leases with remaining temexcess of one year (net of amounts to be rectidogihird parties) and other commitments as foliow

Programming purchase Digital transmission

obligations obligations Operating lease Capital expenditures
2013 $ 151,94t $ 30,01: $ 6,287 $ 7,38¢
2014 101,30: 17,41« 4,331 1,38¢
2015 57,42: 17,36¢ 2,382 92
2016 33,76¢ 11,42( 1,95¢ —
2017 10,58: 11,42( 1,95¢ —
2018 and thereafter 1,80¢ 43,57 11,13¢ —
Total $ 356,82 $ 131,20t $ 28,04: $ 8,86:

For the years ended December 31, 2012 , 2011 abd, 2¢e incurred aggregate rent expense on allitfasilof US$ 16.4 million , US$ 11.7 million and $31.7 millior
respectively.

b) Factoring of Trade Receivables

CET 21 has a CZK 830 million (approximately US$&4illion ) factoring framework agreement with FG$hder this facility up to CZK 830 million (approrately US$43.€
million ) may be factored on a recourse or non-uese basis. As at December 31, 2012 , there weke I32.4 million (approximately US$ 6.9 million )Oecember 31, 2011
CZK 545.8 million , approximately US$ 28.6 millidmased on December 31, 2012 rates), of receivablgsd to the factoring framework agreement (see blote 5, “LongFerm
Debt and Other Financing Arrangements” and Notd&counts Receivable”).

c) Call option

Top Tone Holdings has exercised its right to aegagditional equity in CME Bulgaria, however thesithg of this transaction has not yet occurred bseghe purchaser financ
is still pending. Upon consummation of the equiginsfer, we will own 90.0% of our Bulgaria Broadoagerations.

Contingencies
a) Litigation

While we are, from time to time, a party to litigat, arbitration or regulatory proceedings arisimghe normal course of our business operationsaneeot presently a party to
such litigation, arbitration or regulatory procesgliwhich could reasonably be expected to have arfaheffect on our business or consolidated fif@rstatements, includit
proceedings described here and in (b) below.

Video International Termination

On March 18, 2009, Video International Company @rddGSC (“VI”), a Russian legal entity, filed aiohin the London Court of International Arbitrati¢fiLCIA”) against ot
wholly-owned subsidiary CME BV, which was, at the time tt@m was filed, the principal holding company afr former Ukrainian operations. The claim relateshe
termination of an agreement between VI and CME Bied November 30, 2006 (the “parent agreement”)ctwtvas one of fourelated contracts by which VI subsidiar
including LLC Video International-Prioritet (“Pribet”), supplied advertising and marketing servitesStudio 1+1 LLC (“Studio 1+1”pand certain affiliates. Following t
termination of these agreements on March 24, 2868jio 1+1 was required to pay a termination pgné&h June 1, 2009, Studio 1+1 paid UAH 13.5 mill{@pproximately US
1.7 million ) to Prioritet and set off UAH 7.4 mdh (approximately US$ 0.9 millioj against amounts owing to Studio 1+1 under theedibding and marketing servic
agreements. In its LCIA claim, VI sought paymenaafeparate indemnity from CME BV under the paagmeement of US$ 58.5 millianOn September 30, 2010, a partial av
was issued in the arbitration proceedings, purstamthich VI's claim for relief in the amount of $%58.5 millionwas dismissed. The partial award does permit \Wring &
subsequent claim against CME BV as parent guaranttite event that VI establishes that it is esditto certain additional compensation under thesdiding and marketir
services agreements with Studio 1+1 and that soeipensation is not satisfied by Studio 1+1. On d@ly2011, Prioritet filed claims against StudidL.in the Commercial Cot
of Kiev relating to alleged violations of the adi®ng services agreement and marketing service=eagent and sought relief of approximately UAH POtillion (approximatel
US$ 25.0 million). On September 23, 2011, the Commercial Courtief idismissed Prioritet's claims. On November 7,122@he Commercial Court of Appeal of Kiev dismid
an appeal by Prioritet of the lower court's decision December 13, 2011, the Superior CommerciattiGif Ukraine dismissed an appeal of Prioritetofieing the decision of tt
appellate court. On June 5, 2012, the Superior Centiad Court of Ukraine denied Prioritet's requesappeal to the Supreme Court of Ukraine. On X012, Prioritet filed
claim against Studio 1+1 in the Commercial CourKadv that alleges violations of one of the adwnt) and marketing services agreements and sekéfsaeapproximatel
UAH 42.3 million (approximately US$ 5.3 millioh On September 7, 2012, the Commercial Court @vKdismissed Prioritet's claims. Prioritet appedleid decision o
September 17, 2012. On October 31, 2012, the Coamh&@ourt of Kiev dismissed Prioritet's appealoRtet has filed a further appeal. In addition, 8eptember 28, 2012
filed a further claim in the
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LCIA against CME BV, alleging CME BV owes approxitely US$ 4.0 millionunder the partial award as an indemnity paymentl&iims Prioritet is owed from Studio 1+1
connection with the termination of the advertisangl marketing services agreements between Studi@id Prioritet. We do not believe that it is likéhat we will be required
make any further payment.

b) Lehman Brothers Bankruptcy Claim

On March 4, 2008, we purchased, for cash consideraf US$ 22.2 million , capped call options frerehman OTC over 1,583,33hares of our Class A common stock w
entitled us to receive, at our election followingamversion under the 2013 Convertible Notes, casthares of Class A common stock with a value leguhe difference betwe
the trading price of our shares at the time théaps exercised and US$ 105.00 , up to a maxinradirig price of US$ 151.20 .

On September 15, 2008, Lehman Holdings, the guaraftthe obligations of Lehman OTC under the cappall agreement, filed for protection under Chagtk of the Unite
States Bankruptcy Code. The bankruptcy filing ofitoen Holdings, as guarantor, was an event of dedadl gave us the right to terminate the cappddigatement with Lehmi
OTC and claim for losses. We exercised this righBeptember 16, 2008 and claimed an amount of @Brillion , which bears interest at a rate eqoalME’s estimate of i
cost of funding plus 1.0% per annum.

On October 3, 2008, Lehman OTC also filed for prtoive under Chapter 11. We filed claims in the bapkcy proceedings of both Lehman Holdings and Lam@TC. Our clair
was a general unsecured claim and ranked togeftiesimilar claims.

On March 3, 2009 we assigned our claim in the haptky proceedings of Lehman Holdings and Lehman @ @n unrelated third party for cash consideratdétyS$ 3.4
million , or 17.0%of the claim value. Under the terms of the agregmercertain circumstances, including if our claBnsubsequently disallowed or adjusted by the heptky
court, the counterparty would be able to recoupctireesponding portion of the purchase price fram@n March 14, 2011, Lehman Brothers filed an dlga to our bankruptc
claim, contending that our claim is worth US$ 1#hiflion . On April 12, 2011, a response was fileithathe bankruptcy court reasserting our claim &$9.9 million .

On December 21, 2012, the bankruptcy court alloted claim in the amount of US$ 15.0 million . OnbReary 15, 2013, we paid approximately US$ 0.9ianillto the
counterparty to settle the disallowed portion & ¢higinal claim plus interest.

¢) Restrictions on dividends from Consolidated ®litnses and Unconsolidated Affiliates

Corporate law in the Central and Eastern Europeantdes in which we have operations stipulatesegaly that dividends may be declared by shares)drit of yearly profit:
subject to the maintenance of registered capitdlraquired reserves after the recovery of accumdliisses. The reserve requirement restrictionrgiyerovides that befo
dividends may be distributed, a portion of annualprofits (typically 5.09%) be allocated to a reserve, which reserve is ahppe proportion of the registered capital of empan
(ranging from 5.0% to 25.0% The restricted net assets of our consolidatédidiaries and equity in earnings of investmentanted for under the equity method togethe
less than 25.0% of consolidated net assets.
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20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Overview
There is a limited local market for many speciddtgadcasting and production services in the coemiri which we operate; many of these serviceprmaded by parties knov

to be connected to our local shareholders, mendfeyar management and board of directors or ouitggqwestees. Transactions involving related ipartannot be presumec
be carried out on an arm’s-length basis, as theisitg conditions of competitive, free-market degti may not exist. We continue to review all @fsth arrangements.

Related Party Groups

We consider our related parties to be those shitefsowho have direct control and/or influence aftiter parties that can significantly influence ngeraent as well as c

officers and directors; a “connectepiirty is one in relation to whom we are aware eféRistence of a family or business connectionghaaeholder, director or officer. We h

identified transactions with individuals or entitiessociated with the following individuals or &ga8 as material related party transactions: AdBarbu, our President and ClI

Executive Officer, a member of our Board of Direstand beneficial owner of approximately 3.2% of outstanding shares of Class A common stock &eeémber 31, 2012
and Time Warner, who is represented on our BoaRirefctors and holds a 49.9% economic interest\tEQ td. as at December 31, 2012 .

Related Party Transactions

Adrian Sarbu

For The Years Ending December 31,

201z 2011 201(
Purchases of services $ 3,71z $ 481: $ 5,17¢
Sales 1,25¢ 1,197 852

As at December 31,

201z 2011
Accounts payable $ 80¢ $ 51z
1,77C 76&

Accounts receivable

In addition, on January 31, 2011, we completedattwpuisition of 100.0% of Pro Digital, a company troted by Adrian Sarbu, on a detvee basis for cash consideration of E
0.7 million (approximately US$ 0.9 million at thatd of acquisition). Also, on May 24, 2010, we aregithe remaining approximately 5.08nership interest in each of Pro
MPI and MVI from Adrian Sarbu, thereby increasing @wnership interests in each company to 100.@énsideration for the noncontrolling interest acgdiwas US$4.7
million , consisting of a cash payment of approxiehaUS$ 6.2 million and the issuance of 800,008reb of our Class A common stock (with a fair vadt&S$ 18.5 milliorai
the date of acquisition) (see Note 3, “Acquisiti@msl Dispositions”).

Time Warner

For The Years Ending December 31,
201z 2011 201¢(
Purchases of programming $ 42,23(  $ 57,19¢ $ 33,56¢
Sales 224 19¢ 4C

As at December 31,

201z 2011
Programming liabilities $ 52,86 $ 78,01¢
11¢ 15¢

Accounts receivable

See Note 5, "Long-Term Debt and Other FinancingAgements” and Note 12, "Financial InstrumentsFaidValue Measurements" for discussion of trarisastwith Time
Warner to reduce our indebtedness. The TW Loans vegraid on July 3, 2012.
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21. INDENTURE COVENANTS

Under the terms of the indentures governing thes Fted Rate Notes and the 2017 Fixed Rate Ndtes'2016 Indenture” and the “2017 Indentunespectively), we are large
restricted from raising debt at the corporate l@rahaking certain payments or investments if #terof Consolidated EBITDA to Consolidated Interfegpense (as defined in-
2016 Indenture and the 2017 Indenture) (the “CayeRatio”) is less than 2.0 times. For this purpdise calculation includes CME Ltd. and its sulmsiidis that areRestricte!
Subsidiaries.’In addition, under the 2017 Indenture, CET 21 #rieted from incurring indebtedness if the raticConsolidated Indebtedness to Consolidated EBITIDEET 21
(both as defined in the 2017 Indenture) and itdridésd Subsidiaries would exceed 2.25 times.

Subsidiaries may be designated as “UnrestrictedsiBialies” and excluded from the calculation of €@age Ratio by our Board of Directors. As at Deoen#id, 2012, oul
Unrestricted Subsidiaries consisted of certain isidorges that formerly comprised the Pro.BG businesBulgaria, CME Development Financing B.V. , #rgity that funded tho
operations, and CME Austria GmbH. The integratibthe operations of the Pro.BG business with th¥ lgfoup was completed in May 2011, and as a rethdtUnrestricte
Subsidiaries do not require additional financigbmart. As at December 31, 2012 , there was US$nillion of cash remaining in the Unrestricted Subsidianesich wa:
transferred to a Restricted Subsidiary in Janua®g2

As at, and for the year ended December 31, 20&2threstricted Subsidiaries did not constitute Sicant Subsidiaries (as this term is defined ia #016 Indenture) of CME Lt
22. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA

Selected quarterly financial data for the yearsedridecember 31, 2012 and 2011 is as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(US$ 000's, except per share data)
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehsive Income Data:

Net revenues 167,43. $ 211,22: 140,09: 253,33t
Cost of revenues 150,40t 160,50° 141,33: 189,26°
Operating (loss) / income (20,307) 23,65( (18,407 (483,13
Net (loss) / income (13,819 3,141 (32,63)) (503,08
Net (loss) / income attributable to CME Ltd. (13,39) $ 3,95¢ (32,049 (494,19))
Net (loss) / income per share:

Basic EPS (021 $ 0.0€ (0.36) (5.5%)
Effect of dilutive securities = = = =
Diluted EPS (021 $ 0.0€ (0.3¢) (5.59

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

First Quarter

Second Quarter

Third Quarter

Fourth Quarter

(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(US$ 000's, except per share data)

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehsive Income Data:

Net revenues 172,77. $ 249,65¢ 165,47 276,88.
Cost of revenues 150,73( 179,56t 150,56( 188,79
Operating (loss) / income (7,66%) 39,47: (12,910 (12,106
Net (loss) / income (20,99Y) 812 (82,19¢) (77,22
Net (loss) / income attributable to CME Ltd. (21119) $ 96¢ (82,07 (72,39)
Net (loss) / income per share:

Basic EPS 0379 % 0.0z (1.279) (1.17)
Effect of dilutive securities - — = -
Diluted EPS (039 $ 0.0z (1.27) (1.19
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTA NTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

Item 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We have established disclosure controls and proesdiesigned to ensure that information requiredetalisclosed in our Annual Report on FormKL@s recorded, processt
summarized and reported within the specified tiraggals and is designed to ensure that informatguired to be disclosed is accumulated and commateddo manageme

including the President and Chief Executive Offiaed the Chief Financial Officer to allow timelyaigons regarding required disclosure.

Our President and Chief Executive Officer and obie€Financial Officer evaluated the effectivene$she design and operation of our disclosure ad&tand procedures as
December 31, 2012 and concluded that our disclasurols and procedures were effective as ofdhtg.

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingraaithtaining adequate internal control over finahéporting. We have performed an assessment ofiés@n and operati
effectiveness of our internal control over finahceporting as of December 31, 2012. This assesswesperformed under the direction and superviefasur President and Ch
Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officand utilized the framework established in “Inter@aintrol - Integrated Framework&sued by the Committee of Sponso

Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

Based on that evaluation, we concluded that aseeEBber 31, 2012, our internal control over finah@porting was effective. Our independent regéstepublic accounting firr
Deloitte LLP, has audited our financial statememtd issued a report on the effectiveness of inteorarol over financial reporting, which is incled herein.

Changes in Internal Controls

There were no changes in our internal controls dmancial reporting during the three month per@died December 31, 2012 that have materially &fflear are reasonal
likely to materially affect, our internal controber financial reporting.

February 27, 2013
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of GéEuropean Media Enterprises Ltd.

We have audited the internal control over financigdorting of Central European Media Enterprised land subsidiaries (the "Company") as of Decen3fier2012, based !
criteria established imternal Control — Integrated Frameworksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizataiitee Treadway Commission. The Company's managt
is responsible for maintaining effective internahtrol over financial reporting and for its assesstrof the effectiveness of internal control oveaficial reporting, included in t
accompanying ManagemesitReport on Internal Control Over Financial RepaytiOur responsibility is to express an opiniontloe Company's internal control over finan
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statedof the Public Company Accounting Oversightr8d&nited States). Those standards require thgilareand perform tt
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about wheffestive internal control over financial reportimgas maintained in all material respects. Our aimiituded obtaining &
understanding of internal control over financigdoging, assessing the risk that a material weakegists, testing and evaluating the design andatipg effectiveness of interr
control based on the assessed risk, and perforsoiciy other procedures as we considered necesstéay dircumstances. We believe that our audit pleia reasonable basis
our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial repegtis a process designed by, or under the supenvi, the company's principal executive and ppatiinancial officers, ¢
persons performing similar functions, and effedigdhe company's board of directors, managemedtptirer personnel to provide reasonable assurageeding the reliability «
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantie generally accepted accounting principles. A canys internal control ov
financial reporting includes those policies andcedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance ofrdscthat, in reasonable detail, accurately andyfadflect the transactions a
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) ideveasonable assurance that transactions aneleecas necessary to permit preparation of finhstééements in accordar
with generally accepted accounting principles, #mat receipts and expenditures of the company amegbmade only in accordance with authorizationsnahagement al
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabburance regarding prevention or timely deteatfainauthorized acquisition, use, or dispositibthe company's assets 1
could have a material effect on the financial steets.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal tcohover financial reporting, including the posBip of collusion or improper management overridé controls, materii
misstatements due to error or fraud may not beemterd or detected on a timely basis. Also, prajestiof any evaluation of the effectiveness of thiernal control over financi
reporting to future periods are subject to the tigk the controls may become inadequate becauskeaofyes in conditions, or that the degree of campé with the policies
procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all materespects, effective internal control over fioil reporting as of December 31, 2012, basecherctiteria established
Internal Control— Integrated Frameworlssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidiee Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stdadaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@united States), the consolidated financial stetets and financi
statement schedule as of and for the year endedniler 31, 2012 of the Company and our report dagssiuary 27, 2013 expressed an unqualified opioiothose financii
statements and financial statement schedule.

DELOITTE LLP

London, United Kingdom

February 27, 2013

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None
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PART Il

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORAT E GOVERNANCE

The information required by Item 10 is incorporakegtein by reference to the sections entitled “fdecof Directors,” “Executive Officers,”Corporate Governance and Boar
Director Matters” and “Section 16(a) Beneficial Garship Reporting Compliance” in our Proxy Statenfenthe 2013 Annual General Meeting of Sharehalder

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by Item 11 is incorporategtein by reference to the sections entitled “Cemsation Discussion and Analysis”, “Summary Compgos Table;
“Compensation Committee Report” and “Compensatiam@ittee Interlocks and Insider Participatiom’ our Proxy Statement for the 2013 Annual Gendakting o
Shareholders.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTER S

The information required by Item 12 relating to #eeurity ownership of certain beneficial ownersl amnagement is incorporated herein by referendhesection entitle
“Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Ownersldianagement” in our Proxy Statement for the 20b8u&al General Meeting of Shareholders.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table provides information as of Deter 31, 2012bout common stock that may be issued upon theisgasf options, warrants and rights under allwof existing
equity compensation plans.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

@ (b) ©

Number of securities remaining

Number of Securities to be issued upon  Weighted average exercise price of available for future issuance under
exercise of outstanding options, outstanding options, warrants and equity compensation plans (excluding
Plan Category warrants and rights rights securities reflected in column (a))
Equity compensation plans approved by
security holders 2,219,625 1) 31.51 2,128,044

Equity compensation plans not approved by
security holders — —

Total 2,219,625 3151 2,128,044
(1) This number consists of options outstandinQetember 31, 2012 under CME’s Amended and Resgitek Incentive Plan.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by Item 13 is incorporatesiein by reference to the sections entitled ‘@erRelationships and Related Party Transactiond™&orporate Governan
and Board of Director Matters” in our Proxy Stateri®r the 2013 Annual General Meeting of Sharebdd

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by Item 14 is incorporakegtein by reference to the section entitled “S&lacf Auditors”in our Proxy Statement for the 2013 Annual Genktadting
of Shareholders.

PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a)(1) The following financial statements of Cehfaropean Media Enterprises Ltd. are includedart R, Item 8 of this Report:

. Report of Independent Registered Public Accourftimg;
U Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,&@12011,
. Consolidated Statements of Operations and Compseteeimcome for the years ended December 31, 20021 and 2019
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. Consolidated Statements of Equity for the yeargdrecember 31, 2012 , 2011 and 2010
3 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yaated December 31, 2012 , 2011 and 2Gi@
. Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem:e

(a)(2) Financial Statement Schedule (included ge#1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K).

(a)(3) The following exhibits are included in théport:

EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit Number

Description

3.01*

3.02*

3.03*

3.04*

3.05

3.06*

4.01*

4.02*

4.03*

Memorandum of Association (incorporated by refeestacExhibit 3.01 to the Company's Registratiorte3teent No. 3380344 on Form S-1 filed June 17,
1994).

Memorandum of Increase of Share Capital (incorgaratl reference Exhibit 3.03 to Amendment No. theoCompany's Registration Statement No. 33-8034-
on Form S-1, filed August 19, 1994).

Memorandum of Reduction of Share Capital (incorfemidy reference to Exhibit 3.04 to Amendment Nto the Company's Registration Statement No. 33-
80344 on Form S-1, filed September 14, 1994).

Certificate of Deposit of Memorandum of Increasé&hbéare Capital executed by the Registrar of Coneganm May 20, 1997 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 to the Company's Quaterly Report omia0-Q for the quarterly period ended Septembef897).

Certificate of Deposit of Memorandum of Increasé&hbéare Capital executed by the Registrar of Conggaom July 11, 2012.

Bye-Laws of Central European Media Enterprises, las.amended and restated on June 13, 2012 (imateddy reference to Exhibit 3.01 to the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterlyigeended June 30, 2012).

Specimen Class A Common Stock Certificate (incaafsat by reference to Exhibit 4.01 to Amendment Nto the Company's Registration Statement No. 32
80344 on Form S-1, filed August 19, 1994).

Indenture among Central European Media Enterptits Central European Enterprises N.V., CME Medgderprises B.V and The Bank of New York, di
March 10, 2008 (incorporated by reference to ExHit#t to the Company’s Quarterly Report on FornQLfbr the quarterly period ended March 31, 2008).

Indenture among Central European Media Enterplisés as Issuer, Central European Enterprises Niid @ME Media Enterprises B.V. as Subsidi
Guarantors, The Bank of New York, acting throughLibndon Branch, as Trustee, The Bank of New Yadting through its London Branch, as Princ
Paying Agent and Transfer Agent, The Law Debeniuust Corporation p.l.c as Security Trustee and Baek of New York (Luxembourg) S.A. as Regist
Luxembourg Transfer Agent and Luxembourg Payingmgeated September 17, 2009 (incorporated byeréerto Exhibit 4.1 to the Company's Quart
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period enfiegtember 30, 2009).
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Exhibit Number

Description

4.04*

4.05*

4.06*

4.07*

4.08*

4.09*

4.10*

4.11*

10.01*+

10.02*

10.03*

10.04*

10.05*

10.06*

10.07*

10.08*

Warrant to Purchase Common Stock issued to Medi@PRf., dated December 9, 2009 (incorporated bgresfce to Exhibit 4.07 to the Company's Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended Dduen31, 2009).

Warrant to Purchase Common Stock issued to Mediddnagement S.A., dated December 9, 2009 (incatpoiby reference to Exhibit 4.08 to the
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fisedr ended December 31, 2009).

Registration Rights Agreement between the CompadyTéame Warner Holdings B.V., dated May 18, 200&¢rporated by reference to Exhibit 4.11 to the
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fisedr ended December 31, 2009).

Indenture among CET 21 spol. sro. as Issuer, Adbtirapean Media Enterprises Ltd., Central Europdadia Enterprises N.V., CME Media Enterprises
B.V., CME Slovak Holdings B.V., CME Investments BAhd MARKIZA-SLOVAKIA, spol. s r.0. as Guarantoitibank, N.A., London Branch, as Trustee,
Citibank, N.A., London Branch, as Paying Agent dndnsfer Agent and Citigroup Global Markets Deulasot AG as Registrar, dated October 21, 2010
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.10 to therpany’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeateshDecember 31, 2010).

Indenture among Central European Media Enterptigksas issuer, Central European Media Enterpiib¥s and CME Media Enterprises B.V. as guarantors,
and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas as trusteerity agent, paying agent, conversion agerister agent and registrar, dated February 18, 201
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to thempany's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the aqubriperiod ended March 31, 2011).

Registration Rights Agreement, by and among RoBalcauder, RSL Capital LLC and Central European iM&shterprises Ltd., dated as of April 30, 2012
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to thempany's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on Apfil 2012).

Supplemental Indenture among Central European Meutierprises Ltd., Central European Media EnteggriS.V., CME Media Enterprises B.V. and The
Bank of New York Mellon, dated May 29, 2012 (incorgted by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Compa@yisent Report on Form 8-K filed on June 1, 2012).

Certificate of Designation of the Series A Con#etiPreferred Stock of Central European Media nitges Ltd., dated July 2, 2012 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company's Curregfgd®t on Form 8-K filed on July 3, 2012).

Employee Stock Option Form (incorporated by refeesto the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 1@+Qhie quarterly period ended September 30, 2004)

Subscription Agreement between Central Europeana/edterprises Ltd. and Igor Kolomoisky, dated Asige4, 2007 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
4.02 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form X@+Ghe quarterly period ended September 30, 2007)

Pledge Agreement among Central European Media fiiges Ltd., Central European Media Enterprises. ldnd the Bank of New York, dated March 10,
2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.thenCompany's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q forgiherterly period ended March 31, 2008).

Deed of Pledge of Shares among Central EuropeaieNtederprises N.V., CME Media Enterprises B.V. ding Bank of New York, dated March 10, 2008
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to tfeenpany's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the tulyrperiod ended March 31, 2008).

Capped Call Transaction between Central EuropeatiaVenterprises Ltd., Deutsche Bank AG, London Bheand Deutsche Bank Securities Inc., dated
March 4, 2008 (incorporated by reference to ExHibBif7 to the Company's Quarterly Report on FornQ1for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2008).

Capped Call Transaction between Central EuropeatidVenterprises Ltd. and BNP Paribas, dated May@®@8 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 t
the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q forophn@rterly period ended March 31, 2008).

Capped Call Transaction between the Company anthaeiBrothers OTC Derivatives Inc., dated MarchO9&(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to
the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q foroghn@rterly period ended March 31, 2008).

Subscription Agreement, by and between Central igan Media Enterprises Ltd. and TW Media Holding€l dated March 22, 2009 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Quartedport on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ehiarch 31, 2009).
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Exhibit Number

Description

10.09*

10.10*

10.11*

10.12*+

10.13*

10.14*

10.15*%

10.16*

10.17*

10.18*

Indemnity Agreement, by and among Central Européedia Enterprises Ltd., Ronald S. Lauder and RStaSaah LLC, dated as of March 22, 2009
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to tteempany's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the tulyrperiod ended March 31, 2009).

First Amended and Restated Framework Agreement gr@éentral European Media Enterprises Ltd., CME Wla&lolding B.V., CME Cyprus Holding
Limited, Alstrom Business Corp, Michalakis Tsitsekklgor Kolomoisky and lhor Surkis, dated July 2209 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.tht®
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for thetguly period ended September 30, 2009).

Framework Agreement among CME Production B.V., CRiitnania B.V., Media Pro Management S.A., MediaBka and Adrian Sarbu, dated July 27,
2009 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5h® Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q forgherterly period ended September 30, 2009).

Contract of Employment between CME Media Servicesited and Adrian Sarbu, dated July 27, 2009 (ipocated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for thetguly period ended September 30, 2009).

Contract Assignment between CME Media Enterpris® Bentral European Media Enterprises Ltd., ThakBaf New York Mellon, acting through its
London Branch and The Law Debenture Trust Corpamgtil.c., dated September 17, 2009 (incorporaye@terence to Exhibit 10.11 to the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterlyigeended September 30, 2009).

Pledge Agreement among Central European Media fiiges Ltd., Central European Media Enterprises. NIle Bank of New York Mellon, acting through
its London Branch and The Law Debenture Trust Catjan p.l.c., dated September 17, 2009 (incorporay reference to Exhibit 10.13 to the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterlyigeended September 30, 2009).

Deed of Pledge of Shares among Central EuropeaieNtederprises N.V., CME Media Enterprises B.V.eBank of New York Mellon, acting through its
London Branch and The Law Debenture Trust Corpangtil.c., dated September 17, 2009 (incorporayegterence to Exhibit 10.14 to the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterlyipetended September 30, 2009).

Amendment to the Framework Agreement among CME titiwh B.V., CME Romania B.V., Media Pro Managem®m., Media Pro B.V. and Adrian
Sarbu, dated December 9, 2009 (incorporated byemste to Exhibit 10.66 to the Company's Annual Repo Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December
31, 2009).

Subscription Agreement among Central European Medtarprises Ltd., Media Pro Management S.A. andi&Bro B.V., dated December 9, 2009
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.67 to@wempany's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fisedr ended December 31, 2009).

Share Purchase Agreement among Central Europeaia Eetérprises Ltd., CME Cyprus Holding Il Limitedor Kolomoisky and Harley Trading Limited,
dated January 20, 2010 (incorporated by referamé&shibit 10.68 to the Company's Annual Report omi=10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2009).
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Exhibit Number

Description

10.19*

10.20*

10.21*

10.22*+

10.23*

10.24*+

10.25*

10.26*

10.27*

10.28*

10.29*+

Termination Agreement among Central European MEdterprises Ltd., CME Ukraine Holding B.V., CME Qyp Holding Limited, Alstrom Business Corp,
Michalakis Tsitsekkos, Igor Kolomoisky and Ihor gty dated January 20, 2010 (incorporated by raeréo Exhibit 10.69 to the Company's Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended Decembe2809).

Investor Rights Agreement among the Company, RoBaldauder, RSL Savannah LLC, RSL Investment LLS| Rivestments Corporation and Time
Warner Media Holdings B.V., dated May 18, 2009 diporated by reference to Exhibit 10.71 to the Canyfs Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2009).

Irrevocable Voting Deed and Corporate Represemtappointment among RSL Savannah LLC, Time Warnedisl Holdings B.V. and the Company, dated
May 18, 2009 (incorporated by reference to ExHibif72 to the Company's Annual Report on Form 1@kHe fiscal year ended December 31, 2009).

Contract of Employment between CME Media Servicesited and Dave Sturgeon, dated June 19, 2009rfiocated by reference to Exhibit 10.73 to the
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fisedr ended December 31, 2009).

Deed relating to the Sale and Purchase of CertaiidMinterests in Bulgaria by and among News N&thds B.V., News Corporation, CME Media
Enterprises B.V. and Central European Media Entegpri_td. dated February 18, 2010 (incorporaterefsrence to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Quayrterl
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period enfiedich 31, 2010).

Contract of Employment between CME Media Servicesited and David Sach, dated February 26, 201®(parated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for thetguly period ended March 31, 2010).

Amended and Restated Sale and Purchase AgreentereebeCME Media Enterprises B.V., CME DevelopmengFcing B.V., Top Tone Media Holdings
Limited and Krassimir Guergov, dated April 19, 2Qirorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to @m@npany's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarterly period ended March 31, 2010).

Investment Agreement between CME Media Enterpiss®¥s and Top Tone Media Holdings Limited, dated iN@2, 2010 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.5 to the Company's Quarterly Report omi10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31,®).

Deed of Termination and Release between CME Medierfrises B.V., Top Tone Media Holdings Limitealdtrassimir Guergov, dated April 22, 2010
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to tfeenpany's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the tulyrperiod ended March 31, 2010).

Sale and Purchase Agreement in respect of Pro AY Bledia Pro International S.A. and Media VisioflR3.. among CME Investments B.V., Central
European Media Enterprises Ltd. and Adrian SarbtediMay 24, 2010 (incorporated by reference tatkixh0.8 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2010).

Amended and Restated Contract of Employment betéd&h Media Services Limited and Dave Sturgeon,didtdy 27, 2010 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.9 to the Company's Quarterly Report omi10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 3Q@020
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Exhibit Number

Description

10.30*

10.31*

10.32*

10.33*

10.34*+

10.35*

10.36*

10.37*

10.38*

10.39*

10.40*

10.41*

10.42*

10.43*

10.44*

Pledge Agreement among the Company, Central Eunddealia Enterprises N.V. and BNP Paribas Trust @aton UK Limited, dated October 21, 2010
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.41 to@wenpany's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the figmaliod ended December 31, 2010).

Deed of Pledge of Shares among Central EuropeaieNtederprises N.V., CME Media Enterprises B.V. &NP Paribas Trust Corporation UK Limited,
dated October 21, 2010 (incorporated by referem&xhibit 10.42 to the Company's Annual Report omi=10-K for the fiscal period ended December 31,
2010).

Deed of Amendment to the Intercreditor Agreemerediduly 21, 2006, as amended, among the CompamgraC European Media Enterprises N.V., CME
Media Enterprises B.V., BNY Corporate Trustee SmwiLimited, The Bank of New York Mellon (formeffyre Bank of New York), The Bank of New York
Mellon (formerly The Bank of New York), The Bank New York Mellon, acting through its London Brandie Law Debenture Trust Corporation p.l.c.,
Citibank, N.A., London Branch, BNP Paribas Trustg@wation UK Limited and BNP Paribas S.A., datedaber 21, 2010 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.43 to the Company's Annual Report omi-@0-K for the fiscal period ended December 31,0201

Intercreditor Agreement dated October 21, 2010 antbe Company, CET 21 spol. s r.o., Central Eunopéeadia Enterprises N.V., CME Media Enterprises
B.V., CME Slovak Holdings B.V., MARKIZA-SLOVAKIA, gol. s r.0., CME Investments B.V., BNP Paribas SGitibank Europe plc, ING Bank N.V.,
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., CSAS., BNP Paribas &/&gent, BNP Paribas Trust Corporation UK Lim#edecurity agent and Citibank, N.A., London
Branch, as notes trustee, dated October 21, 28&6rfiorated by reference to Exhibit 10.44 to thenfany's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
period ended December 31, 2010).

Amended and Restated Contract of Employment betéd#h Media Services Limited and Anthony Chhoy, dabecember 1, 2010 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.45 to the Company's AniReghort on Form 10-K for the fiscal period ended &eber 31, 2010).

Deed of Amendment to the Intercreditor Agreememivben Central European Media Enterprises Ltd., @eRuropean Media Enterprises N.V., CME Media
Enterprises B.V., BNY Corporate Trustee Servicenitedd, The Bank of New York Mellon (formerly The laof New York), The Bank of New York Mellon
(formerly The Bank of New York), The Bank of New tkdViellon, acting through its London Branch, TheaLBebenture Trust Corporation p.l.c., Citibank,
N.A., London Branch, BNP Paribas Trust CorporatishLimited, BNP Paribas S.A. and Deutsche Bank T@smpany Americas, dated February 18, 2011
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to therpany's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the gubyrperiod ended March 31, 2011).

Pledge Agreement among Central European Media fiiges Ltd., Central European Media Enterprises. ldnd Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas,
dated February 18, 2011 (incorporated by referéméhibit 10.2 to the Company's Quarterly Reparform 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31
2011).

Deed of Pledge of Shares among Central EuropeaieNtederprises N.V., CME Media Enterprises B.V. &w®ltsche Bank Trust Company Americas, dated
February 18, 2011 (incorporated by reference takiixh0.3 to the Company's Quarterly Report on F&G¥Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2011

Contract of Employment between CME Media Servicesited and Daniel Penn, dated February 20, 20k®(porated by reference to Exhibit 10.47 to the
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the figmaliod ended December 31, 2011).

Term Loan Facilities Credit Agreement, by and bemv&ime Warner Inc. and the Company, dated as af 3@, 2012 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8é¢fon April 30, 2012).

Subscription and Equity Commitment Agreement, by laetween Time Warner Media Holdings B.V. and tleenPany, dated as of April 30, 2012
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to therpany's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on ABfl 2012).

Letter Agreement, by and among Time Warner Medillidgs B.V., the Company, RSL Savannah LLC, RSLi@&apLC, RSL Investments Corporation and
Ronald S. Lauder, dated as of April 30, 2012 (ipooated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Com{sa@wrrent Report on Form 8-K filed on April 30,12).

Subscription Agreement, by and among Ronald S. €gWRISL Capital LLC and the Company, dated as afl 89, 2012 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.4 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8é¢fon April 30, 2012).

First Amendment to the Investor Rights Agreemenptaibd among the Company, Ronald S. Lauder, RSLriaal LC, RSL Capital LLC, RSL Investments
Corporation and Time Warner Media Holdings B.Vtedigas of April 30, 2012 (incorporated by referetm&xhibit 10.5 to the Company's Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on April 30, 2012).

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (inpmwated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Compfsa@urrent Report on Form 8-K filed on June 13,
2012).
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Exhibit Number Description

Central European Media Enterprises Ltd. AmendedRestated Stock Incentive Plan, as amended onlBjr#912 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7

10.45*+ to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-QHerquarterly period ended June 30, 2012).
21.01 List of subsidiaries.

23.01 Consent of Deloitte LLP.

24.01 Power of Attorney, dated as of February 27, 2013.

Certification of Principal Executive Officer puisut to Exchange Act Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14égdopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
31.01 Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursutato Exchange Act Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-146agdapted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbarkes+O
31.02 Act of 2002.

Certifications of Principal Executive Officer andrizipal Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.Ccfien 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 90Beof t
32.01 Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (furnished only).

101.INS XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Schema Document

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Calculation Linkbase Document
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Definition Linkbase Document
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Label Linkbase Document
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Presentation Linkbase Document

* Previously filed exhibits
+ Exhibit is a management contract or compensattany
b) Exhibits: See (a)(3) above for a listing of hibits included as part of this report.

c) Report of Independent Registered Public Accaustan Schedule Il - Schedule of Valuation Allowesio(See page S-1 of this Annual Report on Forri{)10-
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&{(t)e Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyisthas duly caused this report to be signedsdpeihalf by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authorized.

Date: February 27, 2013 [s/ David Sach
David Sach
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &g Act of 1934, this report has been signed bblpthe following persons on behalf of the Registand in the capacities and
on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

Chairman of the Board of Directors
* February 27, 2013
Ronald S. Lauder

Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors

* February 27, 2013

Herbert A. Granath

sl Adrian Sarbu President and Chief Executive Officer
February 27, 2013

Adrian Sarbu
and Director (Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ David Sach Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office
February 27, 2013
David Sach (Principal Financial Officer)
/s/ David Sturgeon Deputy Chief Financial Officer
February 27, 2013
David Sturgeon (Principal Accounting Officer)
Director

* February 27, 2013

Paul T. Cappuccio

Director
* February 27, 2013
Michael Del Nin

Director
* February 27, 2013
Charles Frank

Director

* February 27, 2013

Alfred W. Langer



Director
* February 27, 2013

Fred H. Langhammer
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Bruce Maggin

*

Parm Sandhu

*

Duco Sickinghe

*

Kelli Turner

*

Eric Zinterhofer

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

*By:

/s/ David Sach

David Sach

Attorney-in-fact

111

February 27, 2013

February 27, 2013

February 27, 2013

February 27, 2013

February 27, 2013




Index

INDEX TO SCHEDULES

Schedule Il

Schedule of Valuation Allowances

(US$ 000's)

Balance at December 31, 2009
Charged to costs and expenses
Charged to other accounts (1)
Foreign exchange

Balance at December 31, 2010
Charged to costs and expenses
Charged to other accounts (1)
Foreign exchange

Balance at December 31, 2011
Charged to costs and expenses
Charged to other accounts (1)
Foreign exchange

Balance at December 31, 2012

Bad debt and credit note

provision Deferred tax allowance
$ 14,09¢ $ 60,14¢
5,29¢ 30,427
(5,606) =
(57€) (20
13,20¢ 90,55
3,281 2,631
(2,126 —
(750) (452)
13,61( 92,73¢
3,80z 16,04¢
(93¢) =
44~ 18¢
$ 16,91¢ $ 108,97:

(1) Charged to other accounts for the bad debtesdit note provision consist primarily of accourgseivable written off and opening balance of asglicompanies.



FORM NO. 7a Registration No. 19574

CERTIFICATE OF DEPOSIT OF
MEMORANDUM OF INCREASE OF SHARE CAPITAL

THIS IS TO CERTIFY that a Memorandum of Increase of Share Capital
of

Central European Media Enterprises Ltd.
was delivered to the Registrar of Companies on the 25th day of Jume 2012 in
accordance with section 45(3) of the Companies Act 1981 (“the Act”).
Given under my hand and Seal of the

REGISTRAR OF COMPANIES this
11th day of July 2012

\S 74

for Registrar of Companies

Capital prior to increase: US$ 9,600.,000.00

Amount of increase: US$ 8.000,000.00

Present Capital: US$  17.600,000.00



Our principal subsidiaries and equity-accounted
affiliates as at February 20, 2013 were:

Company Name

CME Bulgaria B.V.

LG Consult EOOD

BTV Media Group EAD
Radiocompany C.J. OOD
Balkan Media Group AD

Nova TV d.d.

CET 21 spol. sr.o.

CME Investments B.V.
Media Pro International S.A.
Media Vision S.R.L .

Pro TV S.A.

Campus Radio S.R.L.

CME Slovak Holdings B.V.
ARJ., as.
MARKIZA-SLOVAKIA, spol. s r.o.
PMT, s.r.o.

MMTV 1 d.o.o.
Produkcija Plus d.o.o.
POP TV d.o.0.

Kanal A d.o.o.

Euro 3TV d.o.o.
TELEVIDEO d.o.o0.

Pro Digital S.R.L.

CME Media Pro B.V.

Media Pro Sofia EOOD

Media Pro Audiovizual d.o.o.

Media Pro Pictures s.r.o.

Certova nevsta, S.1.0.

Pro Video Film & Distribution Kft.
Media Pro Pictures S.A.

Mediapro Music Entertainment S.R.L.
Media Pro Distribution S.R.L.

Pro Video S.R.L.

Hollywood Multiplex Operation S.R.L.

Voting Interest
94%
100%
94%
69.56%
21.62%

100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
20%

100%
100%
100%
31.5%

100%
100%
100%
100%
42%

100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
51%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%

Jurisdiction of Organization
Netherlands
Bulgaria
Bulgaria
Bulgaria
Bulgaria

Croatia

Czech Republic

Netherlands
Romania
Romania
Romania
Romania

Netherlands
Slovak Republic
Slovak Republic
Slovak Republic

Slovenia
Slovenia
Slovenia
Slovenia
Slovenia
Slovenia

Moldova

Netherlands
Bulgaria
Croatia

Czech Republic
Czech Republic
Hungary
Romania
Romania
Romania
Romania
Romania

Exhibit 21.01

Subsidiary / Equity-Accounted Affiliate
Subsidiary
Subsidiary (in liquidation)
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Cost Investment

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary
Subsjd
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Equity-Accounted Affiliate

Subsidiary
Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Cost investment

Subsidiary (in liquidation)
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Equity-Accounted Affiliate
Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary




Hollywood Multiplex Operation Cinemas S.R.L. 100% Romania Subsidiary

Domino Production S.R.L. 51% Romania Subsidiary
Studiourile Media Pro S.A. 92.21% Romania Subsyd
Mediapro Magic Factory S.R.L. 100% Romania Subsidiary
MediaPro Entertainment Slovakia, s.r.o. 100% SitloRepublic Subsidiary
CME Media Pro Ljubljana, d.o.o. 100% Slovenia Subsidiary
BONTONFILM a.s. 100% Czech Republic Subsidiary
Meme Media a.s. 100% Czech Republic Subsidiary
BONTONFILM a.s. 100% Slovak Republic Subsidiary
Central European Media Enterprises N.V. 100% Curacao Subsidiary
Central European Media Enterprises Il B.V. 100% urdao Subsidiary
CME Media Enterprises B.V. 100% Netherlands Subsidiary
CME Programming B.V. 100% Netherlands Subsidiary
CME Development Financing B.V. 100% Netherlands Subsidiary
CME Media Services Limited 100% United Kingdom ubSidiary
CME Services s.r.0. 100% Czech Republic Subsidiary
CME Media Pro Distribution B.V. 100% Netherlands Subsidiary
CME Slovenia B.V. 100% Netherlands Subsidiary
CME Development Corporation 100% Delaware (USA) Subsidiary
CME Austria GmbH 100% Austria Subsidiary

Glavred-Media LLC 10% Ukraine Cost Investment



Exhibit 23.01

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference ini®egion Statement No. 333-181057 on For@ &id Registration Statem
Nos. 33:-184038, 333-60295, 333-110959, 333-130405 and188344 on Form 8- of our reports dated February 27, 2
relating to the financial statements and finanstatement schedule of Central European Media EtdeglLtd. and subsidiari
and the effectiveness of Central European Mediaerarises Ltd. and subsidiaries' internal controérofinancial reporting
appearing in this Annual Report on Form K@®f Central European Media Enterprises Ltd. andsgliaries for the year enc
December 31, 2012.

DELOITTE LLP

London, United Kingdom
February 27, 2013



Exhibit 24.01

POWER OF ATTORNEY

Each person whose signature appears below coestitutd appoints Adrian Sarbu and David Sach, acld efathem, with full power to a
without the other, such person's true and lawfioraey-infact, with full power of substitution and resubstibn, for him and in his name, pl¢
and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign theu&l Report on Form 1R-for the fiscal year 2012 of Central European MeHnterprise
Ltd., a Bermuda company limited by shares, and amy all amendments to such Annual Report on ForaK Hhd other documents
connection therewith, with the Securities and ExggaCommission, granting unto said attorneyfut; and each of them, full power
authority to do and perform each and every actthimd) necessary or desirable to be done in andtaheuyremises, as fully to all intents .
purposes as he might or could do in person, theratifying and confirming all that said attorneysfact, or any of them, or their or |
substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or catasske done by virtue hereof.

Signatures appear on following page




February 27, 2013

/s/ Ronald S. Lauder

Herbert A. Granath

Ronald S. Lauder

/s/ Paul Cappuccio
Paul Cappuccio

/sl Charles Frank
Charles Frank

/s/ Fred Langhammer

Herbert A. Granath

/s/ Michael Del Nin
Michael Del Nin

/sl Alfred Langer
Alfred Langer

/s/ Bruce Maggin

Fred Langhammer

/s/ Parm Sandhu
Parm Sandhu

/s/ Duco Sickinghe

Bruce Maggin

/s/ Kelli Turner

Kelli Turner

/sl Eric Zinterhofer

Duco Sickinghe

Eric Zinterhofer



Exhibit 31.01

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER

I, Adrian Sarbu, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this annual report on FornKl@F Central European Media Enterprises L

Based on my knowledge, this report does notabemny untrue statement of a material fact ortémnstate a material fact necessary to make #ttersents made, in light of
the circumstances under which such statementsmweade, not misleading with respect to the perioceoed by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements otimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material respects theafigial condition, results
operations and cash flows of the registrant aarud, for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant's other certifying officer(spdrare responsible for establishing and maintgimisclosure controls and procedures (as definékamange Act Rules 13a-15
(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over finaheeporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules-18€) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proesdor caused such disclosure controls and proesdoibe designed under our supervision, to enisatenaterial
information relating to the registrant, including tonsolidated subsidiaries, is made known toyustiers within those entities, particularly durihg period in which
this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over finanoggdorting, or caused such internal control ovearfitial reporting to be designed under our supenvjsd provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilitjnafitial reporting and the preparation of finanstatements for external purposes in accordandegeiterally
accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regissatisclosure controls and procedures and presemthi$ report our conclusions about the effectegmnof the disclosure
controls and procedures, as of the end of the gegwered by this report based on such evaluagiod;

(d) Disclosed in this report any changes in tlggsteant's internal control over financial repogtithat occurred during the registrant's most refiecal quarter (the
registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the casero&anual report), that has materially affecteds@easonably likely to materially affect, the tgant's internal control
over financial reporting; and

The registrant's other certifying officer(spdrhave disclosed, based on our most recent eti@tuaf internal control over financial reportirtg, the registrant's auditors and
the audit committee of the registrant's board éators (or persons performing the equivalent fionef):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal obotrer financial reporting which are reasonabikgly to adversely affect
the registrant's ability to record, process, sunmeand report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvearmagement or other employees who have a signifroéain the registrant's internal control overafitial reporting

/sl Adrian Sarbu

Adrian Sarbu

President and Chief Executive Officer
February 27, 2013



Exhibit 31.02

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER

I, David Sach, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this annual report on FornKl@F Central European Media Enterprises L

Based on my knowledge, this report does notabemny untrue statement of a material fact ortémnstate a material fact necessary to make #ttersents made, in light of
the circumstances under which such statementsmweade, not misleading with respect to the perioceoed by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements otimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material respects theafigial condition, results
operations and cash flows of the registrant aarud, for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant's other certifying officer(spdrare responsible for establishing and maintgimisclosure controls and procedures (as definékamange Act Rules 13a-15
(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over finaheeporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules-18€) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proesdor caused such disclosure controls and proesdoibe designed under our supervision, to enisatenaterial
information relating to the registrant, including tonsolidated subsidiaries, is made known toyustiers within those entities, particularly durihg period in which
this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over finanoggdorting, or caused such internal control ovearfitial reporting to be designed under our supenvjsd provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilitjnafitial reporting and the preparation of finanstatements for external purposes in accordandegeiterally
accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regissatisclosure controls and procedures and presemthi$ report our conclusions about the effectegmnof the disclosure
controls and procedures, as of the end of the gegwered by this report based on such evaluagiod;

(d) Disclosed in this report any changes in tlggsteant's internal control over financial repogtithat occurred during the registrant's most refiecal quarter (the
registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the casero&anual report), that has materially affecteds@easonably likely to materially affect, the tgant's internal control
over financial reporting; and

The registrant's other certifying officer(spdrhave disclosed, based on our most recent eti@tuaf internal control over financial reportirtg, the registrant's auditors and
the audit committee of the registrant's board éators (or persons performing the equivalent fionef):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal obotrer financial reporting which are reasonabhgly to adversely
affect the registrant's ability to record, processnmarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that ined management or other employees who have aisatifole in the registrant's internal control ofreancial
reporting.

/sl David Sach

David Sach

Chief Financial Officer
February 27, 2013



Exhibit 32.01

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANESOXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Central &@wean Media Enterprises Ltd. (the “Company”) onnFdi0K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012jled fvith the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the dat@hg@he “Report”),we, Adrian Sarbu, President and Chief Executivec®ffof the Company, and David Sach, Chief Find
Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 IC.SSection 1350, as adopted pursuant to Secti6roBthe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1 the Report fully complies with the requirementsSetction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExchangeofA1934; an

2 the information contained in the Report fairhegents, in all material respects, the financiald@tion and result of operations of the Companypfabe dates and for the
periods explained in the Report.

/s/_Adrian Sarbu [s/_David Sach

Adrian Sarbu David Sach

President and Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Executive Officer) (Principal Financial Officer)

February 27, 2013 February 27, 2013



